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A
FORM OF APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION LETTER S“? ?ia
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D=C 15 2005
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)FINANUIAL

Office of International Corporate Finance
Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporate Finance

Room 3094 (3-G)

450 Fifth Street, N.W. k
Washington, D.C. 20549 ' ,

Re:  MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Information Furnished Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)
Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (File No. 82-3237)

L.adies and Gentlemen: -

We are fumishing the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) with the
information set forth herein and in the exhibit hereto for filing pursuant to the requirements of exemption
from Section 12(g) of the U. S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) granted to Manila
Electric Company (the “Company”) under Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Exchange Act (the “Rule”).

Set forth in Exhibit A is a list of the information the Company has made public, filed with any
exchange, or distributed to security holders for the period from November 1, 2005 to October 31, 2006.
Enclosed also is a copy of each of the reports or announcements referred to in Exhibit A. This information
is being furnished with the understanding that such information and documents will not be deemed ““filed”
with the SEC, or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and that neither this
letter nor the furnishing of such documents and information shall continue an admission for any purpose
that the Issuer is subject to the Exchange Act.

With regards to the list of information the Company is required to make public, file with any
exchange or distribute to security holders, there are no changes from that listed in Exhibit B which the

v

Company furnished the SEC in November 2004.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

10.

Date of Report: December 16, 2005

SEC Identification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
Country of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300
Former name or former address: Nof Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Litle of Each Class Common Stock Qutsfanding
Class “A” 604,306,651
Class “B” 402,900,741
Total 1,007,207,397

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Billion (as of November 30, 2005)
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11. Item Number reported: /fem 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached report on the atiendance of Meralco Directors in Board meetings for the
period covering January to December 2005.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuer

L S/SAN DJEGO

Vice’Pr t, Assistant Corporate
cretary, and Information Disclosure
Date: December 16, 2005 Officer

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Phifippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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MERALCO

ORTIGAS AVENUE, Pasic CiTy
0300 PHiLePINES

SEGRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, GIL S. SAN DIEGO, a duly elected, qualified and incumbent Assistant
Corporate Secretary of the Manila Electric Company (MERALCO), a
corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the
Philippines, do hereby certify that:

Attached is the list of attendance of Meralco Directors in Board
meetings for the period covering January to December 2005.

WITNESS THE SIGNATURE of the undersigned as such officer of the
Company and its corporate seal hereunto affixed on this 16" day of December

2005.

e

Assista e Secretary
beceMBek-

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 16" day of January 2005,
affiant exhibiting to me his Community Tax Certificate No. 15659021, issued
at Quezon City, on January 7, 2005.

Doc. No. '2«55 :

Page No. __J F ANGELO G. MEDINA

Book No. AN : NOTARY PUBLIC
E UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2006

serles Of 20 PTR NO. 2247011

{SSUED ON ¢1-06-n¢ AT PASIG CITY

Tew No. (632) 631-2222 = (632) 16220
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPARY

(Company’s Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILDING, ORTIGAS AVENUE
PASIG CITY

(Company’s Address)

16220

(Company’s Telephone Number)

DECEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

LAST TUESDAY OF MAY

(Annual Meeting)

SEC FORM 17-C

(Form Type)

PIN-102

(S. E. C. Registration No.)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 12-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION COBE
AND SRC RULE 12.2(c) THEREUNDER

10.

Date of Report: January 17, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW.102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
Country of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

ILitle of Each:Class Commonp Stock Qutstanding
Class “A” 604,301703
Class “B” 402,897,442
Total 1,007.199.145

Amount of Debt Qutstanding: P123.02 Billion fas of November 30, 2005)




. Us SEC
et — Fila ¥1.32-3237

11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see aftached copy of Press Release entitled “MERALCO BRANDS TAX
ALLEGATION AS BASELESS-CHARGE SAYS IT DOES NOT OWE BIR:P85.3 BILLION *.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Requlation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly-authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuer

: -Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: January 17, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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(Company’s Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILBING, ORTIGAS AVENUE
PASIG CITV
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16220
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(Annual Meeting)

SEC FORM 17-C
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSIOH
SEC FORM 11-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c] THEREUNDER

10.

Date of Report: January 19, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-107-528

Name of Issuer as specffied in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
Country of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classificatio_n: (SEC use only)

Address-of principal office: Lqpez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300
Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Iitle of Each Class Common Stock Quistanding
Class “A” 604,301703
Class “B" 402,807,442
Total 1.007,199,145

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Billion (as of November 30, 2005)




11. tem Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Flease see attached copy of the Company'’s reply fo Corporate Finance Department’s letter
dated December 23, 2005,

SIGNATURE

Fursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation:..Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behsalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuér

Vice ide Assistant
Copporat cretary and

Information Disclosure Officer

Date: January 19, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and'Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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AERALCO

OrnGas AVENLE, Pasig-Ciy
0300 PHILPPINES

January 18, 2006

MS. JUSTINA F. CALLANGAN
Director, Corporate Finance Department
Securities & Exchange Commission

6™ Floor, SEC Building, EDSA
Greanhilis, Mandaluyong City

Deer Director Callangan:

We received your letter dated December 23, 2008, concerning the late filing of our sworn
certification on the attendance of direclors during the 2004 board meetings.

Thank you for accepting our explanation. Rest assured that we shall be compiiant next
time not only with this particular item but to alj reportorial requirements.

Very truly vours,

e

P

(s AN DIEGO
VicgPresident, Asglstant Corporate

etary & Infofmation Disclosure Officer

acdb/

Tel. No. (632) '631-2222 » (632 158220




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION | IS SEC
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenbhills, Mandaluyong City, Metro Manilje_g;;_

CORPORATION FINANCE DEPARTMENT

LU“EE!“?HQAF@%&'N SE7lgeR
Detember 23, 2005 | I ikt i A,
__ JAN 17 ZQBG,IL i
Atty. GIL'S. SAN/DIEGO ' U I\ WT“j
Assistant Corporate Secretary By:. 1 (A
MANILA-ELECTRIC COMPANY ~—

Lopez Building-
Ortigas Avenue;_?Pgsi_g, City

Dear Atty. San’'Diego

This refers: to. the company's late. filing of its sworn. certification: on the: _

attendance: of its directors during its' 2004 board meetings. per its Manual on‘“- See G

Corporate-Governance. ‘ i Dudtee +

We find 'no-merit in its-reply to our‘Show Cause Letter dated March 22,.2005. }_4-_.;&7!' ’E{Y?)-;
; B e ‘ ' -

- ‘Considering that this Esz'the_. company’s first violation. of the_subjéct-.req,u_i'ré'r'hent_,.‘ 'tf.q,vta-“f‘f'*}i.' .

the company is.hereby reprimanded: Itis, ‘however, war;ned:th__'at-'henceforth, it -

shall take measures to fully comply ‘with ‘the ‘same, ‘otherwise, appropriaie:

penalties-shall jbe',imposedf'bursuant- to-the-Consolidated-Scales of Fines-(SEC:

Memorandum Circular No: 6, Series of-2005), )
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE17.2(c) THEREUNDER

Date of Report: January 23, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW:102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350—000401-528'

Mame of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
Country of Incorporation: Philippines |

Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Bu:!dmg, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

Former name or former address: Not Applicable

. Securities registered Pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or

Sections 4 and'8 of the' RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class Common Stock -Quistanding
Class "A” 604,301,703
Class “8"” 402,897,*442
Total 1,007,199,145

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Biflion (as of November 30, 2005}
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il. Item Numberreported: ffem 9 (Other Events)

At the regular meeting of the Board of Directors .of Manila Electric Company (MFRALCO)
held-today, January 23, 2006, the Board has fixed February 28, 2006 as the record:date for the
determination of ‘stockholders -entitled to notice of, -and fo: vote at the Annual —‘Stockho!dé;rs
Meeting of MERALCO"to be held. on Tuesday, May 30, 2006, Starting: at 9:00 a.m., ‘at the Méralco
Theater, Lopez Building, Ortigas-Avenue, Pasig City.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Cote, the
issuer has duly caused ‘this report to he signed on .its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duty-authorized. :

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

IS}uér
p .
GIL 7
Vie ident;"Assistant: Cotporate
Sécretary, ‘and Information Disciosure
Date: January 23, 2006 Officer

ce: Disclesure Department
Listings and-Disclosure Group
Phifippine Stock:Exchange (PSE)
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COVER SHEET

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

(Company’s Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILDING, ORTIGAS AVEMUE
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(Company’s Address)

16220
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(S. E. C. Registration No.)
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SEC FORM 17-C

CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

1. Date of Report: January 26, 2006

2. SEC Identification Number: PW-102

3. BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

4. Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
5. Country of Incorporation: Philippines

6. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

7. Address of -p;'inci pal office: Lopez Buifding, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
8. Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

9. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4-and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Fach Class Common Stock Qutstanding
Class “A” 604,301,703
Class “B” 402,897,442
Total 1.007,199,145

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Billion (as of November 30, 2005)
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11. Ttem Number reported: /tem 9 (Other Events)

Attached is a copy of “MERALCO’s CERTIFICATION TO SEC ON THE COMF;’UANCEWITH
THE MANUAL OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY.”

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities ‘Regulation .G',oc_ie; the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuer

GIL SA\SAN DI .
Vice Presideént, Assistant Corporate

Secretary, and Information Disclosure
Date: January 26, 2006 Officer

c¢c: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Phitippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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CERTIFICATION TO SEC ON THE
‘COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANUAL
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This is to certify that MERALCO has
substartially complied- with the rules and
principles-of its Manuat of Corporate
Governance. it is aiso in'the process af
mstitutionalizing these corporate governance
practices-and principles-as it is practicable
te the subsidiaries. All'subsidiaries are
non-puttic and non-listed companies,

This certification is issued in accordance
with the.requirement of the Company's
Manual.of Corporate Governance Article Vv,
Section 1.1, Paragraph d.
7/

e
Heleh T. de Guzman
18 January 2008

The Board

Compesition-of the Board

As of year-end of 2005, the Board of Meralco consists
of feur executive directors {(MMLopez, JPFrancisco,
CS8Monsod,  ang FBAlfonso), five independent
directors {CEAVirata, WZ8ycip, FLViray, OVEspirity,
and GLDominge) and one non-executive director
(EAVicens). One board seat previously held by
independent directar, MVTeves remains vacant to
date. Mr. Teves resigned as. board of director upon
his appointment as Finance -Secretary. Directors are
subject to re-election BVery year in accordance with
the articles and by-iaws of the company.

All Directors have. attended 'seminars on Caorporate
Governance, which is also prescribed under Energy
Regulatory Commissicn. Resolution No. 1. Serjes
2004 entitled "Program to Promote Good Corporate
Governance in Distribution Utifity”,

Board Procedures

The‘Board holds  regular monthly meetings and
special board mestings to discuss and decide on

uUs SEC

S

' - Fila No.82-3237

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

2005

major criticai issues affecting the company. Details of
the-Directors' attendance to Board meetings is shown
in “Annex 1", :
The Board has a formal agenda ‘for each meeting
which include the brief ‘report or update by the
Chairman & CEOQ, the.report of the board committees,
the President's report on operational and financial
performance, . and updates  on reguiatory
developments, the presentation of plans and budgets,
acquisitions and divestments and. other strategic
concerns. The duration of regular board meetings
averaged-about 2.2 hours. _

There is an orientation process for new independent

and non-executive Directors. This:includes the ff,

» Briefing the Director on the comeany's board
governance process by the Corporate Secretary;

* Providing the Director with a Corporate Governance
binder by the compliance officer that contains
copies of the company’s Manual; of Corporate
Governangeg, Code of Ethics, Conflict of nterest
Palicy, Articles of Incarporation-& By-Laws and the
requirement on Disclosure of Transactions in
trading Meralco shares: and

+ Orientating the Director on ‘the Company's
organization and operations by company cfficers.

Board Committees

There are six standing Committees in‘the board in aid
of governance:  Nomination -&.  Governance
Committee, Audit & Compliance: Committee,
Compensation & Retirement Commiites, Risk
Management Committee, Finance-‘Committee- -and
Executive Committee:. All committees have approved
Charters. Each Committee has: at ieast two
independent Direciors. The summary of Roard
Cornmittee functions and their accomplishments are
shown'in “Annex 2", '

The Strategic Planning Committee is-the onfy -adhoc
Board committee that functioned during the vear. The
Strategic-Planning Committee was tasked io provide
oversight and strategic insights to aig managemeant
and the board in the formulation of strategic plans and
enhance the strategic decision making process in the
light of the on-going restructuring of the electric power
industry, :

The duration of meetings of Boarg Cemmittees
ranged from 1.2 to 2.6 hours.

Management Cornmittes

The corporate officers of the Company is composed
of the Chief Executive Officer, the President & Chief
Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer &
Comptroller, thie Heads of Networks and Supply, the
Treasurer, the Chief Information Officer,‘and eight (8)
other Vice Presidents from various functional offices.
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Except for the Treasurer and four (4) of the eight (8)
VPs meritioned above; ‘all of the corporate officers
constitute the: Management:Committee {.Mancom ),

Mancom meets regularly, at least :once a week to
ensure the formulation and implementation of
principal poficies and directions governing the
organization, management and operation of the
company as well -as its subsidiaries. Management
has alsc formed other regular committees such-as the
Corporate  Planning Caommittee, Purchasing
Committee, HR Committee. All Company officers with
the rarik 'of Assistant Vice: President up to the CEO

have-attended seminar on Corporate Governance and
Risk Management.

Corporate Secretary

The Corporate Secretary oversees the scheduling of
all'board-activities. Directors have been.notified of the
date and time of the Board meetings ahead of
schedule. The agenda and related materials for the
board meeting is supplied to the Director -at least a
‘day before the scheduled meeting. All meetings of the
Board have been ‘minuted and are available for
‘inspection by any Director ‘during office hours at the
Office of the Cerporate Secretary,

The Corporate Secretary's responsibllity includes
briefing*the new Directors 'on  the company's board
governance process. He also submits to the SEC at
the .end of every fiscal year, a certification on the
attendancs of all Directors to the Board meetings.

The External Auditor
During the -fast annual stockholders’ meeting, he
stockhalders have appointed . SGV & Co. as the
external-auditor of the company. The Audit Committes
‘in their meetings: nermally invites the external auditor
when issues related to the-audit of the company's
financiai .statements are discussed. The ‘external
auditor -dlso presents their annual audit plan and
issues to Audit Committee.
The Engagement Partner of SGV for Meralco is Ms,
Vivian Cruz-Ruiz. She has:been handling Meralco as
the signing partner for the last three (s)years.
SGV has not been engaged by the company to
perform non=audit services during the year. This
years financial audit however was expanded to
include the review of the company's.compliance to the
internationat Accounting ‘Standards (IAS) set for
impiementation in 2008 In 2004, SGV was
commissioned to undertake limited review involving
various. -cut-off dates .and certify the corresponding
company’s -Net Earning Statement, ‘which was
prescribed by the creditors under the refinancing
program.
Payments to sSGv during the year consist of the
following. :
* Regular-2005 financial audit &

retainer fees 9.5
* Balance- 2004 financial audit 6.6

P16.1M

‘U
£

The above information is disclosed in compliance with
SEC Circular No. 14, an amendment to Annex C of
Rule No. 12,

The Internal Auditor

Internal. audit conducts' its activities. ‘guided by the
International Standards for Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing (ISPPIA).

The Chief-Audit. Executive (CAE) reports to'the Audit
Committee and to the Chairman. ‘& ‘Chief Executive
Officer. As a2 matter of practice, the CAE presents its
audit reports to Management and secure its. response
and commitment before presenting the same'reportto
the Audit Committee-on a-regular-basis. _

The annuat audit plan of Internal: Audit is ‘presented
and approved by the Audit Committee.

Supply of Information

Directars are supplied with detailed-reporis-and other
pertinent documents related to ‘the:.agenda. of the
meeting of the Board or the ‘committee. These
materials. are provided at least a day orior to the
scheduled meeting date.

The agenda for regular board meetings ‘normally
consist of six to seven items. Distribution of agenda
averages about 60-40. 80% of the-agerda concerns
matters almost.an a pro:forma basissuch as financial,
operational and  regulatery répons, Board
authorization to execute financial transactions or-other
major contractual obligations. Thetemaining 40% are
devoted to'Board Committee reports:and major policy
and strategic issues.

Disclosure and Transparency

As mandated, the Office of the- Corporate Secretary

with the cooperation of ‘concemed” offices in the

Company has-completely filed all- required:reports to
the 'SEC and the Philippine Stock Exchange ‘on or
before.the sét deadline.

The Company has designated the Chief Legal-Officer
as the. Corporate information’ Disclosure Officer. for
purposes’ of disclosing material information: dealings
to the ‘SEC and PSE on a continding "basis. The
Treasurer was appointed as the OI¢" in the absence
of the Chief Disclosure Officer. There are however
instances that the attention of ‘the Corporate
Secretary or'the:President has been/called to explain
or clarify certain issues quoted either from Company
officers or third parties concerningissues affecting the
company-as they are published in the'newspapers.

Investors’ Rights and Protection

As a matter of policy, the Corﬁpany conducts’
quarterly -Investors' briefings participated in by the
Chairman of the Board & CEO andfor the President &
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Chief Operating Officer , the Chief Financial Officer
and  Comptroller and the Treasurer. Invited in the
session are representatives of the Jocal and
institutional investors, securities brokerage firms and
investment bankers. Through conference call,
analysts of foreign-based institutional investors and
investment -banks are able to participate during the
session.
In the Company, the investor Relations Office ably
supervises. the investors’ briefings and attends to
institutional investors' needs while the Stockholders
Assistance Office attends to concerns of the smail
investors.
For the year, investors' briefings were held on the
following ‘dates.

No. of Participating

Date Institutions
+  April 8 .2005. 41
*  May5,2005 27
¢ August 1, 2005 31
»  October 28, 2005 26

Compliance and’ Monitoring

The Board -of Directers has -appointed -compliance
officer who reports to the Chairman of the Board as
well as to-the Nomination. & ‘Governance Commiittes.
The compliance gfficer apprisesthe. Nomination and
Governance Committee and the Chairman of the
Board on a regular basis, ‘their of the company's
compliance to the Manuaj of Carporate Governance
and identifies areas for improvements. The
Compliance Officeralso seeks from the Nomination &
- Governance Committes; direction and guidance on
matters relating to governance improvement
programs.
To date, the Compliance Officer has not been
summoned'to.appear before the SEC on’'matters-that
need to be clarified by the SEC.

Applicability to Subsidiaries

The Company has committed to-make the Manual of
Corporate- Governarnice applicable and binding on alf
subsidiary corparations.

To implement this, a Subsidiary Management Policy
was developed o manage its subsidiaries with
adherenca, dedication and unwavering commitrment
to' good corporate governance and practices within
the bounds of the corporate-powers vested:ypon it by
the laws -and jts legisiative franchise”™ The Board
approved-this 6n September 2005,

To date, -all .Board: of Directors and key management
officers of Subsidiary corporations-have- attended the
prescribed  Corporate Governance and Risk
Management seminar, which was conducted by an
institution"accredited by SEC.

Management has implemented a guideline setting
the number of directorship a corporate officer can
have in subsidiaries and affiliate companies. The
objective is to ensure that the capacity-of Directors to
serve  with diligence is not ‘compromised.
Appointment of independent Directors has been
accomplished- in two. (2) subsidieries. The
appointment of independent directors in the rest of the
subsidiaries ‘was put on hold: pendingcompletion of
the on-going rationalization and: re-alignmient. of
subsidiaries with the strategic objeétives of the
company.
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“Annex 1"
: MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY f
t :
ATTENDANCE: BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
wS5olog |T82| 23l88g| e B2l oo
502 22 |S52|9EE|BEL| 88 | L2828
Sm%w| B E SEE|BSE EEE s E B.5El = = E
ool 28 |ESE|ZEE EeEIEE |“EEISSE
m%ﬁ w8 8380 8o 850 O 20 Qo
MEETINGS HELD 13 2 3 6 3 8 1 I
M. M. Lopez 12 2 6 3
F. B. Alfonso 13 1 3 5] 4
J. P Francisco 13 2 8 1 7
OV.-R. Espiritu* 8 2 5 1
W. F. Garcia* 1 -
C. S. Monsod 12 7 1 2]
J. B. Santos* 1 2
W. Z_Sycip* 9 1 6 2
M..B. Teves* 4 - 3 1
G. L. Domingo* g 1 3
E. A Vicens 13 5 7 1 T
C. E.A Virata* 11 1 7
F. L. Viray” 12 3 3 3 1
%:Atterdance 88 70 73 93 85 93 100 85
Ave. ‘Meeting hours 2.2 1.4 1.3 1.5 1.2 1.5 18 | 28

* Independent Direcrors

NOTE :
- The following changes in'the Board's composition took effect within the year :
¢ Mr. Juan B. Sanfos resigned on February 1, 2005. He was raplaced by Mr. Octavio Victor R.
Espinitu, Jr. on April 25,2005

* Mr. Winston F. Garcia resigned on April 15, 2005. He'was raplaced by Mr. Gregory L. Domingo on
the same date.

* Mr.‘Margarito B. Teves resigned on July 15, 2005, He has no replacement to date.
Last December 2004, the memberships in the board committses were rationalized to effsect the fallowing :

1. A director's membership in board committees shall be limited to a rmaximum of three {3).

2. A director sitting in.the Audit Committee shall not be a member of the Finance Committee or vice-
varsa.




Page 2 of 2 - Board Commitiee Functions
CY 2005 Accomplishments

Confirmed:the Operational Excellence Award.
Approved changes in Total Managerial
Remuneration.
Deliberated.onthe Retirement Conversion Pian.
¢ Evaluated CEQ performance and his
compensation increase.

Meetings:

March 7
July 20
July 25

Finance Committee

Functions

The Finance Committee is appointed by the
MERALCO' Board of Directors to review the
financial operations of the Company and advise,
recommend the -approval or action on financial
matters such as on major ‘financial policies and
financing  transactions, corporate plans and
budgets, major contracts, acquisitions  and
divestitures  -and financing guarantees and

indemnities and mongaging of company assets. It
- endorses recommendations to the Board as

deemed appropriate and within its delegated
authority.

Accomplishments:

¢ Reviewed and endorsed to the Board of
Directors-for approval, major contracts
recemmended by management.

* Evaluated Phase IV Refund. Procedures.

* Reviewed and-endorsed managerment-
proposed-Phase IV Refund Payment
Schemes for approval of the Energy
Regulator.'y'CommissionA(ERC).

* Provided-directions on the Asset Disposal
Program.

* Approved the sale of a minor subsidiary
company.

* Provided directions an the financing options for
Meralee,

* Reviewed and approved the updated {Short-
term) Investment Policies-and Guidelines.

* Reviewed and approved donation to a

: toundation

* Provided-directions on covenants with
creditors.

. Reviewed pending issues related to major
supply contracts.

Meetings:

January 18
January 24
February 24

‘May 10

August.9
August 22
September 22
November 29

Risk Management Committes

Functions

The' Risk Management Committee-is -appcinted by
the Board of Directors to ensure that the Company
has'an effective risk management system. It shall
provide oversight over the management’s activities
in managing supply, credit, market, liquidity,
operational, legal and other risks of the corporation.
This function shail ‘include receiving periodic
information on risk exposuras and riék-'management
activities. It endorses recommendations to the
Board as' deemed appropriate.

Accomplishments:

s Reviewed on-going,management‘:initilatives to
institutionalize Risk Management:Process in
the Company.

* Reviewed-impact of significant risks and
Exposures-as of August 31, 2005.

* Reviewed on-going Risk Management
Assessment and Study

Meeiing;
September 18
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FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD COMMITTEES & CY2005 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Nominaticn &-Governance Committee

Functions

The Nomination & Governance: Committes is
appointed by the Board: of-Directors- of MERALCO
to make recommendations to the. Board- oh the
qualified nominees for appointment ‘as directors,
improvements on  board organization and
procedures, mechanisms for evaluating
performance of the*board'.and‘management'and-the
continuing education of the board including that for
individual directors.

Accomplishments:

* Evaluated:Directors’ attendance in Board and
Board Committee meetings.

* Screened nominees for Directors of the Board.

° Reviewsd and approved-revisions to the Full
Business:Interest Disclosure Form,

¢ Reviewed Benchmark Report-on Corporate

. Governance .

» Reviewed and.endorsed Policy Guidelines on
Board. Commiittees.

* -Provided directions.on-the mechanism to
evaluate management performance

. Reviewed'and“endorsed‘for'board approvai the
Subsidiary'Management'PoIicy.

Mestings:

February 28
Apfil 15
‘August 16

Audit & Com pliance'Committee

-Fupctiens

The’.iAudit'ar:'d:Compliance-'Committee is appointed
by the MERALCO Board of Directors to provide
‘oversight :of the company’s internal and: external
-auditors, -evaluzate the integrity and accuracy-of the
financiai Teports, elevate to international standards
the -accounting ‘and ‘auditing processes, practices
‘and .methodologies. in- the company and monitor
compliance with taws and regulations.

Accomplishments:

* Approved the annual. Internal Audit Plan

Reviewed Iniernat Audit Reports.

* Reviewed the.impact to the company-of
International Accounting.Standards. (1AS) and-
the: Philippine. Finangial Reporting. Standards
made:effective in-2005. ol

Reviewed 2004 and 2005 external audit issues,
Reviewed the:annual audited financial-
statements’ :

* Recommended to'the Board the approval of
2004 audited financial statements -

* Reviewed and acknowledged the externar
‘auditor's 2005 Audit Plan. "

* Reviewed notices served by regulatory agencies
relative to-corporate filing of the financial
statements, o

* Review impact of significant pending legal and

tax cases.

Meetings:

January 17
February 24
March 7
March. 28
July 20
September 29

Compensation & Retirement Commitiee

Functions

The Compensation ‘and ‘Retirement Committes is:
appointed. by the Board df.Directors-to'estab!.ish‘a
farmal policy for developing a policy on-exacutive .
compensation  and. fixing the remuneration
Packages ‘of corporate officers and: Board. of
Directors.and either make recommendations 46 the
Board: as-'deemed’ necessary or to take:dpproved
action if within delegated authority.

Accomplishments:

* Reviewed and decided on the 2004 Meraico
(Employee} Incentive Plan, :

* Reviewed-and confirmed results of the 2004
Performance Evaluation,




To: odisy@pse.com:ph
ce:

Subject:  ODiSy - Disclosure Siatus

Dear Sir/Madam:

We would like to inform you that as of JaN 27, 2006 01:17:13 PM today,

Reference Number: $5107

Company Name: Manila Electric Company

Disclosure Subject: Certification on compliance with Manual of Corporate
Covernance

Status: APPROVED

Remarks:

Should ¥ou nesed  further assistance,

please e-mail us at odisya@pse.com.ph.

This message containg confidential information and is intended only for the

named addressee. If you are not thea -

named addresszz you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this

Flease notifv the sender immediately

by e-mail if vo
=

from your syst

e-mail .

4 have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this
m..

e-mail

E-mail franemission cannot be guaranteed to bes secu
information could be intercepted, corrupted,
lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete,
therefore deoes not accept liability for
any errors or omissions in the contents
result of e-mail transmission.

re or srror-free as
or contain viruses. The sender

of this message, which arise as a

If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

P5E Center, One Exchange Road

Crtigas Center, Pasig City.

Philippines 1500
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The document with reference number 9107 has been uploaded.
Please Take note of this number for future reference.
You will receive an email with reference to this upload transaction.

Company Name : Manila Electric Company
Steck Symbal MER

MERB
Title/Report Name : Other Disclosureé
Filename : sec form 17c.pdf
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https://odisy.pse. ph/j2es/odisy/saveupload.jsp
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 11-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.:2(¢) THEREUNDER

10.

Date of Report: February 6, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Namie of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
Country of Incorporation: Pilippines

In‘dQstry"ctassificétion: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building; Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class Common Stock OQutstanding
Class “A" 604,301703
Class *B” 402,897:442
Total - 1,007,199.145

Amount of Debt Qutstanding: P123.02 Billion (as of November 30, 2005)
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11. Item Number reported:
1. Item 5 (Legal Proceedings)

Please see attached copy .of the Supreme- Court.decision in RE: NATIONAL-ASSCCIATION
OF ELECTRICITY CONSUMERS FOR'REFORMS (NASECORE); represented by PETRONILO ILAGAN,
FEDERATION OF VILLAGE ASSOCIATIONS (FOVA), represented by SIEGFRIEDO  VELOSO, .and
FEDERATION OF LAS PINAS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATIONS (FOLPHA) represented by
BONIFACION DAZO VS. ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION (ERC) and MANIEA ELECTRIC
COMPANY (MERALCO), G.R. No. 16393,

2, Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached copy of Press Relfease entitled MERALCO STUDY ING- IMPLICA TIONS
OF SC DECISION ON GRAM

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC. OMPANY

Vicg President , Assistant
Corporate Secretary.and -
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: February 6, 2006

¢c: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Fhilippine Stock Exchange {PSE)



'_ Meralco s-tudy'ing'-_implications-of'SC'd'ec_i‘sion"oh GRAN

Tle Mamla Elecmc Company (Meralco) said today that it is C*udymg the
. imphcat‘ons of the 1ecently release d Dec1510n of 1he Supreme Court nuihf) ing the June. 2

2004 Order of the Enewy Rewulatory Commissmn (ERC) approwng the \fI er alcé’s an .

“Gens 1at10ﬂ Rate Ad]ustment Med lanism (GRAM)

Under the GRAM,‘distrib'ution utilities as.Mera)co accumlil'ated three momhs worth

of pq"mf‘nts to its power aupphas (NPC IPPS) The dISmbutton utlhues then applied for

recovery of these LOStS at the ERC, which must act on the appllcatlon within 45 days. If

_nm u"tf’d upon the apphcaﬂon would be deeméd glanted “Thc utilities, in faét,

- advanced the payments before collecting .fi‘om customers. . ERC also had to confiim the -

costs before these were authorized for collection from customers,” added My, Cuna, ~

S‘.i_nc_e the GRAM is sin_lp_ly a deferred cost recovery mechamsm ERC GRAM_

-approvals can either result in’ an mmease or a deuease in the Genelatlm Charge of

x,usiom 2r'S dependmg on the actuaI generation cost payments the utlllty has made, “In

fact Meralco’ s I GRAM apphcctuon which was apploved by ERC.in an Order dated

J anuary 21 2004 1esuited ina ’)1 ’13 CENntavos 1educt10n 1n the Genelatlon Cﬂd[ ge sa1d'

Mr. Cuna. Itisa mattex of 1ecmd that Mr Ilagan of NASECORE the mam petitioner of |

the case at the SC did not questlon ERC S Order appr ovmg Mcralco s first GRA‘M. “As

OE'UQBS a\}'eﬂue; DaSIg Clty, phlllppinE?SGBOO tel. no. 631-5557 » 632-85(]3 fax na, 632 Hom - mail eobuna\_,mualcc .oom.j

L )NM Eg’iﬂg .ﬂ.,{nm wa
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there was .alsb.-‘nlci' pubii_(_:atiﬂn of that -application, wil! that also be'similqﬂ& revaked?”

queried Mr. Cuna,

‘ “The r'é‘quil-ed lpﬁblicé»tion ;f .‘GRA.'M. appligat%ons may Aa_.l_so affect :NPC and other

- distribution ﬁtili-ti’es ﬂi_a_t have madé"simihr'_ap_pli_‘éatilcms for gen_lgratioﬁ. :'c'(;st-rccovéry
Luic:ier: the GRAM rules _‘\-x;hich c'i'i.d'got. mé.hdate_ :"[f'le ]ﬁl.xblication,’? sa’id'Mf. Cuna “In 'faé:t,-"
‘ ETi.C_-.‘Cﬁ;aifman- Alb"an‘d alréady péin_téd c.)ut tha;c the ruling will c:eate._ an impact on tbe |

energy industry,” Meralco’s Corporate Communication’s Chief continued. .

The GRAM guidelines underwent public consultation prior to its promulgativpn. Mr.
llagan participated in these consultations but did not raise then the pubiiéalio_n

, requirement. .

Meraleo officials will meet with ERC very soon to discuss the various implications of

the SC Deacision: -

EE XL T
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORH 17-C

CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

10.

AND SRC RULE 17.2(c] THEREUNDER

Date of Report: March 13, 2006
SEC Identification Number: PW-102
BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company

Country of Incorporation: Philippines

. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
issuer's telephone numbers: 16220 Jocal 3186 Area Code: 0300

Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SEC or
Sactions 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title’of Each Clas Common Sfock Outstanding
Class “A" 604,250,762
Class “B" 402,863,481
Tota! 1.007.114,243

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Billion {as of November 30, 2005)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached copy of press refease entitled MERALCO GENERATION CHARGE
DOWN BY £.23 CENTAVOS.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant ‘to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned -hereunto duly authorized. -

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

e (ssistant
Cofporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officar

Date: March 13, 2006

cc: Disclesure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock-Exchange (PSE)
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March 13, 2006

MERALCO GENERATION CHARGE DOWN BY 8.23 CENTA‘V’OS
Due to higher IPP dispatch

Meralco customers have been enjoying an 8.23-centavo per kWh drop in the
generation charge component of their March 2006 bills. The utility conipany said this
was & result of higher levels of dispatch of the IPPs in February. Merilco bought more
than 32% of its power supply from NPC and around 48% from IPPs. in February.
Following the automatic adjustment mechanism approved by ERC, the generation charee
i customers’ bills move on a monthly basis depending on the cost of generation supplied
by NPT and the IPPs the previous month.

The foliowing represents comparative data between the purchased power costs
between NPC and Meraleo IPPs. It can be noted, too, that as a result of the [PPs' hi gher
cispatch, even their associated transmission charges, on a per kWh basis also improved.

Purchased Power-Cost/k'Wh Jan. 2006 Feb. 2006
NPC (used for March bills)
Generation Cost P4.7984 P4.8687
Transmission Cost 1.1083 1.0776
Tolal ‘ 5.9067 5.94463
PPy
Generation Cost P4.9078 P4.6586
Transmissian Cost 0.6602 ¢:6042
Total 5.5680 32628
Totwl
Generation Cost P4.8494 P4,7679
Transmission Cost 0.8996 0.8505
Total - 5.7490 5.6184

For the February 2006 supply month, generation cost for NPC supplied: power is higher
than that of the IPPs' by 21centavos per kWh. The transmission -cost of the IPP's is also lower
compared 1o that of NPC by 47.3 centavos per kWh, Adding it together, Meralco' IPP purchased

Tew. No. (632) 631-2222 « (632) 16220




Stinar’

power cost is cheaper by 68.4 centavos per kWh compared to that supplied by NPC. As aresult,
l0o. of lower purchased power costs, even the March system loss charge went down slightly.

Meralco attributed the reduction in generation charge to the improved dispatch of the
{PPs which translates to lower cost of generation per KkWh. Records show that the supply of all
three major Meralco TPPs increased translating to rate reductions ranging from 17-36 centavos
per kWh. Dispatch levels reached 73% for Quezon Power and 74% for First Gas:plants. Had the

IPPs run at contract levels and beyond, further savings could have been enjoved by the
cusiomers,

"We have said all along that once our IPPs are dispatched at contracted levels the cost of

generation will definitely go down and this will eventually result to lower electricity bills" said
Meralco VP for Corporate Communication Elpt Cuna, Jr.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-6
CURREHT REPORT UNDER SEGTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION GORE
AND SRE RULE 17.2(c] THEREURDER

1. Date of Report: March 27, 2006

2. SEC identification Number: PW.102

3. BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

4. Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Elactric Company
5. Country of Incorporation: Philippines

6. Endustry Classifir.;ation: {SEC use only)

7. Address of principal dfﬁce: topez Buﬂding, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

8. Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 focal 3186 Area Code: 0300

0

Former name or former address: Not Applicable

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares. of

Title of Each Class -+ Common Stock Qutstanding
Class “A*" : 604,250,762
Class “B” ' 402 863,481
Total 1.007.114,243

Amecunt of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Biftion (as of November 30, 2005}

o
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

At the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Manila Electric
Company (MERALCO) held-today, March-27, 20086, Atfy. Arthur R. Defensor,. Jr. was
-elected independent director of the Company vice Margarito B. Teves who earlier
resigned due to his appointment as Secretary of Finance.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Coda, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigrned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

GIL(S. 8AN DIEG
Vice President, Assistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Bate: March 27, 2006

- cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Fhilippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEG FORM 11-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SEGURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRG RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

1. Date of Report: Marcb 27, éoos

2. SEC Identification Number: PW-102.

3 BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

4. Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
5. Country of Incorporation: Philippines

6. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

7. Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
8. Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

9. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class Commonp Stock Qutstanding
Class “A” 604,250,762
Class "B” 402,863,481
Total 1.007,114.:243

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Billion {as of November 30, 2005)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

The Board of Directors approved in its meeﬁng foday the Company’s 2005 Audited Financial
Statements (a printed and signed copy ta follow).

SIGRATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitiés Regulation Code, the
tssuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf hy the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuer

e
AFAEL L. ANDRADA
First Vice President, Treasurer &

OIC, Information Disclosure Officer

Date: March 27, 2006

ce: Disciosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group

Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 0 "W 28 Jo:4
SEC FORM 17-C
CURBENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SEGURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

Date of Report: March 28, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
Country of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classificationé (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 focal 3186 Area Code: 0300
Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class Common Stock Outstanding
Class “A” 604,250,762
Class “B” 402,863 481
Total g,ggg,ggg! 243

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Biliion (as of November 30, 2005)




o US SEC
» " File No.82-3237

2

P

11. Item Number reported: Item-9 (Other Events)
Please see attached:

1) Letter to Director Justina F. Callangan on ‘the Company’s 2005
Financial & Operating Results for the year ended December 31, 2005

2) Invitation to a presentation on-the Year End 2005 Operating Results:
and Invitation to a Teleconference on the Year End 2005 Operating
Results, to be held on March 30, 2006, at 2:00 p.m., at the: Basemen
Mini Theater, Lopez Building, Meralco Center, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig

- City. -

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Cocie, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
~ Issuer

.

SAN DIEG

Vi ident; Assistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: March 28, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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Manila Electric Company (MERALCO) has scheduled its 2005 Year End results on
March 30, 2006 at 2:00 PM. This will be held at the:

BASEMENT Mini Theater
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
l Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Meralco has also arranged for a simultaneous Conference Call facility. Details for the
Conference Call are as follows:

Conference Call Number +852 2112 1333
Passcode: MERALCO

Those who wish to attend are requested to fill up the appropriate form (please see
attached forms) and send through fax at:

Meralco Fax: + 632 631 5391
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AAERALCO
" YOU ARE INVITED
TO A TELECONFERENCE PRESENTATION
ON THE YEAR END 2005 OPERATING RESULTS

Thursday, March 30, 2006
2:00 PM (Manila Time)

* Conference Call Number*
+852 2112-1333
Passcode: MERALCO
* Please call at least five (5) minutes before the scheduled tine.

Instant Replay Number**
+852 2112-1000
Passcode;. MERALCO
** Available until March 31, 2005

Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to +632
631-5591 on or before March 29, 2005. If you have questions, please call Roger Rosario
orElaine Shih of MERALCO at the following numbers:

+632 1622-2450
+632 1622-2341
+632 632-8323

NAME

JOB FUNCTION

COMPANY

ADDRESS
CITY, COUNTRY

TELEPHONE

FAX

E-MAIL
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ON THE YEAR-END 2005 OPERATING RESULTS

Thursday, March 30, 2006
©2:00 PM

at the
BASEMENT Mini Theater
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to:

+632 631- 5591

on or before March 29, 2006. If you have questions, please call Roger Rosaric or Elaine
Shib of MERALCO at the following numbers:

+632 1622-2450

+632 1622-2341

+632 632-8323

NAME

JOB FUNCTION.

COMPANY

ADDRESS

CITY, COUNTRY

TELEPHONE

FAX

E-MAITL
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPARY

(Company’s Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILDING, GRTIGAS AUENVE
PASIG CITY

(Company’s Address)

16220

(Company’s Telephone Number)
!

DECEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

LAST TUESDAY OF MAY

(Annual Meeting)

LETTER TO MS. JUSTINA F. CALLANGAN

{Corporation Finance Department)
(Form Type)

PIN-102

(S. E. C. Registration No.)
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MS. JUSTINA F. CALLANGAN

Director, Corporation Finance Department
SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC Bldg., EDSA, Greenhills
Mandaluyong City

Dear Ms. Callangan,

We are submitting to your office the attached report of Manila Electric Company for the
year ended December 31, 2005.

We are fumishing you an advanced copy of the Company’s year-end results as we intend
to release these information to the investors, analysts and the general public. These
reports are not substitute reports for SEC Form 17-A. We shall be filing separately the

compleie annual reports (SEC Form 17-A) 105 days after end of the fiscal year, i.e. on
or before April 15, 2006.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

7S

FAEL L. ANDRADA.
First Vice President & Treasurer

D})&ANIE{?D JTacaza
E

ecubide V ice-President & Chief Financial Officer

ce: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange

Ta. No. (632) 631-2222 * (632) 16220
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

L NET INCOME (LOSS)

For the year ended December 31, 2005, the results of the Company’s operations were
significantly affected by two major factors:

* The consistent provisioning for probable losses in the event of a final and
executory adverse decision of the unbundling rate case pending in ‘the
Supreme Court, which amounted to P5.90 billion, and

» The effect of the transition from the Company’s previous accounting
policies referred to as the “previous Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAPY” to the “Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS) / Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)” on the reported financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company.

Pricr to the transition to PFRS/PAS, the Company realized a net income of P599 million,

and {urther excluding the provision for probable losses, net income would have been P4.43
billion.

Given the impact of the provision for probable losses and the effect of the changes in
accounting policies, the Parent Company concluded the year 2005 with a net loss of P411
million, 79.7% lower than the restated net loss of P 2.03 billion in 2004.

On consolidated basis, the net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent ir 2005 was
P330 ~million, 81.4% lower than the net loss ©of P1.88 billion in 2004.

II. REVENUES

Revenues increased by 14.9% from P151.61 billion m 2004 to P174.27 billioa in 2005
mainly attributed to the following significant changes:

®  The 0.6% sales growth coupled with the increase in purchased power-costs
have increased the Parent Company’s revenue from sale of electricity by

159% from P147.35 billion to P170.85 billion in 2004 and 2005,
respectively.

II.  EXPENSES (IN COME)

Total expenses (income) increased by 13.7% from P154.70 billion in 2004 to P175.96
billion this year.

Purchased power cost in 2005 soared by as much as 19.5% to 148.87 billion from P124.60
biltion in 2004. This was primaril

power per KWH.

v due to 19.8% increase in the average cost of purchased
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Operation and maintenance expenses increased by 12.5% to P13.41 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2005, compared with P9.26 billion in the same period in 2004 due
primarily to net provisions for various tax assessment and legal claims, increase in
contractors® services and increase in pension cost and other long-term employee benefits.

Interest and other financial expenses increased by 9.0% from P4.13 billion in 2004 to P 4.50
billion in 2005. ‘

*  The increase occurred in amortization of debt issue costs by as much as P280

million and in interest expense on-loan and other payables by as much as
P122 million.

Interest and other financial income increased by 247.6%, P656 million in 2004 to P 2.28
billion in 2005. Major factors for the year-on-year improvements were:

= Interest income increase by P784 million and a tax refund of P894 miilion
was recognized. The tax refund pertains to the claim with the BIR for the
taxable year 2001 as a result of the Supreme Court decision on the
P0.167/K WH refund to customers. This amount granted by the BIR shall be
refunded to the Company through the issuance of Tax Credit Certificate
proportionate to its actual refund to customers.

" As a resulf of the settlement agreement between First Gas and the Gas
Sellers, the “Liability arising from deferred pass-through fuel costs” as of
December 31, 2005 has been reduced to P7.86 billion of which P3.74 million
has been classified as a current liability in accordance with the paviment

terms. Consequently, the interest cost recognized by the Company was also
reduced.

However, depreciation and amortization decreased by 1.2% from P4.77 billion for the year-
2004, to P4.72 billion in 2005.

Also, in compliance with the PAS 39, the present value impact on customers’ Phase 1V
refund to be paid starting 2005 to 2010 was established. For 2005, the present value impact
on customers’ refund was P1.73 billion. This refund should be recognized.at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortized cost at effective interest rate. The Company obtained the
present vatue of the refund liability as of April 2003 (finality of Supreme Court’s refund

decision) and amortized the resulting discount as interest expense over the life of the
liability. '

Furthermore, the provision for probable losses on disallowed receivables amounted to P 231

million. This formed part of the P 843 million in QPPL transmission line fees-disallowed by
ERC on September 20, 2004.

On the other hand, taxes other than income tax decreased by 63.0% from P622 million for
the twelve months ended December 3 I, 2004, to P230 million for the period -ended.
December 31, 2005. In accordance with the EVAT Law (RA No. 9337), made effective on

November 1, 2005, the Company started collecting 10% VAT on electricity consumiptin in
lieu of the national franchise tax of 2%,
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As a result of the foregoing, loss before income tax was incurred at the amount of P 1.60
billion in 2005,

IV, LOSS PER SHARE

Loss per common share improved by 81.4% from P1.87 last year to P0.347 this year as an
offshoot of the Company’s effort to minimize consolidated losses sustained in 2004 of
P 1.76 billion to P207 million in 2003,

V. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures were kept within the cap of P 5.75 billion at P 5.28 billion in 2005
from P 5.42 billion in 2004. The leve} of capital expenditures in 2005 was affected by
fower-thap-expected growth in new service applications and delay in government’s road
widening projects. The level of spending was at the ratio of 88% is to 12% for electric
capital projects and non-electric projects, respectively.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS |

L GYWH SALES and BILLING KW DEMAND

The company’s energy sales met major challenges in 2005 brought mainly by successive
generation rate increases and the implementation of the EVAT. Despite these factors,
however, the Company managed to register a modest 0.6% growth sustained by strong
commercial sales and a significant increase in One.Day Power Sales (ODPS) availment by
major industrial customers. This is a program launched by Meralco in cooperation with
NPC in 2000, aimed at making industries more viable and productive by offering lower
electricity rates on NPC’s unutilized capacity to self-generating industrial customers. For
the month of December 2005, a total of 29 customers availed of the ODPS Program.

The Commercial segment continued to lead the growth in energy sales, increasing by 3.6%.
This growth was propelled by Retail Trade which grew by a robust 16.8% with ihe opening
of five new SM malls (Mall of Asia, SM Valenzuela, SM Molino, SM San Lazaro -and SM
Sucat), and the expansion/renovation of existing malls (Robinsons Galleria, Robinsons
Manila and Greenhills V-Mall). The 10.4% growth in Transport, Storage and
- Communications due to expanded operations of the LRT and MRT also boosted sales. Real
-Estate sector grew by 5.1% as the call center and business:process outsourcing continued to

fiourish. Hotel and Restaurant energy sales also increased by 5.3% due to the iriflow of
Asian visitors during the Southeast Asian Games.

Industrial sales remained flat growing by a modest 0.2% as rising rates and fuel prices
burdened the industrial segment. Manufacturing which comprised the majority of industrial
sales grew by 0.5%. Transport Manufacturing grew by 11.8% and Electrical Machinery by
9.8%. -However, the Textiles, Chemical Products and Food Manufacturing Sectors shrunk
by 12.6%, 4.2% and 2.3%, respectively. Faced with successive fuel hikes last year,
industries increased their availment of the ODPS Program to mitigate rising operational
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costs.  As a result, ODPS availment led by Cement Manufacturing, Electrical Machinery,
and Beverage Products sectors increased by 18% over 2004, effectively offsetting what

could have been a 1.1% decline in consumption,

Residential sales, on the other hand, contracted by 2.2% as NPC rate hikes . fuel price.spikes,
the reduction of interclass cross subsidy, and the EVAT strained householi budgets. As a
result, residential per capita consumption declined by 5% from 2004. Lifsline rates,
however, continued to provide reljef to customers consuming below 100 KWH.

Overall Billing KW Demand rose by 1.8% t0 29,918 KW in 2005. This increase was mainly

due to the 3.9% rise in commercial demand offsetting the 1.4% decline in demand from the
industrial segment.

AVERAGE RETAIL RATE

The average retail rate as of the month of December 2005 rose to P7.62/KWH from
P7.097KWH in the same-period in 2004. On a per customer class, the average retail rates for
the month of December 2005 compared to December 2004 were:

December 2005 | December 2004
Average Rate | Average Rate
Customer Class V(PIP?WH) t (PII?WH)
Residential 8.30 741
Commercial 7.76 7.27 o
GS, Small and Medium 8.33 7.71
Large . 7.48 7.09
Very Large 7.01 6.66
Industrial 6.65 6.44
Small and Medium . 7.95 7.28
Large 6.93 6.57
Very Large 645 8,42
Extra Large 6.08 6.03
TOTAL 7.62 7.09

Generation charges increased 5% from P4.5313/KWH in December 2004 to P4.7364/KWH
in the same period in 2005 mainly due to the additional increase granted to NPC in ER('s
finat approval of the NPC raté application and the increases in NPC’s GRAM and ICERA
fot the year. The increase would have been more if noi for the maximized NPC 6ff-peak
energy sourcing and higher dispateh of Meralco TPPs,

lrzgﬁ‘___t_wo_‘speciﬁg,_ius_tances, Nl_?O-increased-dts--r-ates by P 1. 59/KWH in ‘Novembér 2004
followed by another P 0.47/KWH in May 2005. However,_ with the higher dispatch of
Meralco IPPs; Meralco customers were shielded froi 1le ful] impact 6f the NPC jnereases
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and, on the average, only paid an additional P 1.08/KWH in November 2004 and p
0.36/KWH in May 2005. '

The increase in customer billings due to the generation charge increasgs was tempered by
the third and last tranche of TransCo’s removal of the Intra-Regional Grid Cross ‘Subsidy
reducing Meralco’s Transmission Charge rate by an average of around P0.06/KWH starting
the month of November 2005.

Furthermore, close to an additional 10% in electricity charges were billed to customers on

their energy consumption starting November 1, 2005 due to the implementation of the
EVAT Law.

It is worth noting that overalt Energy cost increases last year were .driven by rising
generation costs and the implementation of the EVAT while the distribution charge of
Meralco has remained unchanged since our rate unbundling in June 2003,

. SYSTEM LOSS

A breakthrough was achieved in the area of system loss in 2005 with its reduction of 0.89
percentage points to 10.21%, the lowest leve| attained by the Company since 2001

As a result, this improvement substantially diminished our uurecoverable purchased power
cost (system loss above the 9.5% cap) by almost P1.00 billion last year despite the rise in the
cost of purchased power per KWH and without additiona budgets.

This milestone can be attributed to the implementation of the preventive and holistic System
Loss Management Program starting May 2005 focused on strengthening the meter and

billing process, effective pilférage-deterrence measures (i.e., the elevation. of meiers and the

maintenance teams in pilferage detection efforts, the number of services inspected increased

significantly. Consequently, the number of services in which irregularities were detected
went up by 12.5% compared to 2004,

Related to this, in August 2005, MERALCO and the Department of Interior and Loca]
Government (DILG) signed a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) aiied at strengthening
the campaign against electricity pilférags. The MOA was signéd by Mr. Manuel M. Lopez
and DILG Secretary Angelo Reyes. With the MOA, greater cooperation of loca]
government officials to bring down system loss in their respective areas was realized.

Iv. SYSTEM RELIABILITY

,[1},.,...2,_9‘@.5.,.‘S}fstﬁlll\.-wlfﬁliabiIity,-...-in..ter-ms of Interruption Frequency Rate (IFR) and system
availability, in terms of Cumulative Interruption Time (CIT), continued to break recorgd
levels. TFR was reduced by 14.69% to 11.38 and CIT was shortened by 18.87% to 9.46
hours - a single-digit leve! for the first time,
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The continued inprovements in Meralco’s electric service were part of ‘the benefits still
being reaped from the completion of well-planned sub-transmission, substation, and
distribution projects in the previous years and continuous implementation of a focused
preventive and proactive electric system maintenance program.

This was supported by concerted efforts by different offices to reduce the occurrence of pre-
arranged interruptions and undetermined trippings and strict compliance to standards and
procedures during line construction and maintenance works.

Condition-based maintenance for line equipment and facilities focusing on the identification
and minimization of potential causes of power iterruptions through thermographic
inspection was also emphasized last year,

Moreover, maintenance activities last year included detailed audit and frequent inspection of
circuits with reliability performance problems and execution of sectionalizing schemes to
isolate line troubles and minimize the extent of the areas without power.

REGULATORY UPDATES

Developments in the regulatory front are:

* Following the promulgation by the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) of the
Distribution Wheeling Rate Guidelines {DWRG) in December 2004, the Company
in January 2005 signified its intention to Join the first group of distribution utilities
that will undergo performance-based ratemaking (PBR). The on-going reset process
will culminate in a rate filing under DWRG on Auvgust 31, 2006. Meralco will have
performance-based rates starting July 2007.

* Hearihgs are on-going on the P0.1476/KWH rate application Meralco filed on May
31, 2005, its last filing under the Return on Rate Base (RORB) formula.

» The Company on March 11, 2005 filed with the Supreme Court (SC) a Petition for
Review of the July 22, 2004 Decision of the Court of Appeals (CA) annulling and

setting aside ERC’s rilings on Meralco’s unbundling. The case is still pending at
the High Court.

¢ The SC in August 2005 upheld its earlier ruling which annulled and set aside ERC’s
grant of a provisional P0.12/KWH increase (o Meralco in November 2003,

° In a Decision dated February 2, 2006 the SC nullified ERC’s Order approving

Meralco’s second Generation Rate Adjustment Mechanism (GRAM) application
and ruled as void the GRAM Rules promulgated by ERC in February 2003
According to the SC, the GRAM application should have been published -and
subjected to public hearings. The GRAM Rules did not require the publication.of,
and the conduct of hearings on, the GRAM filings. Both Meralco and ERC filed
respective Motions for Reconsideration on the Decision.
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o Starting November 2005, letters were sent out Lo customners covered by Phase IV of
the refund, informing them of the amount, the options, and the requirements to be
complied with for the release of the refund. This followed the Company’s receipt of
ERC?s July 13 Order approving the amended Phase IV proposal and BIR’s RMO
No. 22-2005 prescribing the guidelines for the imposition of the creditable income
tax on the refund of Phasé TV customers. In a Decision dated December 22, 2005,
the CA denied a petition seeking to annul ERC’s Order approving Phase TV of the
refund.

« In preparation for retail competition and open access, ERC promulgated the
Distribution Service and Open Access Rules (DSOAR) and the Retail Electricity
Supplier Licensing Guidelines. Other rules are currently being drafted and
undergoing public consultations.  Commercial operation of the Wholesale
Electricity Spot Market (WESM) is expected mid-2006. Removal of intra-grid
cross-subsidies in transmission charges was completed in October 2005, Full
removal of inter-class cross-subsidies in the Meralco franchise has been extended o

" November 2006.

For further questions:
Meralco Investor Relations
Tel. Nos. (632) 16222450, (632) 6328323




US SEC
» Tl g, 4923237

r?"“.‘

25

Manila Electric Company

Residential 8,550.72 8,741.60 (2.2)
Commercial 9,094.54 8,776.50 3.6
Industrial 7,019.18 7.003.69 0.2
Streetlights

141.76 138.52 2.3
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For the years ended December 31 2005 and 2004
{Amounts in Million Pesos)
_As reslaled__ S
BT B S N RO05 T 200 L S Chanigein,
REVENUES
Sale of electricity 170,846 147,347 15.9
Sale of real estate 1,806 2,533 (24.8)
Seale of services 922 1,295 (28.8)
Others 594 439 35.3
174,268 151,614 14.9
EXPENSES {INCOME)
Purchased power 148,865 124,601 19.5
Operations and maintenance 10,414 9,255 12.5
Provision for probable losses 5,901 9,824 {32.9)
Depreciaticn and amortization 4,715 - 4,773 (1.2)
Interest and other financial expenses 4,504 4,134 80
ICERA il revenues (2,934) (1,330) 120.6
Fareign exchanges losses - net 2,859 1,352 111.5
Interest and other financial income (2,280) (656) 2478
Present value impact
on customers' refund 1,726 _ - 100.C
Real estate sold 1,038 1,687 (38.5)
Cost of contracts and services 832 : 871 (4.5)
Provision for (recovery of) probable
losses on disallowed receivables 231 (2158) 207 .4
Equity in net earnings of associates and
joint ventures (142) (222) (36.0)
Taxes other than income lax 230 622 (63.0)
175,959 154,696 13.7
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (1,691) (3,082) (45.1)
Income-tax benefit 1,484 1,318 12.6
NETLOSS
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As of December 31, 2005 and 2004
{Amounts in Million Pesos)

T ASSETS

Noncurrent Assets

Utility Plant and others 93,237 93,200 0.0
Investments in associates and joint ventures 1,730 1,846 (6.3)
investment properties - net 4739 4,683 1.2
Deferred pass-through fuel costs 7.857 13,031 (39.7)
Other noneurrent assets 8,951 13,706 (34.7)
Total Noncurrent Assets 116,514 126,466 (7.9)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,081 4918 186.3
Trade and.other receivables 30,883 28,299 9.1
Inventaries - at net realizable value 1,230 1,074 14.5
Land and development costs 347 645 (486.2)
Other current assels 1,312 1,960 {33.1)
Total Current Assets 47,853 36,896 29.7

Stockhoiders® Equity

Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and other

-borrowings - net of current portion 16,239 1,395 1,279.1
Customers’ déposits 18,173 15,400 10.8
Provisions 16,997 10,313 64.8
Customers' refund 10,908 15,142 (28.0)
Deferred income tax liabilities 4,388 8,573, (33.2)
Liability arising from deferred

pass-through fuel costs 4,121 13,031 (68.4)
Estimated Lability for project development-

nat of current portion 1.515 - 100.0
Deferred gross profit 798 179 345.8
Cther noncurrent liabilities 733 1,333 {45.0)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 76,872 64,366 19.4

Current Liabilities

Notes payable 384 442 {13.1)
Trade and other payables 39,549 32,684 21.0
Customers' refund 4,615 5,409 (14.7)
Interest-bearing koans and other

borrowings - current portion 3,030 4,007 (24.4)
interest-bearing loans and other

borrowings -classified as current - 14,822 (100.0)
’Estimated liability for project

development - current portion 1,218 692 75.0
Income {ax payable . 238 30 693.3

Total Current Liakilities 49,034 63,086 {22.3)

OCKHOLDERS

EQUITY:

163,362 50 08
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e CONSOLIDATED CASH EEOW STATEMENT.
For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
(Amourits in Million Pesos)
As reslated
CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING (Jan. 1) 4,918 5,320 (7.6)
CASH FLOWS-FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating and other income 7,091 3,953 794
Depreciation-and amortization ' 4,715 4773 (1.2)
increase (decrease) in other assets
and liabiities 11,239 5,537 103.0
Net Cash from Operations 23,045 14,263 51.6
Add : Equity issues - 1,041 (100.0)
Short-term borrowings - -
. ong-term borrowings 81 5,864 (98.6)
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 21,126 21,168 9.2
‘l.ess : Short-term debt service 58 5412  (98.9)
t.ong-term debt service 3,660 5,503 (32.4)
Other interest expense 3,758 2,636 42.5
Total Debt Service 7,475 13,551  (44.8)
Unrecoverable purchased power . 1,054 1,988 {47.3)
Capital expenditures 5,278 5,421 (2.8)
Preferred equity redemptions - B5 (130.0)
Cancellation of common stock 4 - 100.0
Refund to customers 152 515 (70.4)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 15,963 21,570 (35.3)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 9,163 (402) 2,380.4
CASH BALA 18871
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& %

ﬁﬁ,ﬁ » “‘,'
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 Jocal 3186 Area Code: 0300 ?’? -
= 2
. m - :
Former name or former address: Nof Applicable w é 7
- g '
. ® & .
Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and EIZ ofFhe-SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA: ' 5 i =
Number of Shares of w
Title of Each Class Common Stock Outstanding
Class "A” 604,250,762
Class “B” 402,863,481
Total 1.007,114,243

Amount of Debt Qutstanding: P123.02 Billion (as of November 30, 2005)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

We are submitting herewith a copy of the Company’s 2005 Audited
Financial Statement in relation to our disclosure of March 27, 2006, which states
“THE -BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVED IN TS MEETING TODAY THE

COMPANY'S AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (A PRINTED AND SIGNED COPY
TO FOLLOW)”.

SIGKATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities ‘Requlation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized. '

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuer

Vic \qu_igg;m:,,Aésistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: March 31, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

(Company’s Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILDING, ORTIGAS RYENUE
PASIG CITY

(Company’s Address)

16220

(Company’s Telephone Number)

DECEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

LAST TUESDAY OF MAY

(Annual Meeting)

SEC FORM 17-C

(Form Type)

PW-102

(5. E. C. Registration No.)

»)
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SECURITIES AND EKCHANGE COMMISSION
SEG FORM 11-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRG RULE 17.2[c) THEREUNDER

10.

bate of Report: March 31, 2006
SEC Identification Number; PW-102
BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company

Country of Incorporation: Philippines

.. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 jocal 3186 Area Code: 0300

Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class Common Stock Qutstanding
Class “A” 604,250,762
Class “B” 402,863,481
Total llgngliegﬂ

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Billion (as of November 30, 2005)




11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Further to our disclosure dated March.31, 2006, we are submitting herewith
a copy of the Company’s 2005 Audited Financial Statement (Parent Company).

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

GIL 5. SAN DIEGO
President; Assistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: March 31, 2006

ce: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Phitippine Stock Exchange (PSE)




MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

(Company’s Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILDING, ORTIGAS RVENUE
PRSIG CITY

(Company’s Address)

16220

(Company’s Telephone Number)

DEGEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

-~ LAST TUESDAY GF MAY

- (Annua] Meeting).

SEC FORM 17-C

(Form Type)

PW-102

{S. E. C. Registration No.)

Us SEC
File No.82-3237"




wt

S Sr'(i

vl coty ,j"' 3
— - d/ 237
@ CEH 14 th ..IV'NG
e Js"
- Rf.'f’\ L
R ,4:..._

SECURITIES AND EXCHRNGE COMMISSION, . 5 Aaoj1s

SEC FORM 17-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

10.

Date of Report: April 24, 2006

SEC Icentification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
Country of Incorporation: Fhilippines

Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Bui!dfng,l Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class Common Stock Qutstanding
Class “A" 604,148,700
Class "B” 402,795,440
Totaf 1,006,944,140

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P123.02 Billion (as of November 30, 2005)
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11. Item Number reported: /fem 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached Invitation to the Presentation and a Teleconference Presentation on the
15 Quarter 2006 Operating Resulfs to be held on Thursday, April 27, 2006, at 3:00 p:m.. at the
Basement Mini Theater, Lopez Buﬂdmg, Meralco Center, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be 5|gnecl on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMP

GIL S/SAN DIEGO
Vice President, Assistant Corporate

Segtetary, and Information Disciosure
Date: April 24, 2006 Officer

. ¢c: Disciosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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AERALCO
YOU ARE INVITEP
TO A PRESENTATION
- ON THE 1% Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Thursday, April 27, 2006
3:00 PM

at the
BASEMENT Mini Theater
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following daia to:

+632 631- 5591

on or before April 26, 2006. If you have questions, please call Roger Rosario or Elaie
Shikr of MERALCO at the following numbers:

+632 1622-2450
+632 1622-234)
+632 632-8323

NAME

JOB FUNCTION
COMPANY
ADDRESS

CITY, COUNTRY
TELEPHONE
FAX

E-MATL




67,

MERALCC
YOU ARE INVITED

TO A TELECONFERENCE PRESENTATION
ON THE 1* Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Thursday, April 27, 2006
3:00 PM (Manila Time)

Conference Call Number*
+832 2112-1333
Passcode: MERALCO
* Please call at least five (3) minutes before the scheduled time.

Instant Replay Number**
+852 2112-1000
Passcode:. MERALCO
** Available until Apnl 28, 2005

Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to +632
631-5591 on or before April 27, 2005, If you have questions, please call Roger Rosario
or Elaine Shth of MERALCO at the following numbers:

+632 1622-2450
+632 1622-2341
+632 632-8323

NAME

JOB FUNCTION
COMPANY
ADDRESS

CITY, COUNTRY
TELEPHONE
FAX

i E-MATL




OLISY . Page 1 of i

The document with'reference number WLIST__2006000012804 has been uploaded.
Please Take note of this number for future reference.
You will receive an email with reference to this upload transaction.

Company Name : Manila Electric Company
Stock Symbol . MER
MERB
Title/Repart Name : Notice of Analysts'/Investors’ Briefing
Fiiename Invitation-1st quar.pdf
Filesize : ' ' 41189 bytes
No. of Pages : 5

[ ok |

https://odisy pse.ph/j 2ee/odisy/saveupload.jsp

450004
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SEC FORM 17-0
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-SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CORMNMISSION s -m{ﬂ«ﬂ 0148

SEC FORM 17-C

CURRENT REPORT UNDER SEMEW 1
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

10.

Date of Report: May 30, 2006
SEC Identification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

| Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric.Company

Country of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 focal 3186 Area Code: 0300

Former name or former address: Not Applicablé

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or

Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Class “A” 604,088,825
Class “B” 402,755,524
Total 1,006,844,349

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P119.23 Billion-(as -of March 31, 2006)




11. Item Number reported: Item 3 and 4

Item 3. Appointment of Independent A uditors

At the annual meeting of stockholders held today, the stockholders appointed Sycip, Gorres,
Velayo & Co. (SGV) as the Company’s independent auditors.

ftem 4. Election of the Registrant's Direcfors

At the said annual meeting, the follawing persons were efected directors to serve for the
ensuing year and until the election and qualification of their successors:

M. Felipe B. Alfonso
Mr.Arthur R, Defensor, Jr. (independent director)
Mr. Gregory L. Domingo (independent director}

Mr. Octavio Victor R. Espiritu (independent director)
Mr. Jesus P. Francisco

Mr. Manuel L. Lopez

Mr. Christian 'S. Monsod

Mr. Washington Z Sycip (independent director)
Mr. Emilio-A. Vicens

Mr. Cesar E. A. Virata {independent director)
Mr. Francisco L. Viray {independent director)

SN N

-me

SIGKATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

MANIEA ELECTRIC COMPANY

Iéfiuer

LS. SAN DIE

\éi e President; Assistant
Orporate Secretary and

Information Disclosure Officer

Date: May 30, 2006

ol -Phiﬁp_pine Stock Exchange (PSE ) - ODiSy
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WANILA ELECTRIC. COMPANY

(Company’s FullkName)

LOPEZ BUILDING; ORTIGAS AENUE
~ PASIGEINTY

. (Company’s Ad‘dre;is) :

16220

(Company’s Telephone Number)

DEGEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending).

LAST TUESDAY OF MAY

(Annual Meeting) _

SEC FORM 17-¢

(Form Type)

PW-102

(S. E. C. Registration No.)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SEGYI0N 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION COnE
KD SRO RULE 17.2(c) THEREGNDER

1. Date of Report: June 26, 2008

2. SEC Identification Number: PW.102

3. BIR Tax Identification Code: 360-000-101-528

4. " Mame of Issuer as specified inits Charter: Manifa Efectric Company
3. Country of Incorporation: Phitippines

6. Industry Classification: (SEC uge only)

7. Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
8. Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 Jocal 3186 Area Code: 0300

9. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of
Title of Each Clags ' '
Class “A" 604,009,095
Class "B 402702371
Total ) i1

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P124.51 Bilfion fas of April 30, 2005)
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11. Ttem Number reported: Item9 (Other Events)

At ‘the ‘regular meeting of ‘the. Board of Directors of Manila Electric:

Company (MERALCO) held toda . Jitne 26, 2006, Mr. Fedarico E. Puno was.elected

ihdependen’tdirectorbf the Company vice -Francisco L. Viray whose resignation
was accepted by the Board éffective today. ‘

SIGNRTURE

SR Tkl e e emaccal g g

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, thHe
issuer ‘has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf 'by the

undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

e
MANILA ELECTRIC-C_OMPANY
/; Issue /

( -
GIL _.CéAN_DIEGC{
Vice President, Assistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: June 26, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
' Liséings'and'Disc'Iosure-Group
Philigpine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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(Company’s-Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILDING, ORTIGAS AWENUE
PASIG CITY

(Company’s Address)

16226

(Company’s Telephone Number)

BECEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

LAST TUESDAY.OF MAY

(Annual Meeting)

SEC FORM 17-C

(Form Type)

PH-102

(S. E. C. Registration No.)
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10.

Date of Report: June 26, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company

Country of Incorporation: Philippines

» Industry Classification: {(SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer's telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRT or

Secticns 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Mﬁ.ﬁbﬂaﬁ Common. Steck Qutstanding
" Class “A" 604,009,095
Class "B" - 402,702,371
Total 1,006,711,466

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P124.51 Billion (as of April 30, 2005)




11, Item Number reported: Item 4 (Election of Registrant’s Directors or
Officers)

At -the organizational meeting of the Board of Directors held today, June 26, 2006, the

following. were elected officers of -the Company, each to the position indicated opposite his/her
respective name: '

Mr. Manuel'M. Lepez . Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hr. Feline B. Alfonso - Vice-Chairman

Mr. Jesus P. Francisco - President and Chief Operating Officer

Justice Camilo D. Quiason - Corporate Secretary

Justice jose C. Vitug - General Counsel _

Mr. Daniel D. Tagaza - Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mr..Ricardo V. Buencamino - Senior Vice President

Mr, Roberto R. Almazora - First Vice President

Mr. Rafael L. Andrada - First.Vice President, Treasurer, and 0IC
Information Disclosure Officer

Ms. Leonisa C. dela Llana - First Vice President

Mr. Jaime R. Camacho - Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Mr. Elpi Q. Cuna - Vice President

Ms. Helen T. de Guzman - Vice President, Corporate Auditor and

Compliance Officer o

Ms. lvanna G. dela Pena . Vice. President

Mr. Fortunato C. Leynes - Vice President

Ms.-Rosario Q. Paragas - Vice President

Atty. Git-5. San Diego - Vice President, Asst. Corporate Secrefary, and

Information Disclosure Officer

Mr. Lucito L. Santos - Vice President

Mr..Ruben A. Sapitula - - Vice President

Mr. Antonio R. Valera - Vice President and Assistant Comptroller

Ms. Bernadette B. Vasquez . Vice President

Mr. Manalo C. Fernando - Sr. Assistant Vice President and Assistant
) Treasurer

Atty. Alfonse Y, Lacap . Assistant Vice President and Assistant
Corporate Secretary

Atty. Anthony V. Rosete - Assistant Vice President and Assistant

. Corporate Secretary

Also at the same meeting,

7 the following persons were likewise designated members of ‘the
following Board Committees:

Executive Committee

Mr. Manuel M. Lopez - Chairman
Mr. Felipe.B. Alfonos - . Member
Mr. Jesus P, Francisco - Member
Mr. Washington Z. Sycip - Member

M. Cesar E:A. Virata - Member




Compens;rion and Retirement Committee

"Mr. Octavie Victor R, Espiritu
Mr. Felipe.B. Alfonso -
Mr. Gregory L. Domingo -
Mr. Washington Z. Sycip -
Mr..Cesar EA. Virata -

Audit and Compliance Committes

Mr. Washington Z. Sycip
Mr. Manuel M. Lopez -
Mr. Felipe B, Aifonso -
Mr. Emilio A. Vicens -
Mr. Arthur-R. Defensor -

Finance.Committee

Mr.-Cesar E.A. Virata : -
Mr. Jesus'P. Francisco -
Mr. Christian 8. Monsod

Mr. Emilio A, Vicens -
Mr.-Qctavio-Victor R. Espiritu
Mr. Federico E. Puno -

Nomination and Governance Commitiee

Mr..Felipe:B. Affonso -
Mr. Christian S. Monsod

Mr.-Octavio Victor R. Espiritu
Mr.-Federico’E. Puno .
Mr. Gregory L. Domingo -
Mr. Arthur .R. Defensor -

Risk Management Committee

Mr.-Emilic A, Vicens -
Mr. Jesus P, Francisco -
Mr. Christian 8. Monsod -
Mr. Federico E. Puno -
Mr.:Gregory.L. Domingo -
Mr. Arthur R, Dofensor -

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

Chaiman
Member
Member
Member
Member

Chairman

Member
Member
Observer
Member
Member

Chaiman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

s SEC

w P60, 82-3237
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SIGRATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities. Regulation Code, ‘the issuer
has duly caused this report to be signed on its' behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.

MANII;A.-EI:EETRIC COMPANY

7 Issue

e

S

GIL ${SAN DIEGO
Vit}e President, Assistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: June 26, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Fhilippirie Stock'Exchange (PSE)

1 113G "
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16220
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DEGEMBER 31

(¥iscal Year Ending)
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(Annual Meeting)y
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(Form Type)
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SECURITIES AND EHCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORBI17-8

CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17
oF FHE SE@EIMI’IES REGIIWE'EM MBE

10.

Date of Report: June 30, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW-102
BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electiic Company

Courtry of Incorporation: Philippines

. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Issuer's-telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA;

Number of Shares of

Litle of Each Class
Class "A" 604,009,095
Class “B* 402.702:371
Total 1.006,711,466

Amount of Debt Qutstanding: P124.51 Billion {as of April 30, 2005)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 4 (Election of Regjstrant's Directors or

Officers)

Further to our disclosure of June 26, 2006, below is the amended Board ‘Committee

Membership of the Company.

1.-Executive Committee

Mr. Manuel M. Lopez -
Mr. Felipe B, Alfonos -
Mr. Jesus.P. Francisco -
Mr. Washington Z. Sycip -
Mr. Cesar E.A. Virata .
Mr. Gil S. San Diego -

Chairman
Member
Member
Mamber
Member
Sacretarfat

2..Nomination and Governance Committee

Mr, Felipe B, Alfenso

Mr. Arthur R, Defensor

Mr. Gregory L. Domingo -
Mr. Octavio Victer R. Espiritu -
Mr..Christian-S. Monsod -
Mr.-Federico £, Puno

Ms. Lecnisa C. de'fa Liana

3. Audit and Compliance Committee

Mr. Washington Z Sycip -
Mr. Felipe B, Alfonso -
Mr. Arthur R. Defensor -
Mr. Manuel M. Lopez

Mr. Emilio A Vicens

Helen T. de Guzman -
Daniel 0. Tagaza _ .

Chaiman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Secretariat

Chaiman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Seacretariat
Secretariat

4. Compensation and Retlrement Committee

Mr. Octavio Victor R. Espiritu -
Mr. Felipe B. Alfonso -
Mr. Gregory L. Domingo

Mr. Washington 2.-Sycip

Mr..Cesar E.A. Virata

Leonisa C. de-la Llana

5. Finance Committee

Mr. Casar E.A. Virata

Mr. Octavio Victor-R, Espiritu
Mr. Jesus P Franciseo

Mr. Cheistian §. Monsod

Mr. Federico E, Puno

Mr. Daniel D. Tagaza

Mr. Emilio A, Vicens

Mr. Rafael .. Andrada

Chairman
Mamber
Member
Member
Member
Secretariaf

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member
Ex-Officio Member
Observer
Secretariat




6. Risk Management Committee

S

US SEC
i 323237

Mr. Emilio A, Vicens - _ Chairman
Mr. Arthiur R, Defensor . Member
Mr. Gregory L. Domingo - Member
Mr. Jesus P.-Francisco - Member
Mr. Christian’S. Monsod Member
Mr. Fedlerico E. Puno Member
Mr. Daniel D, Tagaza Secretariat
SPECIAL PURPOSE COMMITTEE

7. Strategic Planning: Committee

Mr. Emilio A, Vicens Chairman
Mr. Felipe B, Alfonso - Member
Mr. Jesus P, Francisco - Member
Mr. Christian'S. Monsod Member
Mr. Monico V. Jacob Consultant
Mr. Leonisa C. de-l2 Liana Secretariat

SIGHATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code,. the issuer

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized. .

MANILA ELECT EHI}GOMPANY

GIL S,/SAN DIE

Vice'Prasident, Assistant
Cgrporate:-Secretary -and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: lune 30, 2006

i Disclosure Department
Listings and.Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock'Exchange (PSE)




MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

(Company’s Full Name)

LOPEZ BUILDING, ORTIGRS AVEMUE
PASIG CITY

(Company’s Address)

16220

{Company’s Telephone Number)

DECEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

LAST YUESDAY OF MRy

(Annua!‘Meeling)

SEC FORM 17-C

(Form Type)

PW-102

(S. E. C. Registration No.)

Us SEC

File
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SEGURITEES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEE FORM 17-C

CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

AND SBC RULE 17.20c] THEREUKDER

1. Date of Report: July 11, 2006

2, SEC Identification Number: PW-102

3. BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

4. Mame of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
5. Country of Incorporation: Phitippines

6. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

7. Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
8. Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 Jocal 3186 Area Code: 0300

9. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or

Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:
Number of Shares of
 Class “a” 604,0079,095.
(;‘-f; B 402,702,371

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P124.05 Billion (as of May 31, 2006)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached copy of Press Release entitied “MERALCO ASSURES ITS CUST, OMERS:
ELECTRICITY RATES WIL NOT INCREASE”.

SIGHATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities ‘Regulation Code, the issuar
‘has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned

hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COM PANY
. Issuer

o/ ©

FAEL L. ANDRADA
irst Vice President,. Treasurer-&
/ OIC, Information Disclosure Officer

Date: July 11, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Phitippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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Meralco assures its customers: Electricity rates will not increase

The Manila Electric Company today denied accusations of an increase in its electricity

rates following newspaper reports linking Meralco’s supposed negotiation for an offtt
agreement with YNN-Ranhill involving the Masinloc sale.

ke
Breaking ils silence amidst speculations of an alleged onersus transaction between the
power firm and YNN, Meralco countered by saying that alf that has been released in the
media so far are only speculative conjectures devoid of the actual truth.

“We would like to assure all concerned parties that Meralco will definitely not
compromise the interest of its customers. We will not enter into any contract that will be
disadvantageous to electricity consumers, As a corporate entily, we see no fault in doing
whatever we can within legal means in order to help government, the electric power
Industry and our customers to realize a lower electricity cost. So far what we hear are
mere speculations and in the process of these speculative pronouncements, Meralio’s
integrity is being unfairly dragged in the arena of contending interests,” Meralco Vice
President and Corporate Communication Head Elpi Cuna, Jr,

Cuna added that Meralco is aware of the impact the transaction has in bringing back
investor interest in the power industry as a whole. :

“Any supply agreement that Meralco enters into whether with. First Gas or with our other
| IPPs is meant to brin

g down the generation component in Meralco’s electricity bill. W=
also need to be assured that Meralco will have some sort of insurance in having
additional capacity in the future, which in turn, assures consumers continuity in electric
supply,” said Cuna,

“We would also like to take exception to a statement of a lawmaker insinuating that our
Chairman Mr. Manolo Lopez is allegedly part of an alliance with the government pushing
for a supply deal with YNN-Ranhill We would like to make it clear that whatever
decision Meralco comes up with is

a collective decision of the Board of Directors, and '
not of Mr. Lopez alone,” Cuna said.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHRNGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 11-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
RND SRC RYLE 17.2(c) THEREGNDER

1. Date of Report: July 25, 2006

2. SEC Identification Number: PW-102

3. BIR Tax ldentification Code: 350-000-101-528

4. Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
5. Country of Incorporation: Philippines

6. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

7. Address of principal office: Lopez Buflding, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
8. Issuer's telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

9. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Litle of Each Class Common Stock Outstanding
Class “A” 603,942,287
Ciass “B" 402,657,833
Total 1.006.600,120

Amount of Debt Qutstanding: P124.05 Billion (as of May 31, 2006)




11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

" Please see attached:

1) Letter to Director Justina F. Callangan on the Company's second
quarter results ended June 30, 2006 (Parent Company only).

2} Invitation to the Presentation and a Teleconference Presentation
on the 2+ Quarter 2006 Operating Resuits to be held on July 28, 2006,
3:00 p.m., at the Basement Mini Theafer, Lopez Building, Meralco
Center, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City.

SIGRATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuer

i President; Assistant
poﬁﬁe:cretary and

Information Disclosure Officer

Date: July 25, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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* Manila Blectric Company (MERALCO) has scheduled

its 2006 2nd Quarter results on
July 28, 2006 dt 3:00 PM. This will be held at the:

BASEMENT Mini Theater
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Meralco has also arranged for a simultane

ous Conference Call facility. Details for the
Conference Call are as follows:

Conferencé Call Number +852 2112 1333
Passcodg: MERALCO

Those who wish to attend are requested to

fill up the appropriate form (please see
attached forms) and send through fax at:

Meralco Fax: + 632 631 5591




MERALCO
YOU ARE INVITED

TO A PRESENTATION
ON THE 2nd Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Friday, July 28, 2006
3:00 PM

at the
BASEMENT Mini Theater
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to:

+632 631- 5591

on or before July 27, 2006. 1f you have questions, please call Roger Rosario or Elaine
Shih of MERALCO at the following numbers:

+632 1622-2450
+632 1622-2341
+632 632-8323

NAME

JOB FUNCTION

COMPANY

ADDRESS

CITY, COUNTRY

TELEPHONE

FAX

E-MAIL

P e
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MERALCO

YOU ARE INVITED
TO ATELECONFERENCE PRESENTATION
ON THE 2nd Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Friday, July 28, 2006
3:00 PM (Manila Time)

Conference Call Number*
+852 2112-1333
Passcode: MERALCO

* Please call at least five (5) minutes before the scheduled time.

Instant Replay Number**
+852 2112-1000
Passcode; MERALCO
**Available until July 31, 2005

Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to +632

631-5521 on or before July 27, 2005. 1f you have questions, please call Roger Rosario or
Elaine Shih of MERALCO at the following numbers:

| +632 1622-2450
+632 1622-2341
+632 632-8323

NAME
JOBFUNCTION |
COMPANY 1 T
ADDRESS

CITY, COUNTRY
TELEPHONE
FAX

E-MAIL




Osncas Avenug, Pasig Ty
0300 Puwierings

25 July 2006

MS. JUSTINA F. CALLANGAN

Director, Corporation Finance Departiment
SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Bldg., EDSA, Greenhills

Mandaluyong City

Dear Ms. Callangan,

We are submitting to your office the attached report of Manila Electric Company (Parent
Company only) for the second quarter ended June 30, 2006.

We are furnishing you an advanced copy of the Parent Company’s second quarter results
.as we intend to release these information to the investors, analysts and the general public.
These reports are not substitute reports for SEC Form 17-Q. We shall be filing separately

the complete quarterly reports {(SEC Form 17-Q) within 45 days after end of the quarter,
i.e. on or before August 14, 2006.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

FAEL L. ANDRADA
irst Vice President & Treasurer

DASIY&EZ; TAGAZA
Exec(.l' e

cc: Disclosure Depariment
Listings arid Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange

Tew No. (632} 631-2222 » {632) 16220
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[FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS ]

L NET INCOME (LOSS)

The company’s net income for the second quarter of 2006 was P1.12 billion, a tumaround
from a net loss of P748 million in the 1st quarter of the year. However, it was 31.2% lower
compared to P 1.62 billion in the same period last year. Year-to-Date (Y TD) cumulative

earnings for this year reached P367 million from a net loss of P583 million in the satre
period in 2605,

The company continued to make provistons for probable losses related to the rate
unbundling case still pending with the Supreme Court (SC). Without the provisicns,
estimated net income for the 2nd quarter would have been P2.16 billion net of tax while
YTD net income for the 1st half of the year would have been P2.34 billion,

IL. REVENUES

Revenues increased to P 47.89 billion in the 2™ quarter, representing a 2.7% and 15.1%
Jump compared to the same period in 2005 and the 1* quarter of this year, respectively. For
the six-month period, revenues increased by 7.8% to P89 51 billion.

Iil. . EXPENSES (INCOME)

Total expenses for the 2™ quarter mcreased 4.7% to P46.23 billion compared to P44 .16
billion for the 2™ quarter of last year. The six-month figure registered a 6.3% increase to

P89.05 billion. Major components of these expenses were purchased power, operations and
maintenance and depreciation. :

Purchased power cost increased by 3.6% to P39.44 billion in the 2™ quarter, On the gix-
1month period, the increase was 6.5% to P76 28 billion. The components were as follows:

* Recoverable purchased POWEE Cost - cost up to the 9.5% system loss cap
- increased by 4.7% to P38.66 billion for the 2ud quarter and 6.8% to
P74.53 billion for the six-month period.

* Unrecoverable purchased power cost - system loss in excess of the cap -

decreased by 32.3% to P776 nullion this quarter. On a six-month period,

this decreased by as much as 6.4% to P1.75 billion this year.

Operations and maintenance increased by 13.3% this quarler compared to the 2™ quarter of

last year from P2.15 billion to P 2 43 billion. Six-month operations resulted 1o increase ‘of
20.7% from P3.96 biilion in 2005 to P4.78 billion in 2006.

Operating income before provision for probable losses for the second quarter of 2006
compared with the same period last year, decreased 16.3% to P5 34 billion,

This was due to
the higher level of operating expenses a

nd modest increase in revenucs. On a six-month

period, however, this account increased 8.7% to P7.81 billion.
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Operating income before provision for probable losses can be derived by deducting from

iotal revenues the purchased power costs up to system loss cap, operations and maintenance,
depreciation and amortization and taxes other than income tax.

iv, INCOME PER SHARE

Income per share for the 2nd quarter of the year (excluding deprecation on appraisal
increase) decreased by 29.57% to P1.03 per share due to lower net income this vear,

V. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures in the quarter imcreased by 10.08% over last year to P1.09 billion. As
of June 30, 2006, total capital expenditures went up by 5.40% to P2.15 billion,

] OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

L GWH SALES and BILLING KW DEMAND

Due to inclement weather, shoiter billing days, and the suspension of the One Day Power
Sales (ODPS) Program, overall GWH sales contracted shightly by 0.43% to 6,561 GWH i
the 2* quarter of this year compared to the same period in 2005. However, overall GWH
sales for the first half of 2006 managed 10 increase by 1.71 % over the same period last vear,

Of the three major customer segments in the 2™
segment which led the growth in GWH sales wi
the Retail Trade Sub-segment which grew 14.42
Estate by 12.84% and 3.45%, respectively.

Quarter of the year, it was the commareial
th a respectable 2.13% increase driven by
%, followed by Transport Services and Reai

Retail Trade’s growth was attributable to the operations of new and existing shopping malls
m the Meralco franchise. The May 21, 2006 opening of the Sy-owned SM Mall of Asia
said to be the 3" largest shopping mall in the world, energization of SM SuperCenter on
June 18, 2006, and the full operations of SM Sta. Rosa largely contributed to this sub-
segment’s GWH sales surge. Increased grid consumptions .of NAIA Terminals T & 2 {(due
to the breakdown of their gensets) and the energization of NAIA Terminal 3, on the other
hand, contributed to the rise in the consumption of Transport Services. The steady

operations of call centers and other 1T-related businesses continued to fuel growth in the
Real Estate sub-segment,

Notwithstanding the erratic availability of the QDPS Program in the latter part of May untit
June 2006 brought about by low generation reserve and the opening of the Whoiesale

Electricity Spot Market (W ESM), industrial GWH sales modestly grew by 1.23% over the
same quarter last year.

Cement, Plastic Products, and  Electrical M
divers, increasing by 23.25%. 10.18%
manufacturers in particular continued to av,

achinery Manufacturing were the main growth
and 4.30%, respectively. Major cement
atl of the ODPS Program starting in the 3"
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quarter of 2005 witile the increased market demand for Plastic Products, as reported in the
previous quarter, sustained its way into the first half of 2006, leading to the increased

operations of  plastic manufacturing companies which supplied plastic packaging
requirements both locally and overseas.

Resideniial sales, however, pulled down overall GWH sales, declining 4.21% in the 2™
quarier of 2006. This was due to power interruptions caused by inclement weather
(Typhoon Caloy) in May and energy conservation efforts in response to increasing prices of
ciectricity and other basic commodities.  Sales of the AB sub-segment (with consumption
above S00KWH per month) declined by 4.9% due to its deliberate effort o reduce
consumption. The Broad C (with consumption between 151-800KWH per month} and DE
sub-segments (with consumption of up to 150KWH), on the other hand, grew 0.5% and

0.2%, respectively, indicating a movement of customers belonging to the higher segments to
slide down the lower consumption brackets.

in the six-month period, GWH sales growth was led by the commercial segment, itnproving

3.94% closely followed by the industrial group at 3.21%. Sales of the residential segment,
kowever, declined 1.74%.

Overall Billing KW Demand increased in the 2™ quarter of 2006, rising by 3.4% as the

commercial sector registered a 4.76% increase in demand and the Industrial sector  2.83%
Year-to-date Billing KW Demand increased 2.8%.

AVERAGE RETAIL RATE

The average retail rate for June 2006 rose 10.72% to P8.36/KWH from P7.55/K'WH in the
same period in 2003. On a per customer class basis, the camparative figures are as follows:

June 2006 June 2005
Average Rate Average Rate
Customer Class (PI!?WH) (PIP%WH)

Residential 9.03 B.09
Lifeline 595 5.28
Non-iifeline 9.40 8.43
Commercial B.45 . 7.81
GS, Small and Medium 8.45 8.07
Large ' 9.12 7.43
Very Large 8.15 6.98
Industrial . 7137 6.76
Small and Medium 867 7.57
Large 7.53 6.93
Very Large 6.99 6.77
Extra Large 7.04 8.31
TOTAL 8.36 7.55
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The increase was largely due to the implementation of the 12% VAT Rate starting Febsuary

2006. In addition, transmission charges increased as a result of the rise in TransCo’s Pover
Delivery Service charges.

Generation charges slightly moved up 147% to P4.9690/KWH in June 2006 from
P 4.8970/KWH in the same period in 2003 mainly due to higher NPC and IPP rates. NPC
tariffs were higher due to increases in the ICERA and GRAM rates in December 2005, IPP
rates, on the other hand, also increased becanse of a lower dispatch of 72.15% in June 2006

{due to planned and unscheduled outages of QPPL in June 2006) compared to 82.44% in
Tune 2005, :

The increase in the June 2006 bill, however, was tempered by the third and last tranche of
TransCo’s removal of the Intra-Regional Grid Cross Subsidy reducing Meralco’s

Transmission Charge rate by an average of around P0.06/KWH starting the month of
November 2005.

1. SYSTEM LOSS

For the 2™ quarter of 2006, system loss improved by 1.02 percentage points to 11.35% from
last year’s 2 quarter system loss of 12.37%,

he improvement was credited to the unrelenting detection and apprehension activities of
our mefering security organizations, the contimued employment of effective pilferage-
deterrence measures, and the reversal of the unfavorable mismatch between rezistered
encrgy input and GWH sales in‘the 1* quarter.
Reinforcing these measures was the continued support of the Department of Interior and
Local Government (DILG) throngh the signing of a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 1o
strengthen the current ante-clectricity pilferage campaign. This was signed by the new DILG
Secretary Ronaldo Puno and Meralco Chairman Manuel Lopez on May 19, 2006. This

MOA renewed the commitment of the DILG to encouragig local government cooperation
te bring down system loss in their Tespective areas.

The performance in the 2™ quarter was more than enongh to make the year-to-date system

loss figure to improve by 0.37 percentage point to 11.70% from 12.04% in 2005 coming
from a 0.45 percentage point deterioraion in the 1* quarter.

Ona I2-month moving average basis, system loss unproved to 10.05% from 10.92% .

v, SYSTEM RELIABILITY

i1 the 2nd quarter of 2006, system reltability, in terms of Interruption Frequency Rate (IFR)
deteriorated 12.83% to 3.43 in the 2™ quarter of 2006 from 3.04 in the samne peried last vear.
Likewise, system availability, as measured by Cumulative Interruption Time (CIT), waned

70.94% to 4.53 hours  the 2nd quarter this year tfrom 2.65 hours in the same period in
2003,

A,y un i,
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The decline in system reliability/availability for the 2™ quarter of 2006 can be mainly
attributed to the effects of Typhoon Caloy. Aside from primary trippings, the storm also
mdirectly affected our system performance due to widespread supply interruptions.
Prolonged circuit interruptions affected 103 circuits or 15.71% of total distribution lines.

Also. numerous maintenance activities by TransCo, mainly the replacement of rotten poles,
defective hardware, and correction of hotspots on their Dasmarifias, Kalayaan and Caliraya
circuits last June 8, 9, 19 and 28 affected system reliability and availability.

As of June 2006, YTD system reliability deteriorated by a slower pace at 2.17% to 3.66 for
the 1* half of this year from 5.54 in the same period in 2005. Likewise, system availability

deteriorated by 43.38% to 6.28 hours in the 1st half of 2006 from 4.38 hours in the same
period last year,

Despite Typhoon Caloy, forced IFR (unscheduled power interruptions due to cguipment
failure, trees and other foreign objects touching the lines, and transient faultsy improved by
4.68% to 3.46 in the 1* half of 2006 from 3.63 in the same period last year.

Fer further guestions:
Meraleo Investor Relations
Tel. Nos. (632) 16222450, (632) 6328323

e

CHOUR SALES

GOMPARISON.OF KILOWA

For the quarters ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
( In million kWh )

Residential 225554 2,354.75 4.2)
Commercial 2,410.77 2.,360.49 2.1
Industrial 1,799.32 1,777.48 1.2
Streetlights 35.02 36.02 (2.8)

3;,500.65"

652877

ARISON € ou

(s

and 2005

For “ six nhs n June 30, 20
( Iy million kWh )

Residential 4,190.65 4,264 68 (1.7

Commercial 4,572.60 4,399.31 3.8

fndustrial 3,490.82 3,382.27 3.2

Streetlights 70.29 70.59 (0.4)
L TOTAL

TAZ30A985 L A2 116,85

o e et

Fnaéw?.32—3237




Manila Llectric CoTipany | -
2nd Quarter 2006 & 1°' Half Financial and Operating Results

PARENT COMPANY ONLY

1S OF INCOME
For the quarters ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

REVENUES 47,892 46,616

2.7
EXPENSES (INCOME)
Purchased power 39,438 38,072 3.5
Operations and maintanance 2,434 2,148 13.32
Provision for probable losses 1,605 1,649 (2.7)
Depreciation and armortization 1,085 857 27.7
interest and other financial charges - net 1,144 996 14.9
CERA il revenues ' (654) (481} 35.8
Foreign exchange losses - net 554 481 35.8
Interest and other finandial income i (208) (112) 84.7
Present value impact on customers' refund 504 432 18.8
Provision for probabile losses on
disallowed receivables 55 58 (4.3
Taxes other than incoine tax 159 65 143.8
46,227 44,164 4.7
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,666 2,451 @2.1
Provision for income tax ; 551 831 (32.7)

or the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

REVENUES 89,508 83,064 7.8
EXPENSES (INCOME)
Purchased power 76,275 71,644 6.5
Operations and maintenance 4,781 3,960 20.7
Frovision for probable losses 3,031 3,060 (1.5
Depreciation and amortization 2,158 1,893 83
Interest and other financial charges - net 2,222 2,043 8.7
CERA || revenues {1,003) (827) 213
Fareign exchange losses - net 1,003 827 - 213
Interest and other financial incorne {510) {200} 155.0
Present value impact on customers’ refund 756 863 (12 4)
Pravision for probable losses on
disallowed receivables 110 118 7.3
Taxes other than income tax 231 148 56.4
89,063 83,630 6.5
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 453 (s66)  180.0
Provision far {benefit from) incorna tax (86) 17 (6‘14.1L_

6
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As of June 30, 2006 and 2005

(Amuounts in Millicn Pesos)

ASSETS

Noncurrent Assets

Utility Plant and others-net 92,430 94 064 1.7
lnvestments in subsidiaries, associates
a2nd joint ventures 966 966 G.0
Investment properties 840 273 208.2
Deferred pass-through fuel costs 7,860 11,530 (31.8)
Other roncurrent assets 9,736 10,877 (10.5)
Total Noncurrent Assets 111,833 117,709 (5.0)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,403 7117 181
Trade and other receivables 28,442 26,871 5.8
Inventories 4,198 1,008 13.8
Other current assets 1,589 840 148.2
Total Current Assets 39,631 15,636 11.2

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

|Steckholders' Equity

33,044 32,899 0.4

Noncurrent Liabilities
- Interast-bearing loans and other
borrowings - net of current portion 14,207

21,109 [&rirs

Deferred income tax {iabilities 2.793 6,818 (59.0)
Customers' deposits 19,005 17,356 a.5
Previsions 20,130 13,373 50.5
Customers’ refund - net of current portion 12,407 13,770 (9.9)
Liability arising from deferred pass-through

fuel costs - net of current portion 4,122 10,320 (8C.1)
Other noncurrent liabilities 423 1486 (71.1)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 73,087 84,212 (13.2)

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 34,757 24 475 42.0
Customers' refund - current portion 2,835 4,701 (39.7)
Interest-bearing loans and other

borrowings - current partion 2,792 2,646 5.5
Income tax payable 1,407 1,389 1.4
Qther current liabilities 3,541 3,023

Total Current Liabilities

45,333 36,233 - 251
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For the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
{Amaunts in Million Pesas)

BALANCE, Beginning

{1,312) 1,027 (227.7)
Effect of implementation of PAS - (1,543)  (100.0
{1,312) {516) 1543
Add: '
~ Net Incorne (Loss) 367 - (583) " 163.0
Realized.revaluation surplus 227 308 (25.8)
(718) (793)  (5:4)
Deduct;
Appropriated relaingd earnings, beginning 200 200 -
Transferfrom/(to)
Unappropriated retained earnings - -
BALANCE {918) (993) (7.5
Deduct;

Cash dividends declared

; wock dividends dectared .
. BAANGE T o

[t P P
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For the gquarters ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

{Amounis in Mitlion Pasos)

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING {(Apr 1) 11,912 4,329 175.2

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operaling and other income 4,552

4,289 6.1
Depreclation and amortization 1,084 as7 27.7
Increase (decrease) in other assets
and habilities (1,431) 1,483 (196.5)

Net Cash from Oparations 4,216 65.629 (36.4)

Add : Equity issues
Short-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings

- 190 (100.0)

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 4,216 . 6,819 (28.2)
Less; Short-tarm debt service - - -
Long-term dabt sarvica 4,455 676 100.0
Othar interest expensa §,378 1,017 355
Total Debt Service 5,833 1,693 244.5
Unraecoverabta purchased power 776 1,147 (32.3)
Capital expenditures 1,088 989 10.1
Preferred equity redemptions 24 162 (84.9)
Refund to customaers 2 40 (94.4)
FTOTAL USES OF FUNDS 7.725 4,032 91.6
NET DECREASE IN CASH

(3,509) 2,788 {225.9}

IR ARATIV

For the six months ended June 30, 2006 ana 2005
{Amounis in Million Pasos)

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING (tan 1} 13,722 4,377 213.5
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVATIES
Oparating and other income 5,202 4,310 20.7
Dapraciation and amortizaton 2.158 1,993 B.2
Increase (decreass} in olher assets
and llabilities {1,498) 3.850 (138.9)
Net Cash from Operations 5,862 10,1563 (42.3)

Add; Equlty Issues
Short-term korrowings
Lang-larm barrowings

- 574 (t00,0)

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 5,862 10,727 {45.4)
Less . Sheort-term deit service - - -
Long-tarm debt carvice 4,740 1,064 100.0
Othaor interast axponse 2,501 2,568 {2.6)
Totol Debt Sarvice 7,241 3,831 89.4
Unrecoverable purchased pawer 1,748 1,868 (6.4)
Capital axpenclitures 2,148 2,038 5.4
Preferrad agquity sedemptians 39 351 (B8.9)
Refund to cusiomars a 102 (82.2}
TOTAL LUAGS GF FUNDS 1t,181 7,988 40.0
NET DECREASE (N STASH (5.319) 2,740 (294.1)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-0
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.21¢) THEREOMBER

—

Date of Report: August 14, 2006

2. SEC Identification Number: PW.102

o

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

E

Mame of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company

ot

Country of Incorporation: Philippines

6. Industry Classification: (SEC use oﬁly)

™~

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

oo

Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300
9. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

- 10. Securities registered pursuan

t to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC ar
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares. of

Lile of Each Class
Class “A” 603,942,287
Class “B" 402,657,833
Total 1,006,600.120

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P124.05 Billion (as of May 31, 2006)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached copy of Press Release entitled “MERALCO EXPLAINS
LOWER BILLS FOR ITS CUSTOMER”,

SIGHATORE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersignad
hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Issuer

7,
AFAEL L. ANDRADA

Fifst Vice President, Treasurer &

/ﬁformation Disclosure Officer

Date: August 14, 2006

ce: Disclosure-Department |
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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MERALCO EXPLAINS LOWER BILLS FOR ITS CUSTOMERS
ALSO EXPLAINS ITS CUS TOMER CHOICE PROGRAM

The Manila Electric Company today reiterated its previous pronouncement that there will
be reductions in the bills of its customers this month. ’

In a press conference today, Meralco said that as 2 result of the change in its sourcing of
power, from NPC’s Time-of-Use (TOU) rates to the Wholesale Electricity Spot Market
(WESM), and the higher dispaich of its IPPs, there was a reduction in its generation
charge by 79 centavos compared to last month’s level.  Compared with NPC’s TOU
rates in June 2006, the reduction was about 52 centavos,

As reflected in its billings to its customers, the generation charge decreased.from P5.2177
per kwh in July to P4.4290 per kwh in August: The power service provider also said that

there was a corresponding reduction in the system loss charge following the-reduction in
the generation charge component of its billings,

Meralco said that for residential customers consuming beyond 100 kwhs, numbering 2.5

miillion or around 60% of total customers, the reduction in the bills was computed at an
average 74 centavos per kwh.

General Service and Small to Medium Industrial Service (IS) and Non-Industrial Service

(NIS) customers registered the highest average reductions of around 95 -centavos’ per
kwh. The average reductions to Large and Very Large IS and NIS customers followed

close at 89 to 93 centavos per kwh. Tor Extra Large customers or those with demand of

at least 10 MW, the reduction was still at a substantial 85 to 89 centavos perkwh.

The impact of the above reductions in generation and system loss charges was partly
muted by the removal of the mandated rate reduction “from NPC rares” of 30 centavos
per kwh as embodied in Section 72 of the EPIRA. With the change in the sourcing

arrangement from NPC’s TOU to the WESM, NPC is no longer mandated to provide the
discount. :

Another effort of Meralco to help bring down electricity costs is through its customer

choice program. It can be recalled that Meralco formally offered last March tc give itg

large industrial and commercial customers with demand of at least IMW the right to

orligas dvenue, pasig city, philippines 0300 tes. no, By
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choose alternative sources of power. This was a gesture of suppoit to the. government’s
desire to move forward and provide large customers some benefits of retail competition
even before all the conditions of open access are in place. President GMA accepted the

offer as this will allow the industrial sector to avail of the time-of-use rates of 1he
National Power Corporation.

The details and mechanics by whicli this arrangement miay
up by a panel corposed of representatives from NPC and
reached an agreement on the mechanics of the program and the Memorsndum of
Agreement between NPC and Meralco for the supply of power was signed on August 11.

This will then be submitted to ERC for approval theough a joint filing betweer the two
paities.

be implemented were drawa
Meralco. The panel has finally

The customer choice program is volunla
bave the capability to transfer their oper.
is at its lowest. Those who optnot to ava
existing blended rates of Meralco.

ty and it is expecled to benefit cusiomers who
ations to off-peak hours when the.cost of power
il of the program have the option fo remain af the
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMBISSION
SEC FORM 17-0
GURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AHD SRC RULE 11.2(c THEREUNDER

10,

Date of Report: August 17, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW.102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electiic Company -
Country of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 Joca/ 3186 Area Code: 0300

. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to S

ections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Iitie of Each Class
Class "A” 603,904,119
Class “B” 402,632,387
Total nggﬁaﬁiggg

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P118.42 Billion fas of June 30, 2006)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached copy of Press Release entitled “MERALCO TO
CONSULT ERC'REGARDING SC’s DECISION ON GRAM”.

SIGNATORE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized. '

MANILA ELECWC COMPANY
Issiter
= Py
o

GIL S,/$AN DIEGO
Vic ’6 esident,)s istant
Cerpor ecrétary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: August 17, 2006

ce: Disclosure.Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Phitippine Stock Exchange {PSE)
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MERALCO TO CONSULT ERC REGARDING SC’S DECISION ON GRAM

The Manila Electric Company (Meralco) said today that it will consult and await
ERC’s directive regarding the Supreme Court’s final Decision nullifying the June 2,

2004 Order of the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC), which approved Meralco’s

2nd Generation Rate Adjustment Mechanism (GRAM).

Meralco Corporate Comumunication Chief Elpi Cuna said, “Our legal coun§fzi will
study the implications, consult and await ERC’s directive on this latest Supreme Court
Decision concerning Meralco’s 2nd GRAM. We just would like to make it clear, though,
that Meralco did not earn from the GRAM as it was only meant to be a‘cost recovery

meckanism for distribution utilities like us.”

It will be recalled that the GRAM was a cost recovery mechanism that power

distributors like Meralco filed with the ERC for any adjustments in the generation charge.

The said adjustments enabled the distribution utilities and the Nationa] Power
Corporation to adjust generation charges according to fluctuations in the prices of fuel

used in generation and the cost of power bought from the Independent Power Producers,

Under the GRAM, distribution utilities accumulated three months worth of payments to

its power suppliers. The distribution utilities then applied for recovery of these casts at

the ERC, which must act on the application within 45 days.

arliges avenue, pasig city, philippines 0300 ta. no. 531-5757
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Cuna added, “We are saddened by this recent setback brought by the SC’s
decxsmn on the GRAM. It was through this very mechanism that Meralco shouldered
and advanced geieration cost adjustments on behalf of iis pus@mers. In fact and official
records will bear us out that our first GRAM application; which was also approved by the
ERC, resulted to a 21.43 reduction in the generation chargé.” ‘-

1t is very likely that ERC lwill prescribe the mechanics on how it will impicmgnt
the 3C Orc_ier. ‘

in the meantir‘ne,_Meralcﬁ advised its customers to

await further announdements

coming from its end regarding the issue.
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SECURITIES AND EHGHAHGE'G@MMSS!M’.
SEC FORE 17-0
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

©F THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AHD SRO NULE 17.2(c) THERLYNDER

1. Date of Report: September 29, 2006

2. SEC Identification Number: PW.102

3. BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

4. Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company
. Country of Incorporation: Philippines

0. Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

7. Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenus, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

8. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

0. Securities registered pursua

nt to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC oy
Sections'4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of
Class “A» 603,860,756
Ciass “B"

402,603,478

Total 1,006,464, 234

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P115.93 Billion fas of August 31, 2006)
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11, Item Number reported: Ttem 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached copy of Press Release entitled “MERALCO
PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES IN PLACE ",

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersignad
hereunto duly authorized.

MANILA'ELEgi’RIC COMPANY
;ssui(7

GIL S/SAN.DIEGO

Vicg’President, Assistant

g:ﬁporate Secretary and
formation Disclosure Officer

Date: September 29, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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Sept. 28, 2006

MERALCO PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES IN PLACE
Prepared to respond to Typhoon Milenyo

The Manila Electric Company (Meralco) today said in a statement that it has put'in place
necessary measures to mitigate the potential effects of Typhoon Milenyo. Part of these
are advisories that have been issued by the power firm on potential problems that mav be
breught about by the typhoon along with appropriate precautionary measures.

Meralco, for instance, has consistently requested billbo
temporarily roll their billboards up to prevent these struct
strong winds. Billboards that fall into electrical facilities
power outages whenever there are strong typhoons.

ard owners and operators to
ures from being toppled by the
are among the top reasons for

Another major cause of power outages whenever there are typhoons are the branches of
trees either touching or falling on electrical lines, Meralco has likewise repeatedly

reminded the public about having their trees near electrical facilities trimmed by Merajco
personnel prior to typhoons.

Meraico VP for Corporate Communic
typhoon that may pose hazards on lives
Meraico are doing everything within o
order that we could immediately resp
typhoon. As a 24
emergency”.

ation Elpi 0. Cuna said, “We are expecting a
and properties. Be rest assured, though, that we at
ur capacity 1o prepare our systems and people in
ond to power outages that may result from the
—hour service company we are committed to respond to these types of

Cuna also urged the public 10 tune in to the different public serv

pewer Interruptions occur since Meraleo’s Call Center directl
stations. '

ice radio stations should
y coordinates with these

Concerned parties may also call the Meralco Call Center a1 16211 and 632-1111 or text
their concerns to (0917) 847-6908.
Cuna however said that due to the voluminous number of ¢
its- Call Center is unable to immediately receive calls, He 4
public service radio stations for updates on the power situat

alls, there are instances whaen

dvised the public o tne in 1o
inn,

-end -
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10.

Date of Report: September 29, 2006
SEC Identification Number: PW-102
BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Mame of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company

Country of Incorporation: Philippines

. Industry Classification: (SféC use only)

Addrass of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

. Former name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4:and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of
Title of Each Cl c 'Stock Qutstandi
Class “A" 603,860,756
Ciass “B" 402,603 478
Totaf 1,006,464,234

Amount of Debt Qutstanding: P115.93 Billion (as of August 31, 2006)
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11, item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see afttached copy of Press Release entitled "MERALCO GIVES
UPDATE ON RESTORATION WORK IN THE AFTERMATH OF TYPHOON MILENYO ”,

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereuntoe duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

Issuer
/ //)

GIL S)6AN DIEGOD
VicaPresidunt, Assistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: September 29, 2006

cc: ‘Disclosure-Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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Meralco gives update on restoration work

in the aftermath of typhoon Milenyo

The Manila Electric Company (Meralco) said that felled trees, toppled

transmission towers, fallen billboards, down poles and other debris continue to obstruct

faster restoration of power in affected areas, after typhoon Milenyo hit Metro Manila and

the rest of Luzon on Thursday.

A large part of Laguna and Quezon were affected by the toppled towers of
Transco and downed poles and wires of Meralco. The southem part of Metro Manila was

likewise affected by a leaning pole of Transco impacting on the Sucat-Araneta line near

BCDA compound on C-5.

Meralco Vice President and Corporate Communication Head Elpi Cuna said, “We

are appealing to local government officials, local engineering offices, barangay officials,

the DPWH and MMDA to help us clear debris to speed up restoration work. We have to

clear the lines of debris and other unsafe obstructions before putting back power to ensure

public safety.”

TeL No. (632) 631-2222 » (532} 16270
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Cuna added, “We also have received reports that some of our fallen wires are

being stolen. We also request the said local officials and government agencies to help us

secure these wires to ensure continuity of our work.”

Meralco President and Chief Operating Officer Jesus Francisco said, “Please be

assured that our personnel have been on full complement and non-stop duty to quickly

restore power to your homes and businesses.”

“For the meantime, we are requesting the public to please limit their calls to our

Call Center to reports of fallen electrical posts and wires only. Customers don’t have to

report power outages in their areas since this is already being monitored and handled by

Meralce personnel and linemen who are deployed in the field. We are asking for our

customers’ cooperation so we can quickly restore power to your-area,” the company

official added.

Meraleo’s hotlines have heen swamped with voluminous calls. Francisco likewise

said that a total of over 40% of iis circuits have been restored, through continuous

operation being done by Meralco crewmen and personnel,
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10.

Date of Report: September 30, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW.102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Conipany
Country of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

Forimer name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class
Class “A” 603,860,756
Class “B” 402,603,478
Total ;

Amount of Debt Outstanding:

P115.93 Billion {as- of August 31, 2006)
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Please see affached copy of Pross Release entitied “MERALCO
RESTORATION MOVING AT A DETERMINED PACE- Alinost 70% of circuits in its franchise
area resfored ",

SIGRATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issucr

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorizad.

MANILA ELECTRIC( COMPANY
. Issuer\
1/ /V/ r;’
GII). . SAN'DIEGO
Vice President, Assistant
Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: September 30, 2006

¢c: Disclosure Department
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Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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MERALCO’S RESTORATION MOVING AT A DETERMINED PACE

Almost 70% of circuits in its franchisc area restored
The Manila Electric Company today said that its restoration is moving at a

deterinined pace. A total of 504 circuits (433 distribution and 71 sub-transmission) were

energized representing about 70% of MERALCO s 739 circuits.

For its whole franchise area, Meralco has also already restored 66% of s
distributien circuits. In the North area, all distribution circuits have been restored except

for isolated cases due to down poles and other debris, which still affect its lines.

Meanwhile, 62% of its distribution circuits have been restored in the Central area and

47% in the South area,

The South Area was the hardest hit. It will be recalled-that a large part of Laguna

and Quezon provinces were affected by the toppled towers of Transco and down poles

and wires of Meralco. The southern part of Metro Manila was likewise affected by down

poles and a leaning pole of Transco impacting on the Sucat-Araneta line near BCD4A

compound en C-5. Currently there is also unavailability of Transco lines -- Dasmarinas-

Rosario, Dasmarinas-Ternate and Dasmarinas-GMA -- caused by downed Transco poles.

Failen trees, toppled transmission towers, fallen billboards, down poles and other

debris continue to obstruct faster restoration of power in affected areas after typhoon

Milenyo pummeled Metro Manila and the rest of Luzon on Thursday.,

But the worst damage may be attributed to the fallen billboards. Meralco Vice

President and Corporate Communication Mead Elpi Cuna in an earlier staternent appeaied

Tew No. (632) 6312222 » ©37) 16220
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to the billboard operators especially to those whose billboards have been toppled, 1o

immediately help remove their structures which obstruct electric lines and intrude the

flow of vehicular traffic. Meralco observed that these billboards were among the major
causes of power outageé, and not to mention, traffic accidents and snarls.

Please help ensure the safety of motorists and pedestrians by clearing the fallen

billboards to help hasten restoration work, ” Cuna stressed.

Meralco also issued an appeal to local government officials, local engineering

offices, barangay officials, the DPWH and MMDA to help clear debris to speed up

restoration work. “An automatic safety feature of our electric system is that power can

flow back only when lines are clear of debris and other unsafe obstructions ensure public

safety,” he said.

Cuna added, “We also continue to receive reports that some of our fallen wires

are being stolen. We request the concerned local officials and government agencies to

help us secure these wires to ensure continuity of our work.”

Meralco President and Chief Operating Officer Jesus Francisco also assured its

customers that Meralco personnel have been on full complement and non-stop duty to

quickiy restore power to homes and businesses.

“In the meantime, we are requesting the public to please limit their calls to our

Call Center to reports of fallen electrical posts and wires only. Customers don’t havs to

feport power outages in their areas since this is already being monitored and handled by

Meraleo personnel and linemen who are deployed in the ficld. We are asking for our

customers’ cooperation so we can quickly restore power to your area,” the company

official said after voluminous calls swamped Meralco’s hotlines.
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10.

Data of Report: October 73, 2006
SEC Identification Number: PW-102
BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Mame of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company

Country of Incorporation: Philippines

- industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Address of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 local 3186 Area Code: 0300

Former name-or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or
Sec’nons 4 and 8 of the RSA:

' Number of Shares of
Tiffe of Each Class j
Class “A” ' 603,860,756
{lass "B 402,603,478
Tolal 1.006,464,234

Amecunt of Debt Outstanding: P115.93 Billion (as of August 21, 2006)
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11. Item Number reported: Item 9 (Other Events)

Please see attached copy of Pross Release entitled "MERAEO, OTHER
DU'S DO NOT BENEFIT FROM WESH PRICE HIKES",

SIGNATORE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuar

has duly caused this report to be signed on its hehalf by the undersignad
hereunts duly authorized.

MANILA ELECYRIC COMPANY
/‘Iﬁug[,/f
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GILXS. SAN DIEGO

ViiCe President,-Assistant

Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: Qctober 13, 2006

cc: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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Meraico, Other DU's Do Not Benefit from WESM Price Hikes

Meralco explained today that as a distribution utility, it does not stand to benefit

from any increase in the prices of the Wholesale Electricity Spot Market (WESM).

“WESM costs form part of generation charges, which are passed through to
consumers,” according to Meralco president and chief oper.

“Distribution utilities (DU

ating officer Jesus Francisco.
s) such as Meralco and electric cooperatives do not retain any
portion of the generation charge.” On the average, between 60 and 70 percent of an

electric consumer's bill are for generation costs.

“Generation charges of distributors include only costs actually incurred by utilities

and this is closely monitored by the government through the Energy Regulatory

Commission (ERC),” added Mr. Francisco. “Thus, distri.bulors do not draw any benefit

from increased generation and spot market prices.”

In fact, distributors are adversely affected by high generation costs. “Qur

experience shows that when electric rates £0 up, power consumption goes down,”

according to the Meralco president. “High power prices have a direct adverse impact on
our salesand revenues so that Meralco has every incentive to ensure that its generation

charge remains reasonable.”

“There is also not truth to the allegation that higher WESM prices would

higher dispatch of Meralco's IPP's, which were already well-dispatched since the W ESM

aliow
started,” said Mr. Francisco.

Further, Mr. Francisco says that the Electric Power Industry Reform Act (EPIRA)

mandates distributors “to supply electricity in the least cost manner to its captive market.

Tew No. (632) 6312222 « {632) 16220
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We are always mindful of our obligation to customers to ensure that our rates

include only

costs necessary for providing electric service.”
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 SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SED FORM 17-8

CURRENT REPORT DNDER SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES RERULATION COBE

AND SRE HULE 17.20c) THERFBNBER

Date of Nnpart: Octobor 23, 2006

i‘_;'l‘:if: 3ehaviq! Il'l:‘.:'.'_n lion Number: PW.102

I T Tdontification Code: 350-000-101-528
Nitina of 1ssuor as specified in its Charter: Mani.a Electric Company

Country of Tncorporation: Philippines .

+ Industry Classification: (SEC use only)

Addrass of principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas /venue, Pasig City

Pesuer's belephone numbers: 16220 focal 3186 Aren Code: 0300

Farmier name or former address: Not Applicable

arcuilthng pagletorad pursuant to Sections 13

and 12 of the S0 OF
Soctions 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of

Tned foicli Clung Comimon Stock Quistancing
{ :i:in~- .' A 603,820,734
fae P 402,576,796

Viifnj 1,ggglggz,ggg
Arnowt of Debt Outstanding: P115. 93 Billion (as of August 31, 2006)
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Flange see attached:

1} Lotler to Director Justina F. Callangan.on the Company's 2006 3rd
_ Quarter results ended September 30, 2006 (Parent Company only).

21 Invitation to -the Presentation and a Teleconference Presentation
on the 3* Quarter 2006 Operating Results to ke held on October 27, 2005,
#:30 p.m., at the'Pasig Room;, Lighthouse, 14 Floor, Lopez Bullding,
Maralco Center, Ortigas Avemue, Pasig City.

SIGRATHRE

Puriainl 1o thi reguirements of the Securities Regulation Coda, the h.uar

v dity entinod 1i)g report to be signed on its hehalf by the il i g
Wesaonie thity suthorizaed.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

o 155997
- A ™
/ ///
/s
,/ GIL S/SAN D;IEJGO

L Vig President, Assistant
“Corporate Secretary and
Information Disclosure Officer

Date: ‘Octobar 23, 2006

e Discligia-Dij larfmnit
Listings dmf Diaclosure Group
Phitlntog Sk Exuhange {(PSE)
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Ploase see attached:

1) Letter to Director Justina F. Callangan on the Company’s 2006 3rd
Quarter results ended September30, 2006 (Pirrent Company only).

¢ hivitation to the Presentation.and & Teloconference-Prasantation
o thy 3% Quarter 2006 Operating-Results to Le heid'on October 27, 1005,
LM pam., at the Pasly Room, Lighihouse, 14 Floor, Lopor Bullding,
Moinico Center, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig-City.
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hereunto duly authorized.
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23 QOctober 2006

MS. JUSTINA F. CALLANGAN

Director, Corporation Finance Department
SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SECBldg., EDSA, Greenhills

Mandaluyong City

Dear Ms. Callangan,

We are submitting to your office the attached report of Manila Electric Company (Parent
Company only) for the third quarter ended September 30, 2006,

We are furnishing you an advanced copy of the Parent Company’s third quarter resulis as
we intend to release these information to the investors, analysts and the general public.
These reports are not substitute reports for SEC Form 17-Q. We shall be filing separately
the complete quarterty reports (SEC Form 17-Q) within 45 days after end of the quarter,
le. on or before November 14, 2006.

Thank vou.

Sincerely,

//, Y
AFAEL L. ANDRADA

%3{ Vice President & Treasurer

Executive

/

ice-President & Chief Financial Officer .

ce: Disclosure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange

Ter. No. (632) 631-2222 = (532) 16220
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS |

L NET INCOME

The company realized a modest net income of P229 million for the 3" quarter of 2006.
Although it was a turnaround from-a net loss of P479 million in the same’ period last year,
compared to the 2™ quarter net income of P1.12 billion, this was a decrease of 79.3%. Year-
to-date (YTD) cumulative earnings for 2006, on the other hand, reached P596 miilion, or a
156.1% improvement from a net loss of P1.06 billion in the same period in 2005.

In compliance to the principles of consistency and conservatism, the company- confinued to
make provisions for probable losses related to the rate unbundling case still:pending with the
Supreme Court (SC). For the 3™ quarter ended September 30, 2006, total provisions was
P1.39 billion while YTD provisions amounted to P4.62 billion, thereby reducing the
Company’s net income. Without the provisions, estimated net income for the 3% quarter

would have been P1.26 billion while YTD net income for the nine months of the vear would
have been P3.60 billion.

IL REVENUES

For the 3™ quarters ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, revenues grew by 1.9% year-on-
vear from P44.62 billion to P45.46 billion. The nine-month period likewise showed an
Increase in revenues by 5.7 % to P134.97 billion.

fII.  EXPENSES

The decrease in total expenses this quarter over the same period last year was at 9.5% from
P45.50 billion to P45.28 billion. The nine-month figure registered a -4.0% increase to

P134.33 billion. Major components of these expensas were purchased power, operations
and maintenance and depreciation.

Purchased power cost increased by 1.5% to P40.10 billion in the 3% quarter. In the. nine-
month period, the increase was 4.7% to P116.37 billion. The components were as follows:

* Recoverable purchased power cost (the cost up to the 9.5% system loss

cap) - increased by 0.5% to P39.95 billion for the 3" quarter and 4.5% to
P114.46 billion for the nine-month period.

* Unrecoverable purchased power cost (system loss in excess of the cap)
increased by 169.9% to P147 million this quarter. In a nine-month
period, this increased by 14.4% to P1.89 billion this year.

Operations and maintenance expenses increased by 14.6% this quarter compared to the 3™
quarter of'last year from P2.04 bitlion to P2.34 billion. Nine-month operations resulted to an

increase of 18.6% from P6.0 billion in 2005 to-P7.12 hillion in 2006.
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Operating income before provision for probable losses for the 3™ quarter of 2006 compared
with the same period last year increased 1.5% from P1.97 billion to almost P2.0 billion.
This was due to the higher level of operating revenues. and-modest increase in purchased
power cost of 0.5%. The nine-month period also revealed an increase in operating income
before provision for probable losses of 7.1% to P9.81 billion.

Operating income before provision for probable losses can be derived by deducting: from
total revenues the purchased power costs up to the system loss cap, operations and
maintenance, depreciation and amortization and taxes other than income tax.

Iv. iNCOME PER SHARE

As a result, Income per share for the 3" quarter of the year (excluding depreciation on
appraisal increase) increased by 12.8% to P0.121.

V. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures in the quarter increased by 3.38% over last year to P1.11 billion. ‘As of
September 30, 2006, total capital expenditures went up by 4.70% to P3.25 billion.

VI FINANCIAL IMPACT OF TYPHOON “MILENY(O”

For purposes of recording transactions, significant amount of damages brought about by
Typhoon Milenyo and the cost of repairs and testoration were practically being taken up in
the month of October since the typhoon occurred in the last few days .of: September.
Nevertheless, as of October 17, 2006, our records showed partial accumulated charges
relating to the said calamity for the amount of P116.31 million. Of this total; -about 23% was

charged to operations while 73% was charged to capital expenditures specifically relating to
the restoration of electric facilities.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

1. GWH SALES and BILLING KW DEMAND

GWH sales slightly decreased 0.3% 1o 6,438 GWH in the 3™ quarter of this-year compared
to the'same period in 2005. The slight decline could be attributed to shorter-billing days for
the period, the effect on sales of August 21 being declared-a holiday this year,
cooler weather, and the effects of Typhoon Mileny
GWH sales still managed to increase by 1% over the

relatively
0. Despite this, however, YTD overall
saine period last year,

The Commercial segment continued to lead GWH sale
by growths in Retail Trade, Transport and Storage S
sub-segment.

s growth, increasing-by 3.1%, driven
ervices together with the Real Estate

Retail Trade growth was fueled by the continuing exp
Asia, SM Supercenter, and SM Sta. Rosa, which ope

ansion of malls such as the $M Mall of
ned in the 2*' quarter. The MC Mall in
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Pasig City and Pilipinas Makro in Mandaluyong City are retail outlets that were added into
the grid in the 3" quarter. In totality, 63 major malls were operating in the franchise area
with total sales of 312 GWH or 12.8% of commercial sales inthe 3 quarter-this vear,

Transport and Storage Services on the other hand, sustained growths with- the increase in
grid consumption of the NAIA terminals, while the Real Estate upswing was maintained

through the steady operations of Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) offices including call
centers and IT-related businesses.

The Industrial segment registered a modest growth of 0.3% in the 3" quarter, fueled by
demand for manufactured products from the Eleclrical Machinery, Beverage, Leather
Products, and Paper Products sub-segments. With rising fuel prices during the period, self-
generating companies opted to avail of lower priced grid power. This cushioned the
negative impact of One Day Power Sales (ODPS) Program’s suspension from June 26 to
Tuly 186, 2006, as self-generating companies opted to avail of power from the grid, resulting
to a 110% increase in the native or baseline Meralco consumption of ODPS customers,
With the resumption of the ODPS in the middle of July, ODPS availment bounced back to
normal levels enabling the Industrial segment to end the quarter with a positive growth.

Residential sales continued to pull down overall GWH sales, declining 4.4% in the 3™
quarter of the year. This was due to cooler weather, energy conservation efforts of this

segment in response to fuel price increases, and the effects of franchise-wide power
interruption caused by Typhoon M ilenyo.

YTD GWH sales growth was led by the commercial segment, improving 3.6%, followed by

the industrial segment at 2.2%. Sales from the residential segment, however, declined by
2.7%.

Overall Billing KW Demand increased by 2.1% in the 3 quarter of 2006 while YTD Billing
KW Demand increased 2.6%.

11, AVERAGE RETAIL RATE

The average retail rate for September 2006 rose 6.3% to P7.75/KWH from P7.29/KWH in
the same period in 2005. Or

follows:

1 a per customer class basis, the comparative figures were as




.5 SEC
. w Co }5,% e
Manila Electric Company = e %i,i o
3" Quarter 2006 & 9-Months Financial-and Operating Results (Parent only) wiay lianig uig bihay
September 2005 | September 2008
Customer Class AverageiRate‘ Average Rate
(PIKWH}) (P/IKWH)

Residentiai 7.68 8.54

Lifeline 5.06 5.76

Non-lifeline 8.06 8.97

Commercial 7.50 7.82

GS, Small and Medium 7.97 B.48

Large 7.29 7.52

‘Very Large 6.85 6.98-

Industrial 6.56 B.71

Small and Medium 7.51 8.08

Large 6.78 6.95

Very Large 6.51 6.54

Extra Large 6.37 599

TOTAL 7.29 7.75

158

The increase was largely due to the implementation of the 12% VAT Rate starting February

20006 and the rise in transmission costs as a result of the increase in TRANSCO's Power
Delivery Service charges.

Retail rates could have been higher if not for the final Supreme Court decision on our 2
GRAM on August 12, 2006, which among others, disallows automatic rate adjustments. In
compliance with this decision, generation charges-to be recovered from customers have been

pegged at their August 2006 level of P4.43/kWh until new generation rates are-approved by
the ERC.

Generation costs increased due to an upward movement in WESM prices. Two rate
applications to the ERC to update the generation charge for September and: October 2006
were filed on September 26 and October 20, respectively. Generation charges could have
increased already to P4.71/kWh in September and P5.73/kWh in October.

However, mitigating the' impact of increased taxes and transmission charges were the higher

dispatch of Meralco IPPs in the 3™ quarter and the completion-of the 3-year recovery period
to collect deferred PPA of PO:1002/kWh in the 2™ and 3™ quarters.

PURCHASED POWER COSTS

Since the commercial operations of the WESM on June 23, 2006, the dispatch levels of
Meralco IPPs (First Gas- San Lorenzo, First Gas- Sia. Rita, Quezon Power} had improved
considerably from an average of 73% in the supply month of June (pre-WESM) to 87% in

September. This improvement in capacity factor resulted in a lower unit-generation cost of
these plants, from an average of P4.52/KWH in July to P4.34/KWH in September. In tlie

3% quarter this year, IPP dispatch was 86.51% comj
vear.

pared 10 77.66% in the same period last

]
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On the other hand, the unit cost of purchased power from the WESM rose to an average of
P8.40/KWH in September from a low of P5.20/KWH in its 1¥ month of operation.

Furthermore, transmission costs of IPPs as of September 2006 continued to be lower
(PO.60/KWH) than those from power sourced from WESM (P1.29/KWHj.  Lower
generation and transmission charges combined resulted in a lower purchased power cost for
the IPPs from P5.15/KWH in July to P4.94/KWH in September.

Since the commercial operation of the WESM, all generation companies had to schedule

their generation or bid via the WESM to be dispatched including 1PPs having bilateral
contracts with Meralco.

The market dispatch mechanism prioritizing power plants with the lowest generation offers
is the reason for such improvement in the Meralco IPP dispatch. The criteria for
determining power supply profile for the entire Luzon grid has changed from a cost-based
merit order to a bidding system where both price and volume are offered by generation

participants. These IPPs bid zero to ensure dispaich since they are paid the contractual
amounts regardless of the WESM clearing price.

TV, SYSTEM LOSS

For the 3" quarter of 2006, the recorded system loss was higher by 0.93 percentage points to
9.84% from last year’s 3" quarter system loss of 8.92%.

The apparent deterioration in the 3 Quarter 2006 system loss was mainly attributable to the
increase in the consumption at the latter part of the bulk energy billing cycle,.which was not
reflected in the retail sales since most meters have been read by that time. Sales, however,

will be captured during the next billing period. Thus, we expect a correction of the pattern
by the 4™ quarter.

Despite the “deterioration” in the 3 quarter, the 12-month moving average svstem loss

ending September 2006 still managed to improve by 0.03 percentage points to 1¢.29% from
10.32% 1n-2005.

In a related development, the signing of the Rules and Regulations Implementing the
Memorandum of Agreement between MERALCO and the DILG on providing electric
service, eliminating pilferage of electricity, and ensuring public safety, was jointiv signed by
Mr. Ricardo V. Buencamino (Senior Vice President and Head, Networks) representing

MERALCO and Mr. Marius P. Corpus (DILG Undersecretiry), representing the DILG, last
September §, 2006.

V. SYSTEM RELIABILITY

The course of system reliability and availability in the third quarier was charted by a single
and powerful act of nature--Typhoon Milenyo-- whose maximum sustained. winds of 190
kph (based on the Saffir-Simpson Tropical Cyclone Scale used by the US Navy-AF
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Typhoon Warning Center) passed directly on Meralco’s southern franchise area, including
Metro Manila, on September 28, 2006.

Asa résu[t, system reliability, in terms of Interruption Frequency Rate (IFR).detcriorated by
94.06% from 2.83 times in the 3" quarter of 2005 10 $.51 times for the same periad this
year. Forced into a Luzon system-wide blackout on the day Typhoon Milenyo hit the
franchise area, system availability, as measured by Cumulative Interruption Time (CIT), was

naturally affected, waning to 32.74 hours in the 3" quarter from 2.69 hours in the same
period last year.

On a YTD September 2006 basis, system rehiability deteriorated by 33.17% from $.38 times

n 2005 to 11.16 times for the same period this year. On the other hand, system availability
deteriorated by 452.85% from 7.05 hours in 2005 to 38.99 hours for the same period this
year.

Meralco was, however, up to the modern challenges of restoring electric ‘service at the

soconest possible time though many of the circumstances facing it have never been equaled in
experiences with previous typhoons.

With Typhoon Milenyo downing hundreds of trees, including those well-entrenched and
standing below concrete pavements, as well as a multitude of billboards, around 845 crews,
manned by over 2,300 personnel were immediately dispatched, including those of partner
and neighboring distribution utilities, and worked round the clock to restore service
(repairing.over 1,700 damaged or leaning poles and over 1,400 wiredown incidents) to the
now over 4.3 million customers spread in 9,337 square km of franchise area,

Despite the magnitude of the effects of the typhoon, power to 95% of all 739 Meralco
cireuits were restored after five days and all circuits were energized (660 distribution and 79

sub-transmission) on October 7, 2006 with only some isolated: pockets

still.out due to local
troubles.

Without Typhoon Milenyo, IFR and CIT would have been 3.78 times and 2.76 hours,

respectively in the 3" quarter of this year while YTD September 2006 figures, on the other
hand, would have been 8.72 times and 6.88 hours, respectively.

On more Meralco-controlled causes, IFR and CIT attributable to pre-arranged interruptions
unproved by 16% and 34% respectively'in the 3% quarter.

REGULATORY UPDATES

Regulatory highlights for the 3™ quarter 2006 were:

- ]

Last September 1, 2006, Meralco filed its first rate application under the Energy
Commission’s (ERC’s) performance-based regulation (PBR). Meralco is one of the: three
investor-owned distribution utilities to begin the shift to PBR, the others being ‘Cagayan
Electric Power and Light Company (CEPALCO) and Dagupan Electric Corporation
(DECORP). The ERC is planning on releasing its final determination on Meralco’s
application by May 31, 2007, so that PBR-based tarifis will be in place by July 2007.

Regulatory
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® Meanwhile, hearings are on-going on Meralco’s 14.76-c/kWh rate petition, the company’s
fast under the prevailing Return on Rate Base (RORB) regime. Meralco already completed
the presentation and cross-examination of its witnesses-last August 16, 2006.

Last August 12, 2006, the Supreme Court denied ‘separate motions fited by ERC and
Meralco, asking for the reconsideration of a February 2006 Decision that.set aside and
dectared void the ERC’s Order on Meralco’s second-GRAM filing of June 2003,

o Inits rulings, the Court also said that compliance with the due process requirements
of Rule 3, Sec.4e of EPIRA’s Implementing Rules and Regulations .(IRR) is
mandatory ‘for any change in the retail rate to end-users. Thus, last Septémber T,
2006, the ERC directed Meralco to submit a .proposal for refunding amounts
collected under the second GRAM filing that was voided'by the High-Court;

o In its proposal, Meralco indicated that the amount to be refunded;ic about P827
million, to be returned to customers in three equal monthly instaliments. The
company also said that, given the preparatory activities required, the carliest that the
proposed refund may be implemented is January 2007.

For-further quastions:
Meraice tnvestor Relations
Tel Nos. (832) 16222450, (632) 6328323




Mamia Electric Company

37 Quarter 2006 & 9-Months Financial and Operating Results (Parent only)

f i
il

.5 SEC
e i, 323747
“l

Ry irang g buty

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Streetlights

Customer.Class.

COMPARISON:OF. KILOWATT:HOUR'SALES
For the-quarters ended September 30, 2006 and 2005

{ In million kWh )

2,121.67
2,444 .18
1,837.09

35.55

20087

..2005 . .

2,220.20
2,371.56
1,832.50

35.53

~ % Gharige”

(4.4)
3.1
053
0.1

.TOTAL

645979 .o

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Streetlights

Customs? Class - *

{ In million kWh )
. 2008

6,312.32
7,016.78
5,327.91

105.84

' Fmr thelne months ended September 30 2006 and 2005

2005,

6,484.87
6,770.87
5214.78

106.12

. % Change.

(2.7)
3.6
2.2
{0.3)

TIOTAL T T

- 18,762:84

: _18l576.65 g Lt
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For the quarters ended September 30, 2008 and 2005
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

oo .. 20087 " 772008 % Change
REVENUES 45,463 44,621 1.9
EXPENSES (INCOME)
Purchased power 40,095 39,522 1.5
Operations and maintenance 2,342 2,044 14.6
Provision-for probable - losses 1,591 1,630 (2.4}
Depreciation and amortization 1,039 857 21.3
fnterest and other financial charges - net 478 1,448 (67.0)
CERA Il revenues (353) (462) (23.5)
Foreign exchange losses - net : 353 462 (23.5}
interest and other financial income (582) {223) 161.0
Present value impact-on customers’ refund 126 144 (12.4)
Provision for prabable fosses an - -
disallowed receivables 53 59 £9.1)
Taxes other than income tax 138 22 534.0
45279 45,502 {0.5)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX ‘184 {(881) 120.9
Provision for (benefit.from) income tax (45) (402) (88.7)
NETINCOME(LOSS) -~ - . o 0 [ .58 {479y T1478

g '*COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS O : INCOME ;
For the nine months ended September 30,:2006 and-2005
{Amounts in Million Pesos)

2006 . T2005  %Change
REVENUES 134,959 127,685 5.7
EXPENSES-(INCOME)
Furchased-power 116,371 111,167 4.7
Operations-and maintenance 7.123 6,004 186
Frovision-for probable losses 4,621 4,680 (1.5)
Depraciation and amortization 3,197 2,850 122
Interest and other financial charges - nat 2,699 3,491 (22.7;
CERA Il revenues (1,356) (1,289) 5.2
Foreign exchange losses - net 1,356 1,289 5.2
interest and other financial income (1,092) (423) 158.1
Present vatue impact on customers' refund 882 1,007 (12.4}
Provision:for probable losses on
disallowed receivables 163 177 {7.9)
Taxes other than income tax 369 170 117.5
134,332 128,132 4.0
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 636 {1,447) 144.0
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 41 (385) 110.5

NET INCOME {LOSS) - co 596 7 (1,061)  156.1
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OMPARATIVE BALANCE: SHEETS,
As of September 30, 2006 and 2005

(Amaunts in Million Pesos)

L. . WL - 2006 . . -2005 . % Change .
ASSETS
Noncurrent Assets
Utility Piant and others-net 92 283 © 93,918 (1.7}
Investrments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures 1,114 966 15.3
investment.properties 839 348 140.9
Deferred pass-through fue! costs 7,521 11,133 {32.4)
Other noncurrent assets 11,148 10,582 5.4
Total Noncurrent Assets 112,906 116,948 43.5)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,658 11,258 (58.6}
Trade and other receivables 29,570 24,729 19.6
Inventories 1,278 1,226 4.2
Other current-assets 6,204 ‘604 927.5
Total Current Assets 41,711 37,817 10.3
TOTAL'ASSETS: - -7 .7 . T 184,817 ".oqsafes T (o

STOCKHOLDBERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

; Sl D a008 7 L2008 %Ehange
{Stockholders' Equity 33,273 32,347 2.9
Noncurrent Liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and other

borrowings - net of current portion 10,643 20,820 (47.9)
Deferrgdd income tax liabilities 2,107 6,163 (65:8)
Customers' deposits 18,600 17,817 4.4
Provisions 21,710 15,003 447
Customers' refund - net of current portion 12,785 13,389 (4.5)
Liability arising from deferrad pass-through

fuel costs - net of current portion 3,897 9,586 (59.3)
Other noncurrent liabilities 423 1,268 _(66.9)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 70,366 84,046 {16.3}

Current Liahilities

Trade and other payables 37,688 26 575 41.8
Customers’refund - current portion 1,982 4,638 (57.3)
Interest-bearing loans and’other

borrowings - current portion 3,003 2,668 12.5
Income-iax payable 1,697 1,117 51.9
Other current liabilities 6,610 3,373

Total Current Liabilities 50,979 38,372 32.9

R,

TOTAL. STOCKHOLDERS EQU!TY - ._‘- .
AND LIABILITIES -~ - T

154,617 154,765 . f0.1)
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muy iwanag ang buhay

COMPARATIVE CASH FLOW STATEMENT j
For the quarters endad Septamber 30, 2006 and 2005

(Amournts in Million Pesos)

oo L R .. 2006 . . 2005 ' % change
|CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING (July 1) 8,403 7,117 18.1

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating and other income 1,033 105 B8BC.O

Depreciation and amonrtization 1,039 857 21.2

Increase (decrease) in other assets

and ligbilities (1,685) 4,277 (139.4)
Net Cash from Operations 287 £,239 {22.6)
Add ;. Equity issues - 42 {100.%)

Short-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings

[TOTAL SOURCES OGF FUNDS 387 5,281

(92.7}
Less . Shortterm debt service - - -
Long-term debt service 2,751 31 100.0
Other'interest expense 114 (22) 610.1
Total' Debt Service 2,6G6 278 929 .4
Unrecoverable purchasad power 147 211) 169.9
Capital expenditures 1,108 1,072 3.4
Freferred equity redemptions 10 4a0) 126.3

Refund to customers - 40 (100.0)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 4,131 1,139 ze2.6
INET DECREASE IN CASH (3,744) 4,141  (190.4)
CASH BALANCE, END - (Septembar 30) . o o aesd T T 42887 (SE.6)

COMPARATIVECASH FLOW,STATGMENT ;
For-the nine months ended September 30, 2006 .and.2005
{Amounts in Million Pesos)

RPN e .. .Il.0 2006857 2008 % change

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING (January 1) 13,722 4,377 213.5
CASH FLOWS . FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating:and other income G,236 4,416 41.2
Depreciation and amorization 3,187 2,850 12.2
Increase (decrease) in other assels )
and liabilities (3,183) 8,127 {139.2)
Net Cash from Operations 6,249 15,392 (59.4)

Add : Equity'issues
Short-term borrowings
tong-term borrowings

- 616 (100.C;

1YOTAL SOQURCES OF FUNDS 6,249 16,008 {61.0)

Less : Shortterm debt service

Long-term debt service 7,492 1,365 100.0
Otherinterest expense 2,615 2,544 2.8
Total Debt Service 10,107 2,909 158.5
Unrecoverable purchased power 1,895 1,657 14.4
Capital expenditures 3,254 3,107 4.7
Preferred equity redemptions 49 311 84.1)
Refund to customers 8 142 (9'4'.4)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 15,313 9,127 87.8
NET DECREASE IN CASH (9,064) 6,881  {231.7)
CASH BALANCE, END (Septamber 30) 4,658 11,258 . ' (58.6)

11
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may et ang mihay

" For the nine monthsended Seember 30 2008 and 2005
(Amounts in Million Pesos)
LIt T L T 2006 T 3005 % Change,
|BALANCE, Beginning {1,312) 1,027 (227.7)
Effect of implementation of PAS - (1.615) (100.0)
{1,312) {(587) 1234
" Add:
Net income (Loss) 596 (1,061 156.1
Realized revaluation surpius 334 313 8.7
(383) (1,336) (714}
1Deduct;
1 Appropriated retained earnings, beginning 200 200 -
Transfer from/(to)
Unappropriated retained earnings - -
BALANCE (583) (1,536) (62.1)
Deduct:
Cash dividends declared - - -
Stock d:wdends declared - - -
[BALANCE, End.ot:. ~ - - W -0 LT T (583) v oA ;536)  {62.1)




Manila Efectric Company (MERALCO) has scheduled its 2006 3rd Quarter resulis on
October 27, 2006 at 1:30 PM. This will be held at the:

Pasig Room, Lighthouse, 14™ floor,
Lopez Building, Meralce Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Meralco has also arranged for a simultaneous Conference Call facility. Details {or the
Conference Call are as follows:

Conference Call Number +852 2112 1333
Passcode: MERALCO

These who wish to attend are requested to fill u

p the appropriate form (please see
attached forms) and send through fax at; -

Meralco Fax: + 632 631 5591




.
M

YOU ARE INVITED
TO A PRESENTATION
ON THE 3rd Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Friday, October 27, 2006
1:30 PM

at the
Pasig Room, Lighthouse, 14™ flaor,
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to:

+632 631- 5591

cn or before October 26, 2006, If you have questions, piease call Roger Rosario or
Elaine Shik of MERALCO at the following numbers:

+632 1622-245(0
+632 1622-2341
+632 632-8323

NAME -

JOB FUNCTION
COMPANY
ADDRESS
CITY, COUNTRY

TELEPHONE

N
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AERALCD
YOU ARE INVITED
TO A TELECONFERENCE PRESENTATION
ON THE 3rd Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Friday, October 27, 2006
1:30 PM (Manila Time)

_ Conference Call Number*
+852 2112-1333
Passcode: MERALCO
* Please call at least five (5) minutes before the scheduled time.

Instant Replay Number**
+852 2112-1000
Passcode: MERALCO
** Available until October 31. 2006

Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to +632
631-359] on. or before October 26, 2006, If you have questions, please call Roger
Resario or Elaine Shih of MERALCO at the following numbers:

+632 1622-2450
+632 1622-2341
+632 632-8323
NAME _ _
JOB FUNCTION ¢ - | T
COMPANY
ADDRESS

P CITY. COUNTRY |1 . , . !
i P

o
=
2
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PASIGCIEY

(Company’s Addresé)

16220
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DECEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

LAST TUESDAY OF MAY

(Annual Meeting)
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(8.E.C. Registration No.)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM

CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AKD SRC RULE17.2(c) THEREUNDER

10.

Date.of Report: October 26, 2006

SEC Identification Number: PW-102

BIR Tax Identification Code: 350-000-101-528

Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manifa Electric Company
Country-of Incorporation: Philippines

Industry Classification: (SEC use only) |
Acidress-of principa!l office: Lopéz Building, Ortigas A\venue, Pasig City

Issuer’s telephone numbers: 16220 focal 3186 Area Code: 0300

. Former:name or former address: Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 18 and 12 of the SRC or

Sactions-4 and 8:0f the RSA:

Number of Shares of

IlL@..Qf_Eifzbﬁlaﬁ Commeon Stock Quistanding
Class “A” 603,820,734
Class “B" 402:576,796
Total 1,006,397,530

Amount:.of Debt:Outstanding: P115. 93 Billion (as of August 31, 2006)
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11, Ttem ‘Number reported: ftem 9 (Other Events)

Relative to-our disclosure of October 25, 2006, wo-are-submitting herewith
an::amendment: regarding (ltem No. 2} the sclieduled “Invitation to the
Presentation and a. Teleconference. Presentation on the 3 Quarter 2006
Operating:Restilts-to:be.Held-on ‘October 27, 2006; 1:30 p.m., at. the Pasig:room,
Lighthouse; 14t Floor, Lopez: Building; -Meralco- Center, Ortigas Avenus; Pasiy
City", ‘which:was:rescheduled.to October 31, 2006 , 1:30 p.m.,.at.the Basement
Mini -Theater, Lopez Building, Meralco Center, Ortigas Avenue, Pasiy-City

SIGNATURE
Pursuant.to. the. requir

_ rements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer
has duly: caused: this report to be signed: on its behalf by the undersigned
hereurnto-duly authorized. '

MANILA EEECT:EIC COMPANY
IsSuer

Corporate:Secretary-and.
Information:Disclosure Officer

Date: Ociober 26, 2006

ce: Disciosure:Department
Listings-and:Disclosure Group
Fhilippin'er‘Stbck-f-EXchange (PSE)
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26 October 2006

MS. JUSTINA F. CALLANGAN

Director, Corporation Finance Depattment
SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Bldg., EDSA, Greenhills

Mandaluyong City

Dear Ms. Callangan,

We are submitting to your office the attached report of Manila Electric Company (Parent
Company only) for the third quarter ended September 30, 20006.

We are furnishing you an advanced copy of the Parent Company’s third quarter resulls as
we intend to release these information to the investors, analysts and the general public.
These reports are not substitute reports for SEC Form 17-Q. We shall be filing separately

the complete guarterly reports (SEC Form 17-Q) within 45 days after end of the quarter,
i.e. onor before November 14, 2006.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

St

AFAEL L. ANDRADA
First Vice President & Treasurer

B. TAGAZA .
1ce-President & Chief Financial Officer

ce: Disclosure Depaﬂment
Listings and Disclosure Group
Phitippine Stock Exchange

TeL Mo, (632) 631-2222 + {632) 16220
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| FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

L NET INCOME

The company realized a modest net income of P229 million for the 3™ quarter of 2006,
Although it was a turnaround from a net loss of P479 million in the same-period last year,
compared to the 2™ quarter net income of P1.12 billion, this was a decrease:of 79.5%. Year-
to-date (YTD) cumulative carnings for 2006, on the other hand, reached P596 million, ora
156.1% improvement from a net loss of P'1.06 billion i the same period in: 2005

In compliance to the principles of consistency and conservatism, the company continued to
make provisions for probable losses related to-the rate unbundling case still:pending with the

Supreme Court (SC). For the 3™ quarter ended September 30, 2006, total:provisions was
P1.59 billion while YTD provisions amou

mted to P4.62 billion, thereby reducing the
Company’s net income. Without the provi

sions, estunated net income for. the 3™ quarter
would have been P1.26 billion while YTD netincome for the nine months ofithe year would
have been P3,60 billion.

11 REVENUES

For the 3™ quarters ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, revenues
year from P44.62 billion to P45 .46 billion. The nine

merease intevenues by 5.7 % to P134.97 billion.

grew by 1.9% year-on-
~month period likewise showed an

OF.  EXPENSES

The decrease in total-expenses this quarter over the same period last year was al 0:3% from
P45.50 billion to P45.2% billion, The nine-month figure registered a 4°0% increase to

P134,33 billion. Major components of these txpenses were purchased power, operations
and maintenance and depreciation.

Purchased power cost increased by 1.5%

to P40.10 biltion in the 3% quarter. In the nine-
month period, the increase was 4.7%

to P116.37 billion. The-components were as follows:

* Recoverable purchased power cost (the cost up to the 9.5% systenv:loss
cap) - increased by 0.5% to P39.95 billion for the 32 quarter and 4.5% o

P114.46 billion for the nine-month period.

* Unrecoverable purchased Power cost (system loss i excess of the cap)
increased by 169:9% to P147 million this quarter. In a nine-month
period, this increased by 14.49% to P1 -89 billion this year.

Cperations and maintenance expenses increased by 14.6%

quarter of last'year from P2.04 billion to P2 34 billion. Nine
increase of 18.6%

this quarter compared to the 37

-month-operations resultedito an
from P6.0 biltion in 2005 to P7.12 billion in 2006.
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Operating income before provision for probable losses for the 3™ quarter of 20074 compared
with the same period last year increased 1.5% from -P1.97 billion to almoest P2:0 billion,
This was due to the higher level of operating revenues and modest increase in purchased
power cost of 0.5%. The nine-month period also revealed an increase in -operating income
before provision for probable losses of 7.1% to P9.81 billion.
Operating income before provision for probable losses can be derived by -deducting from

total revenues the purchased power costs up to the system loss cap, ‘operations and
maintenance, depreciation and amortization and taxes other than income tax,

IV.  INCOMEPER SHARE

As a result, Income per share for the 3% quarter of the year (excluding depreciation on
appraisal increase) increased by 12.8% to P0.121.

V. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures in the quarter increased by 3.38% over Jast year to P1.I7 billion. As of
September 30, 2006, total capital expenditures went up by 4.70% to P3.25 billion.

V1. FINANCIAL IMPACT OF TYPHOON “MILENYO?”

For purposes of recording transactions, significant
Typhoon Milenyo and the cost of repairs and restor.

the month of October since the typhoon occurred in the last few days--of September.
Nevertheless, as of October 17, 2006, our records showed partial accumulated ‘charges
relating to'the said calamity for the amount of P116.31 million. Of this-total, -about 23% was

charged to operations while 73% was charged to capital expenditures specifically relating to
the restoration of electric facilities.

amount of’ damages brought about by
ation ‘were practically-being taken up in

| OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

L GWH SALES and BILLING KW DEMAND

GWH sales slightly decreased 0.3% to 6,438 GWH in the 3"
to the same period in 2005. The slight dec]
the period, the effect on sales of Angust
cocler weather, and the effects of Typhoo
GWH salesstill managed to increase by 1

Y.quarter of this.year compared
ine could be attributed to shorter biiling days for
21 being declared a holiday this :year, relatively
n Milenyo. Despite this, however, YTD overall
o over the same period last year.

The Commercial segment continued to lead GWH sales growth, increasing.by 3.1 %, driven
by urowths in Retail Trade, Transport and Storage Services together withthe Real Estate
sub-segment, :

Retail Trade growth was fueled by the continuin
Asia, SM Supercenter, and SM Sta. Rosa, whicl

g expansion of malls such asthe'SM Mall of
vopened in the 2™ quarter. The MC Mall in
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Pasig City and Pilipinas Makro in Mandaluyong City are retail outlets tllat"W'ere--addf;d into
the grid in the 3“ quarter. In totality, 63 major malls were operating in the franchise area
with total sales of 312 GWH or 12.8% of commercial sales in the 3 quarter this year,

Transport and Storage Services on the other hand, sustained growths with:the increase :in
grid consumption of the NAIA terminals, while the Real Estate upswing 'was maintained

through the steady operations of Business Process Outsourcing (BPO)'ofﬁce's-?including cal}
centers and IT-related businesses.

The Industrial segment registered a modest growth of 0.3% in the 3" -quarter. fueled by
demand for manufactured praducts from the Electyical Machinery, Beverage, T:eather
Products,-and Paper Products sub-segments. With rising-fuel prices during:the period, self-
generating companies opted to avail of lower priced grid power. This' cushioned the
negative impact of One Day Power Sales (ODPS) Program’s suspension fror June-26 to
Julv 16, 2006, as self-generating companies opted-to-avail of power from the: grid; resulting
to a T'10% increase in the native or baseline Meralco consumption of ODPS customers.

With the resumption of the ODPS in the middle of July, ODPS availment bouneced back to

normal levels enabling the Industrial segment to end the quarter with a positive growth,

Residential sales continued to pull down overall GWH sales, declining 4.4% in the 3™
quarter of the year. This was due to cooler weather, energy conservation: ¢%orts of this

segment in response to fuel price increases, and the effects of franchise

-wide power
interruption caused by Typhoon Milenyo.

YTD GWH sales growth was led by the commercial segment, improving 3.6%, followed by

the industrial segment at 22%. Sales from the residential segment, however, declined by
2.7%.

Overall Billing KW Demand increased by 2.1% in the 3"

quarter of 2006 while YTDBilling
KW Demand increased 2.6%,

AVERAGE RETAIL RATE

The average retail rate for September 2006 rose 6.3%

to P7.75/KWH from'P7.29/KWH in
the same period in 2005. On a per customer class ba

sis, the comparative figures were as
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September 2005 September2006
Average Riite Average:Rate
Customer Class (PIKWH) (PIKWH)

Residential 7.68 8.54
Lifeline 5.06 5.76
Non-lifeline 8.06 8.97
Commercial 7.50 7.82
GS, Small and Medium 7.97 8.48
Large 7.29 7.52
Very Large 6.85 6.98
Industrial 6.56 6.71
Small and Medium 7.51 8.08
Large 6.78 5.95
Very Large 6.51 6.54
Extra Large 6.37 5.99
TOTAL 7.29 7.75

The increase was largely due to the implementation of the 12% VAT Rate-startin

rg February
2006 and the rise in transmission costs as a result of the increase in TRANSCO’s Power
Delivery Service charges.

Retail rates could have been higher if not for the final Supreme Court decision on-our 2™
GRAM on August 12, 2006, which among others, disallows automatic rate"adjustments. In

compliance-with this decision, generation charges to be-recovered from customers have been

peeged at their August 2006 level of P4.43/kWh until. new generation rates-are 1 pproved by
the ERC. '

Geueration costs increased due (o an upward movement in WESM prices. Two rate

applications to the ERC to update the generation charge for September and“October 2006
were filed on September 26 and October 20, respectively. Generation charges could have
increased already to P4.71/kWh in September and P5.73/kWh in October.

However, mitigating the tmpact of increased taxes and transmission charges were the-higher
dispatch of Meralco IPPs in the 3™ quarter and-the completion of the 3-year recovery period
to collect deferred PPA of PO.1002/kWh in the 2" ang 3 quarters.

I,  PURCHASED POWER COSTS

» the dispatch levels of
» First Gas- Sta. Rita, Quezon Power)had improved
considerably from an average of 73% in the supply month of June (pre-WESM) t0 '87% in
September. This improvement in capacity factor resulted in a lower unit generation cost of
these plants, from an average of P4.52/KWH in July to P434/KWH in September. 1n the

3" quarter this year, 1PP dispatch was 86.51% compared to 77.66% in the same pertod last
year. ’
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On the other hand, the unit cost of purchased power from the WESM rose to-au average of
P8.40/KWH in Sepiember from a low of P5 20/KWH in its 1* month of operatios.

Furthermore, transmission costs of IPPs as of September 2006 continued to be lower
(P0.60/KWH) than those from power sourced from WESM (P1.29/KWH). Lower
generation and transmission charges combined resulted in a lower purchased:power cost for
the IPPs from PS.15/KWH in July to P4.94/KWH in September.

Since the commercial operation of the WESM, all
their generation or bid via the WESM to be dis
coniracts with Meralco.

generation companies had to schedula
patched ‘including TPPs having 'bilateral

The market dispatch mechanism prioritizing power plants with the lowest generation offers
is the reason for such improvement in the Meralco 1PP dispatch.  The criteria for
determining power supply profile for the entire Luzon grid has changed from 2 cost?based
merit order to a bidding system where both price and volume are offered By generation

participants. These IPPs bid zero to ensure dispatch since they are paidthe contractual
amounts regardless of the WESM clearing price.

For the 3™ quarter of 2006, the recorded system loss was -higher by 0.93 percentage points to
9.84% from last year’s 3" quarter system loss of §.929

The apparent deterioration in the 3™ Quarter 2006 system loss was mainly-attributable fo the
increase i the consumption at the latter part of the bulk energy billing-eycle;which was not
reflected in the retail sales since most meters have been read by that time. Sajes, however,

will be' captured during the next billing period. Thus, we expect a correction-of the pattern
by the 4™ quarter,

Despite the “deterioration”
ending-September 2006 still
16.32% in 2005.

in the 3" quarter, the 12-month moving average system Joss
managed to improve by .03 percentage points-to 10.29% from

In a related development, the signing of the Rules and Regulations Implementing the
Memorandum of Agreement between MERALCO and the DILG on providing electric
service, eliminating pilferage of electricity, and ensuring public safety, wasjoimly signed by
Mr. Ricarde V. Buencamino (Senior Vice Presidernt and Head, Networks) representing
MERALCO and Mr. Marius P. Corpus (DILG Undersecretary

), representingithe DILG, [ast
September 8, 2006,

V. SYSTEM'RELIABILITY

The course of system reliability and availability in the third quarter was charted: by a single
and powerful act of nature--Typhoon Milenyo-- whose maximum sustained®winds of 190

V.  SYSTEMLOSS
|
|
- kph (baséd on the Saffir-Simpson Tropical Cyclone Scale used by the US Navy-AF
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Typhoon Warning Center) passed directly
Metro Manila, on September 28, 2006.

on Meralco’s southern franchise: area, including

As a result, system reliability, in terms of Interruption Frequency Rate (IFR) detzriorated by
94.06% from 2.83 times in the 3 quarter of 2005 to 5.51 times for the 'same period: this
year. Forced into a Luzon system-wide blackout on the day Typhoon Milcnyoi hit the
franchise area, system availability, as measured by Cumulative Interruption Time {CIT), was

naturally affected, waning to 32.74 hours in the 3" quarter from 2.69 hours in the same
period last year,

On a YTD September 2006 basis, system reliability deferiorated by 33.17% from $.38 times
i 2005 to 11.16 times for the same period this year. On the other hand, system availability

detericrated by 452.85% from 7.05 hours in 2005 to 38.99 hours for the same-period this
year.

Meralco was, however, up to the modern challen
soonest possible time though many of the circumsta
experiences with previous typhoons.

ges of restoring electric service at the
1ces facing it have never bees equaled in

With Typhoon Milenyo downing hundreds of trees, including those well-entrenched and
standing below concrete pavements, as well as a multitude of billboards, around 245 crews,
manned by over 2,300 personnel were immediately dispatched, includingthose of “pariner
and neighboring distribution utilities, and worked round the clock to Testore service
(repairing over 1,700 damaged or leaning poles and over 1,400 wiredown incidents) to the
now over 4.3 million customers spread in 9,337 square km of franchise area.

Despite the magnitude of the effects of the typhoon, power 10 95% of all 739 Meralco
Circuits were restored after five days and all circuits were energized (660 distribution aind 79

sub-transmission) on October 1, 2006 with only some isolated pockets still-ont due to local
troubles,

Without Fyphoon Milenyo, IFR and CIT would h
respectively in the 3" quarter of this year while YTj
hand, would have been 8.72 times and 6.88 howrs, re

ave been 3.78 times and 7.76 hours,
D September 2006 figures, on the other
spectively.

On more Meralco-controlled causes, IFR and CIT attributable to

pre-arranged interruptions
improved by 16% and 34% respectively in the

3" quarter.

REGULATORY UPDATES '

Regulatory highlights for the 3 quarter 2006 v

ere:;

° Last September 1, 2006, Meralco filed jts first rate application under the Energy

Commission’s (ERC’s) performance-based regulation (PBR). Meralco is one
investor-owned distribution utilities to begin the shift to PBR, the others bei

Electric Power and Light Company (CEPALCO) and Dagupan Electric Corporation
(DECORP). The ERC is planning on teleasing its final determination on Meraleo's
application by May 31, 2007, so that PBR-based tariffs will be in‘place by July 2007,

Regulatory
of the three
ng Cagayan
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*  Meanwhile, hearings are on-going on Meralco’s 14.76-c/kWh rate petition, the company’s
last under-the prevailing Return on Rate Base (RORBY) regime. Meralco already completed
the presentation and cross-examination of its witnesses last August 16, 2006.

-]

Last August 12, 2006, the Supreme Court denied separale motions filed by ERC and

Meralco, asking for the reconsideration of a February 2006 Decision that set aside and

declared void the ERC’s Order on Meralco’s second GRAM filing of June 20073,

o Inits rulings, the Court also said that compliance with the due process requirements

of Rule 3, Sec.de of EPIRA’s Implementing Rules and Regulations {IRR) is

mandatory for any change in the retail rate to end-users. Thus, last September 1,

2006, the ERC directed Meralco to submit a proposal for refinding amounts
collected under the second GRAM filing that was voided by the High:Court.

o In its proposal, Meralco indicated that the amount to be refunded:is about P§27

million, to be returned to customers in three equal monthly installments. The

company also said that, given the preparatory activities required, the.earliest that the
proposed refund may be implemented is January 2007,

Forfurther questions:
Me:alco Investor Relations
Tel'Nes, (632) 15222450, (632) 6328323

A
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e L ezag ang bty

Customer:G

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Streetlights

( In million kWh )

2,121.67
2,444.18
1,837.09

35.55

' For th uarters end'September 30 2006 and 2005

20057 T

2,220.20
2,371.56
1,832.50

35.53

S TOTAL. 0

Reasidential
Commercial
Industrial
Streetlights

STOTAL.

Customer C1

{ In million kWh )

6,312.32
7,016.78
5,327.91

105.84

006

NMEARIS ; UR’f
Foir the nine months ended September 30 2006 and 2005

20087 T

6.484.87
8,770.87
5,214.78

106.12

Wihangs:

(2.7)
3.6
2.2
(0.3)
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For the quarters ended September 30,2006+ and

{Amounts in Million Pesos)

e . .2006 "

I, 2605 %, Cha nge
REVENUES 45,463 44,624 1.9
EXPENSES(INCOME)
Purchased power 40,005 39,522 1.5
Operations and maintenance 2,342 2,044 14.8
Provisionfor probable losses 1,591 1,630 {24y
Depreciation and amortization 1,039 857 21.3
Interest and other financiat charges - net 478 1,448 °  (B7.09
CERA Il revenues (353) (462) (23.5)
Foreign extchange losses - net 353 462 23.5)
Interest and other financiat income (582) (223) 1g1.0
Present value impact on customers’' refund 126 144 (12.41
FProvision:for probable losses on - -
disallowed receivables 53 59 (9.1
Taxes other than income tax 138 22 5346
45,279 45,502 H0:5)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 184 (881) 120.2
|Provisicn for (benefit fromY income tax (45) (402) ;

(479) 7%

e

ORINCOM

{Amounts in Mitlien Pesas)

For the nine. months: ended eber 30,.2006.and 2005

(72008 o
REVEMUES 134,969 127,685 5.7
EXPENSES"‘(INCOME)
Purchased powar 116,371 111,167 47
Operations and maintenance 7,123 6,004 188
Provision‘far probable losses 4,621 4 690 41.5)
Dapreciation and amortization 3,197 2,850 12.2
interest and other financial charges net 2,699 3,491 22.7)
CERA [l revenues (1.356) (1,289) 52
Foreign exchange losses - net 1,356 1,289 5.2
Interest and other financial income (1,092) {423} 158.1
Present value impact on customers' refund 8682 1,607 (12.43
rovision'for probable losses on
disallowed receivablas 163 177 (7.9)
Taxes other than income lax 369 170 1175
' 134,332 129,132 40 |
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 636 {1,447) 144.0
Provision far-(banefit from} income tax 41 (385) 1465

NETINCOME(iHss)

n
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As of Septemer 30; 2006 and 2005

{Amounts in Million Pesas)

L E e b 008
ASSETS
Moncurrent Assets
Utility Ptant and others-net 92,283 893,918 (1.7)
investmentsiin subsidiaries, associaies
andjoint ventures 1,114 966 15.3
Investment properties 839 348 1408
Deferred pass-through fusl costs 7.521 11,133 32.4}
Other noncurrent assets 11,148 10,582 54
Totdl:Nencurrent Assets 112,906 116,948 (3.5)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,658 11,258 {58.6)
Trade and other receivables 29,570 24,729 19.6
Inventories 1,278 1,226 4.2
Other current assets 6,204 604 ‘927 5
| Total Current Asssts 41,711 37,817 103 |
Lt ABABAT L B 65

Stocikholders’ Equity

L

33,273 32,347 29
Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest-bearting loans and other
borrowings - net of current portion 10:843 20,820 (47.9)
Deferred income tax tiabilities 2107 6,163 {65.8)
Customers' depaosits 18,600 17,817 4.4
Provisicns 21,710 15,003 447
Customers' refund - net of current portion 12,785 13,389 (4.5
Liahility arising from defarred pass-through
‘uel costs - net of current portion 3,897 9,586 59.3)
Other noncurrent fiahilities 423 1,268 (65.6)
Total’Noncurrent-Liabilities 70,366 84,046 {16.3)
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 37,688 26,575 41.58
Customers’ refund - current partion 1,982 4638 (57.3)
Interest-bearing loans and other
borrowings - current portion 3,003 2,668 12.8
Income tax payable 1,697 1,117 1.8
| Cther current liabilities 8,610 3,373
| Total:Current Liabilities 50,979 38,372 .32.9

TOTAL aTOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
AND LFABELIT]ES

Y
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: TiV SH ATE
Forthe quarters ended Sep{ember—-':‘:io,"2'006"and 2005
(Armounts in Mitlion Pesos)

W e e BO08 T

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING . (July 1) 8,403 717 1874
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cperating and other income 1,023 105 880.0
Deprociation and amartization 1,049 B57 21.3
increase (decrease) in other assels
and liabilities (1,685) 4277 {1398.4)
Met Cash froam Operations anz 5,239 {22.8)

Ada @ Equity Issues
Short-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings

- 42 (700.0)

TOTAL SQURCES OF FUNDS 07 - §,281 {92.7y

Less | Short-tearm debt service B - -
Long-term debt service 2,751 301 100.0
Otherinterest expense 114 {(22) 5610:1
Total Debt Servico 2,866 278 929:4
Unrecoverable purchased power 147 211) 169.9
Capital' expenditures 1,108 1,072 3:4
Preferred equity redemptions 10 (40) 126.3
Refund to customers - 40 (100:0)

—

TOTAL USES'QF FUNDS 4,131 1,139 262.8

NET DECREASE IN CASH (3,744) 4,141 (190.4)

[CASH BAUANCEREND' (September 30) - L L ABSB. . qqEg - {E8E)

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING {January 1)

13,722 4,377 2135
CASH FLOWS'FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES '
Operating and other income 6,236 4,416 412
Depreciation and amontization 3,167 2,850 122
Increase (decrease) in other assets
and liabilities (3,183 8,127 {13923
Net'Cash from Operations 6,249 15,392 (59.4)

Add - Equity issues - G616 (100.0)
Short-term borrowings - -
Long-term borrowings

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 6,249 16,008 {61.0)
Less . Short-term debt service - - -
Long-term debt service 7.492 ’ 1,365 100:0
Other-interest expense 2,615 2,544 2:8
Total Debt Service 10,107 3,909 158:5
Unrecoverable purchased power 1,865 1.657 1474 ’
Capital expenditures 3,254 3,107 47 -
Preferred equity redemptions 49 311 {841}
Refund-to customers 8 142 (944
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 15,313 9,127 67.8
NET DECREASE IN CASH (9,064) 6,881 (231.73

jbiﬁé‘ﬁ:"BKI;K&:C‘:“E;E—NID'}‘(Seﬁte?n'l;ékJsO) :

4] 4,653“:‘7—:“_ bl




US SEC A

Fite [)‘!,0 82-3237
thia Electric Company

er ter 2006 & 9-Months Financial and-Operating Results (Parent only) ME

G anag aing iy

s o MENTS OF RETAINED,EARNINGS (DEFICI
) For'the nine- months ended September 30 2006 and 2005
{Amounts in Million Pesos)
BALANCE, Beginning (1,312) 1,027 (227.7)
Effect of implementation of PAS - {1,6158) (100.0)
‘ (1,312) {587) 1234
JAdd: )
Net Income (Loss) 596 (1,081) 1561
Realized revaluation surplus 334 313 8.7 -
(383) (1,336)  (71.4)
1Daduct;
Aperopriated retained earnings, beginning 200 200 -
Transier from/(to)
A Unappropriated retained earnings - -
|BALANCE (583) (1.538) (82 1)
1Deduct:
Cash dividends declared - - -
Stock dividends declared -
B ALANCE :Enic NN Ay,




Manila Electric Company (MER ALCO) has scheduled its 2006 3rd Quarter results on
October 31, 2006 at 1:30 PM. This will be held at the:

Basement Mini Theater
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

Meralco has also arranged for a simultaneous Conference Call facility. Details for the
Conference Call are as follows:

Conference Call Number +852 2112 1333
Passcode: MERALCO

Those who wish to attend are requested to fill up the appropriate form (please see .
attached forms) and send through fax at:

Meralco Fax: + 632 631 5591
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M,
MERALCO |
YOU ARE INVITED
TO A TELECONFERENCE PRESENTATION
ON THE 3rd Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS

Tuesday, October 31, 2006
1:30 PM (Manila Time)

Conference Call Number*
+852 2112-1333
Passcode: MERALCO
* Please call at least five (5) minutes before the scheduled time.

Instant Replav Number**
+852 2112-1000
Passcode: MERALCO
**Available unti: November 2, 2006

Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to +632
631-5591 on or before October 27, 200¢  If vou have questions, please call Roger
Rosario or Elaine Shih of MERALCO at the iollowing numbers;

+632 1622-2450)
+632 1622-234]
+632 632-8323

‘ | NAME :
JOBFUNCTION |- i
COMPANY |
ADDRESS

CITY, COUNTRY |- .
TELEPHONE : | ‘ ]
FAX
E-MAIL
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T
MERALCO
YOU ARE INVITED
TO A PRESENTATION

~—ON-FHE3rd-Quarter 2006 OPERATING RESULTS - - -

Tuesday, October 31, 2006
1:30 PM

I at the
BASEMENT Mini Theater
Lopez Building, Meralco Center
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Please confirm your participation by faxing this page with the following data to:

+632 631- 5591

on or before October 27, 2006. If vou have questions, please call Roger Rosario or
Elaine Shih of MERALCO at the following numbers:

| +632 1622-2450
+632 1622-2341
+632 632-8323

NAME

JOB FUNCTION
COMPANY
ADDRESS :
CITY, COUNTRY |- |
TELEPHONE
TFAX
E-MATL
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

{Company’s Full Name)

 LOPEZ BUILDING, ORTIGAS AVENUE
 PRSIGCITY

(Company’s Address)

16220

(Company’s Telephone Number)

DEGEMBER 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)

LAST TUESDAY OF MAY

(Annual Meeting)

) JUS SEC
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| | COVER SHEET |

SEC FORM 17-0

|
(For the gquarteriy period ended September 30, 2005)
' (Form Type)
|
|

PIW-102

{S. E. C, Registration No.)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO
SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SRC
| RULE 17(2)(h) THEREUNDER |

L

For the quarterly period ended: September 30, 2005

2. Commission‘identiﬁcation number: PW-102

3. BIR Tax Iden“tiﬁcation Code: 350-000-101-528

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter: Manila Electric Company
5. Country of Incorporation: Philippines

6. Industry Cléssification: (SEC use only) -

7. Address of issuer’s principal office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Postal Code: 0300

®

Issuer’s Telephone Numbers including area code: 16220

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since
last report: N/A

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or
Sections 4 and 8 of RSA:

Number of Shares of

Title of Each Class Common Stock Qutstanding
Class “A” . 604,368,337
Class “B” - 402.941.864
Total - 1.007,310,201

Amount of Debt outstanding: P123.01 Billion (as of August 31, 2005}
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11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes [x] No [ ]

12. If yes, the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities:

Philippihe Stock Exchange Class Aand B
13. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed under Section 17 of the
Code and SRC Rule 17 thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and
RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve
(12) months (or for such shorter Revised Securities Act (RSA) and
RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder and Sections 26 and 141.of the
Corporate Code of the Philippines, during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file
such reports):

Yes [x] No[ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety
(90) days: :

Yes [x] No[ ]

PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

~ The 2005 Third Quarter Financial Statements are hereto attached and made
integral part of this report.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.

FPlease refar to the attached 2005 Third Quarter Financial Statements.

PART il — OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the
issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
‘1ssuer

Executive Vice President, Comptroller
Date: November 3, 2005 and Chief Finance Officer

cc Disclasure Department
Listings and Disclosure Group
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
' ' AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2005

The financial information appearing in this report and in our accompanying consolidated
Sinancial statements is stated in Philippine pesos. All references to “pesos”, “peso” or
"P" are to Philippine pesos. As quoted through the Philippine Dealing System, the
average exchange rate of Philippine pesos into U.S. dollars was 56.01 pesos to the

dollar ar September 30, 2005, as compared to 55.90 pesos to the dollar at September
30, 2004.

This report contains some statements which constitute “forward-looking
statements”, including statements regarding our intent, belief or current expectations.
Any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of our future performance and

involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could affect our business and results of _

operations. Among the factors that could cause actual ‘results to' differ from such
Statements are adverse consequences resulting from general economic and business
conditions in the Philippines, our ability to grow the customer base for our services,
demand for electric services in the Philippines, our ability to enter into various SJunding
arrangements, competitive pressures, fluctuations in the Philippine peso — U.S. dollar
exchange rate, changes in applicable Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) regulations,
subsequent changes in regulatory policies for the Philippine power industry,
governmental, statutory, regulatory or administrative initiatives affecting financial,
governmental and other institutions in the Philippines, future decisions of judicial and
administrative courts, tightening of Philippine exchange controls and political changes
in the Philippines.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
and non-consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of Management, all
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and the results of
operations of the Company have been duly effected in the preparation of these statements
and in accordance with Philippine GAAP.

Introduction

Meralco, the Company, is the largest electric power distribution company and the
largest private sector utility in the Philippines. The Company has a franchise, recently
consolidated from 50 separate franchises and valid for 25 years from June 2003, to
distribute electricity throughout the Greater Metropolitan Manila area as well as nearby
areas on the island of Luzon, covering a population of approximately 19.6 million people.
With an estimated electrification rate (defined as the estimated proportion of households
with electricity out of all households within the franchise area) of approximately 97%, the
Company’s franchise area covers 23 cities and 88 municipalities, including the most
urbanized and industrialized areas in the Philippines, and accounts for approximately
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25% of the Philippine population, approximately 58% of all electricity sales in the
Phlhppmes and approximately 50% of the country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP).

The Company’s business is subject to extensive government regulation,
principally by the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC). The terms of Meralco’s
franchise, the terms and conditions of its services, the rates that it charges its customers,
its rates of return and recoverable costs, the prices at which it purchases power and the
areas in which it is allowed to operate, as well as many other aspects of its operations, are
all subject to the approval of the ERC, other government agencies or Congress. With the
enactment and implementation of Electric Power Industry Reform Act (EPIRA), the
Philippine power industry continues to undergo varjous forms of restructuring affecting
all principal sectors of the industry — generation, transmission, distribution and supply.
The Company believes that it is likely to benefit from further power industry
restructuring in important respects, principally by introducing more efficient energy
markets. However, the Company cannot predict the complete impact of the reform
program and other participants in the Philippine power mdustry and principal elements of
the program remain to be 1rnplemented

Top Key Performance Indicators with discussion of the manner by which the
Company calculates or identifies the indicators presented on a comparable basis.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (CONSOLIDATED)

Profitability Ratios

1. Net Profit Margin
Net profit margin shall be used to measure the percentage of each peso of
distribution utility sales that remain after all costs and expenses have been
deducted. Net profit margin shall also be used to measure the productivity of

the sales effort of a distribution utility.

Net profit margin shall be calculated as the ratio of the Net Profits after Taxes

to Sales.
{Amounts in millions)
3rd Otr 05 3rd Qtr ‘04
Net Profit{Loss) after taxes and
minority interest 317 ' 832
Sales (Revenues) 45,529 37,518

Ratio 0.70%) 2.22%
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The Parent Company incurred a net loss for the quarter ended September 30,

2005 amounting (P317) million, compared to a P832 million net income in

the same period in 2004. The significant decrease was mainly due to the

provision for probable losses in the event of a final and executory adverse
. decision of the unbundling rate case pending in the Supreme Court.

2. Return on Assets (ROA)

Return on Assets (ROA) to measure .the overall effectiveness of the
distribution utility in generating profits with its available assets.

Return on Assets (ROA) shall be calculated as the ratio of Net Profits after
Taxes to Average Total Capital.

(Amounts in millions)

3rd Qtr’05 3rd Otr’o4

Net Profit(Loss) after taxes and

minority interest ' (317) 832
Average Total Assets ‘ 164,611 ' 157,975
Ratio | @19%) _0.53%

Sep ‘05 Sep‘04 Sep’03

Total Assets 172,560 156,662 159,288
Average 164,611 157,975

The net loss incurred by the Company for the quarter ended Sei)tember 30,
2005 has made the Return on Assets decreased to (0.19%) in 2005 as against
0.53% in 2004,

Efficiency Ratio

3. Sales to Assets Ratio
(Amounts in millions)

3rd Otr05 3rd Qtr’04
Sales (Revenues) 45,529 37,518
Average Total Assets l-t;,g-l-; ‘ —I-;'/-’,-S-)-?-S
Ratio - 028 =024

The Sales-to-Assets Ratio shall measure the efficiency with which the
distribution utility uses all its assets to generate sales. The Sales-to-Assels
Ratio shall be calculated as the ratio of Sales to Average Total Assets. The
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Average Total Assets shall be determined using the average of the assets at

the beginning and end of the period. The higher the Sales-to-Assets Ratio,
the more efficiently the assets of the distribution utility have been used.

Sales to Assets Ratio for the 3rd quarter of 2005, is slightly higher over the
same period of last year, from 0.24 in 2004 to 0.28 in 2005 due mainly to

increase in volume sales.
Liquidity Ratio
4. Quick Ratio

Quick Ratio shall be used to measure the safety margin for the payment of
current debt of the distribution utility if there is shrinkage in the value of cash
and receivables. It measures the ease with which a distribution utility can pay
its bills. '

The Quick Ratio shall be calculated as the ratio of the sum of cash, marketable
securities and receivables to the current liabilities.

{Amounts in millions)

3rd Otr’os 3rd Otr’o4

Cash and cash equiv. + Receivables 41,708 29,564
Current Liabilities _ 34,972 42,954
Ratio 1.19 _ _0.69
Summary of accounts:
Cash and cash equivalents 11,998 5,944
Receivables-net 29.710 23,620

Total 41,708 29,564
Current Liabilities:
Notes payable 388 5,277
Accounts payable & others 26,836 22,995
Customers’ refund — current 4,638 3,269
Long-term debt — current 1,967 9,240
Income tax payable 1,143 2,173

Total 314,972 42,954

The Company’s quick ratio for the quarter improved from 0.69:1 in 2004
to 1.19:1 this year, brought about by lower level of long-term debt —
current portion and the refinancing of short-term loans late last year.
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Leverage Ratio
5. Debt Ratio

Debt ratio is used to measure the degree of indebtedness of the distribution
utility and the proportion of assets financed by creditors. The risk
addressed by the Debt Ratio is the possibility that the distribution utility
cannot pay off interest and principal.

The Debt Ratio shall be used as a measure of financial leverage for the
distribution utility, and is calculated as the ratio of the Total Long Term
Debt to Total Long-term Capital. :

(Amounts in millions)

3rd Otr’0s 3rd OQtr’04
Total Long-term Debt plus Equity 61,605 70,548
Total Long-term Capital (Equity) 38,153 49,155
Debt Ratio- ©o- 161 144
. The total long-term debt shall include -ioﬁg-tcrm, debt and the value of L '

leases. ' '

Long-term debt ~ net of current portion 21,485 ) 12,153
Current portion of long-term debt 1.967 9,240

Total 23.452 21.393

Equity is the sum of outstanding capital stock, retained eamnings, and
revaluation increment in property.

Value of leases 0 0
Total stockholders equity 38.153 49.155

Tetal Long-term debt plus equity 61,605 70,548

Decbt ratio increased due to the refinancing of the Company’s unsecured
loans consummated last November 2004, from 1.44 in September 2004 to
1.61 in September 2005.

Any known trends or any known demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that will result in or that are reasonable likely to result in the
registrant’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way.

The major factors affecting the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations are:
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Regulated Rates and Cost Recoveries
Volume Sales

Electricity Supply

Philippine Economic Conditions
Exchange Rates

Industry Restructuring.

BT UNTA LIV RUNTA YA T A

Regulated Rates and Cost Recoveries

The Company’s rate structure, allowed returns and permitted cost recoveries are
the most significant determinants of its operating results. The Company’s rates are set
_(w1th the approval of the ERC) to permit it to earn a reasonable rate of return on
investments it makes toward provision of electric service and are based on its Return On
Rate Base (RORB) The Company s rate structure also permits it to pass through to its
customers certain increases in its costs resulting from increases in purchased power costs,
effects of peso depreciation and system loss.

Pursuant to the Supreme Court’s (SC) final ruling in April 2003, RORB is
calculated for regulatory purposes as operating income before operating income tax,
divided by rate base, defined as the sum of the appraised value of the Company’s net
. utility plant in service at the end of the relevant period plus one-sixth of the Company’s
annual operation and maintenance expenses. The previous formula generally resulted in
a lower figure for RORB than the formula currently applied. The SC’s decision resolved
a series of Energy Regulatory Board (ERB) and court decisions and appeals that began in
1998. The Supreme Court’s order required application of the current formula retroactive
to February 1994, and ordered a refund of resulting overcharges for the period from
February 1994 through May 2003. Before the issuance of the Supreme Court’s April
2003 ruling, RORB for regulatory purposes was calculated on a different basis under
which operating income was determined after operating income tax and rate base was
calculated based on the average of the appraised values of the Company’s utility plant in
service at the beginning and end of the relevant period and also included one-sixth of
annual power purchase expense for the relevant period.

As the appraised value of utility plant in service takes account of replacement
cost, Meralco’s rate base takes into account the effects of inflation and currency exchange
rate fluctuations on its. investment in utility plant when basic distribution rates are
adjusted from time to time with ERC approval. The ERC (formerly the ERB) has
approved six increases in the Company’s basic rates since 1981 and the most recent
increase was granted in May 2003. Historically, the Company’s rate increase
applications have been calculated based on a maximum RORB of approximately 12% (a
level of RORB that the Supreme Court stated was a reasonable rate of return in a 1966
decision). In the past, the then ERB typically grants Meralco rate increases based on an
allowable RORB of 10.5%. All these RORB calculations were based on the formula for
calculating RORB that was applied before May 2003. In the rate increases for the
company approved in May 2003, the ERC has approved tariffs for the company based on
the company’s weighted average cost of capital for 2000 of 15.5%, as determined by the:
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ERC. These tariff increases set the RORB to 15.5% for the respective years covered by
the rate increase petition using the formula applied since May 2003.

The Purchased Power Adjustment.(PPA) and the Currency Exchange Rate
Adjustment (CERA) previously allowed .the Company to pass on automatically to its
customers increases and decreases in purchased power costs and the effects of peso
depreciation on principal repayments of foreign currency-denominated debt and
operation and maintenance expenses. On October 13, 2004, the ERC approved the
Guidelines for the Automatic Adjustment of Generation Rates and System Loss Rates by
Distribution Utilities. Amendments to the guidelines were issued by ERC in two
resolutions dated October 20 and 27, 2004. The monthly automatic adjustment
mechanism replaces the GRAM and provides timely price signals to consurners. While
the GRAM only provided for changes in the generation charge, the new mechanism also
allows the monthly adjustment of the system loss charge. The guidelines prescribe a
semi-annual verification process. Implementation of the guidelines started with the
Parent Company’s November 2004 billing cycle,

On December 13, 2004, the Parent Company submitted its final GRAM filing to

the ERC, covering the period June to October 2004. In an Order dated January 25, 2005,

the ERC resolved the Parent Company’s final GRAM filing by approving the collection

of a Deferred Accounting Adjustment (DAA) of PO. 0929 per kWh starting February 1,
‘ 2005 until J anuary 2007.

The Company’s recovery of costs arising from system loss through the system
loss charge in its unbundled rates is limited to expenses of system loss of up to 9.5% of
the total power purchased by the company. System loss refers to electrical energy lost
due to technical losses and non-technical losses mainly due to pilferage. System loss is
calculated as: one minus the fraction obtained by dividing (x) the total power sold and
used by the company by the total power purchased by the company. The company’s
system loss levels have been in excess of this 9.5% cap in recent years. For the year
ended December 31, 2004, the company’s system loss was 1.6% over the 9.5% cap on
recoverable system loss. The Company estimates that, based on its 2004 purchased power
cost, its pre-tax income is reduced by approximately 21,100 million for every percentage
point that the Company’s actual system loss exceeds the cap.

Deferred PPA and Ruling on the Company’s Final GRAM Filing

On May 29, 2003, the ERC issued an Order authorizing the Company to collect
effective in the June 2003 billing cycle an additional amount of R0.0127 per kWh as
deferred PPA recovery. This additional 2 0.0127 per kWh, together with the P0.0875 per
kWh collection which started in the billing month of April 2003, brings to 20.1002 per
kWh the total deferred PPA recovery that will be incorporated in the generation charge
component of the customers’ bills.

On September 20, 2004, ERC resolved pending issues on the recoverability of
QPPL transmission line costs from the Company’s customers. Total provisions for
possible disallowed transmission line fee charges up to March 31, 2004 amounted to




P1,342 million. Last September 2004, ERC ruled on remaining pending deferred PPA
issue of QPPL’s transmission line fees. Currently, the Company is collecting R0.1328
per kWh towards addressing any remaining liability accounts under the PPA, to wit:

Ruling on Deferred PPA Collection
March 2003 Order B0.0875
Mandated rate reduction issue 0.0246
QPPL transmission line fee 0.0207

Total P0.1328

Last December 13, 2004, the Company filed its last GRAM application following
the ERC’s promulgation of its automatic monthly adjustment mechanism. On
January 27, 2005, ERC approved the Company’s application and thereby allowed to
recover Deferred Accounting Adjustment totaling B5.1 billion from its customers over a
24-month period from February 2005 to January 2007 which is equivalent to 20.0929 per
kWh and reflected as part of the generation charge bill component.

Volume Sales

Meralco primarily relies on increases in volumes™of electricity sold to increase
~ revenues. The volume of electricity sold is generally positively correlated with the level
of economic growth of the Philippines. Meralco experienced sales volume growth at a
compound annual growth rate of 3.8% from 2000 to 2004. With the 2004 GDP growth of
4.4%, the Company’s sales volume in 2004 increased by 3.5% from 2003, with sales
volume of 24,660 gWh in 2004 compared to 23,834 gWh in 2003. This growth was
primarily due to more robust commercial and residential sales. For the five-year period
from 2000 through 2004, residential and commercial sectors recorded compound annual
growth rates of 3.7% and 4.5%, respectively. Growth in the industrial sector registered a
compound annual growth rate of 3.2% for the same period.

Calendar-year-to date energy sales for 2005 remained flat, with the Parent
Company’s total kilowatt-hour sales volume reaching 18,576.6 million kWh or a mere
0.9% increase against the same period last year.

Electricity Supply

Meralco does not operate its own generation capacity and must purchase all of the
power that it distributes from bulk suppliers, such as NPC and IPPs. Meralco is
dependent on NPC for power, although its dependence has been decreasing in recent
years and it expects to further reduce its dependence on NPC in the future by purchasing
more electricity from IPPs. For the year 2004, the Company purchased approximately
59.2% of its requirements from NPC, up from 58.7% for the full year in 2003 and down
by 64.7% for the full year in 2002. Meralco’s 10-year power purchase agreement with
NPC expired in December 2004. This allows the company to source more of its power
from other sources, such as [PPs with which the company has contracted. In addition, as .
part of the ongoing restructuring of the power industry under EPIRA, the Wholesale
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Electricity Spot Market (WESM) is expected to be established in the near future to
provide a wholesale spot market for power supply which the Company will be able to tap.
However, the Company expects that it will be necessary to continue to source a
substantial portion of its power from NPC and its successors.

Philippine Economic Conditions

Growth in demand for electricity in the Philippines is driven primarily by the
level of economic growth and the price of electricity. Since Meralco’s franchise area has
historically accounted for approximately 50% of the Philippines’ GDP, the Company
believes that improvement in economic growth may bring growth in demand for
electricity and hence demand for Meralco’s services. From 1998 through 2004, the
Philippine GDP grew at a compound annual rate of approximately 4.4%, compared to
4.5% during the period from 1993 to 1997. Peak demand on the Company’s system grew
at a compound annual rate of 3.5% during the period from 1998 to 2004 and 8.2% during
the period from 1993 to 1997.

Based on publicly available information, the company believes per capita
electricity consumption in the Philippines is low relative to other countries in the Asian
region, including those with comparable GDPs, because of high electricity tariffs and
relatively lower disposable incomes. The company -anticipates that the government’s
energy industry restructuring will facilitate competition and efficiencies that will help to
lower electricity prices in the Philippines, which will increase affordability to Philippine
customers and help stimulate demand for electricity. Lower power prices for the
Company could also help reduce current incentives to industrial users to engage in self-
generation.

Exchange Rates

Depreciation of the peso against foreign currencies, particularly the U.S. dollar,
can affect the Company’s operating results and financial condition in a number of
respects.  While all the company’s revenues are denominated in pesos, as of
September 30, 2005, approximately 83.9% of the principal amount of the Company’s
indebtedness, most of its capital expenditures, a substantial portion of its power purchase
costs and interest expense and a small portion of the Company’s operation and
maintenance expenses are denominated in, or indexed to, U.S. dollars, and can increase
significantly in peso terms as a result of any substantial depreciation of the peso. The
peso has experienced a significant decline against the U.S. dollar, depreciating from an
average of P45.50 : USS$1.00 on September 30, 2000, to P56.01 : US$1.00 as of
September 30, 2005. :

Increases in power purchase costs that are indexed to the U.S. dollar will be
recoverable under the GRAM, subject to ERC approval, as increased generation costs to
the company. Adjustments approved pursuant to the [CERA mechanism will permit the
company to recover increased expenses arising from peso depreciation insofar as they
relate to increases in its foreign currency-denominated operation and maintenance
expenses and principal payments on foreign currency-denominated debt. However,
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micreases in foreign currency-denominated capital expenses and interest expense are not
adjusted for under ICERA. Approval of adjustments to the company’s basic distribution
rates (which have been granted seven times since 1981) would be required to order to
recover increased capital expenses through an increase in the company’s rate base.
Adjustments granted pursuant to the GRAM and the ICERA are deferred and amortized
as amounts are recovered through adjustments in customers’ billings. Foreign exchange
losses from increases in interest expense on foreign currency denominated debt are

reflected in the company’s financial statements under “interest and other financial .

charges.”

Following a period of significant peso depreciation, the consequences to the
company could also include the following:

¢ In peso terms, the amounts payable for debt service, capital and operation and
maintenance expenditures for imported goods and services and any other
expenses due in foreign currencies will increase, requiring additional funds to
satisfy the company’s payment obligations or budgeted capital and other
spending. The company will ordinarily be required to make payment of such
increased amounts prior to the time they can be recovered through any
adjustment to the company’s rates and pass-through costs.

& The principal amount of, and interest expense on, the company’s foreign
currency-denominated "debt will increase at relevant period-end dates for
purposes of financial reporting and determination of compliance with the
company’s financial covenants. This increase can result in immediate adverse
movements in measures such as total debt, debt-to-equity ratio, current ratio
and interest or debt service coverage ratios and the company may encounter a
significant time lag until it can reverse these adverse impacts through
improved financial and operating performance. '

& The company will not be able to apply to the ERC for approval of adjustments
under the ICERA more frequently than quarterly (except in extraordinary
circumstances such as a sudden and severe depreciation of the peso). The
ERC has 45 days to evaluate ICERA adjustment applications, after which they
are deemed approved. Under some circumstances, however, the company
could incur a delay of up to twelve months between the time ICER A-related
costs are incurred and the time the adjustments are fully recovered from
customers. :

Industry Restructuring
Under EPIRA, a fundamental restructuring of the Philippine power industry is

under way, which could require significant adaptations by the Company in its business.
These restructuring measures include:

& The deregulation of, and introduction of competition in, power generation and
supply activities and pricing;




The privatization of NPC’s power generating assets;

The unbundling of the refative costs of the various segments of the power
generation, supply, transmission and distribution chain in bills to customers;

£ The implementation of open access to available capacity on distribution
networks for delivery of power to consumers based on payment of
transmission or wheeling charges;

Freedom of consumers to choose electricity suppliers;

The implementation of the wholesale electricity spot market, or WESM; and
Removal of cross-subsidies between different customers and geographic arcas
built into rates for supply and distribution of electricity, under which the
Meralco’s customers and franchise territory have borne net subsidies for other
customers and regions.

TALRTRL]
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Recent Developments
Application for Time-Of-Use Rates filed with ERC

On August 10, 2005, the Parent Company filed with the Energy
Regulatory Commission (ERC) the Application for the Approval of its proposed
Time-Of-Use (TOU) retail rates to end-users.

'As part of the pre-filing requirements, the Parent Company submitted for
publication the entire Application and its annexes in a national newspaper of
general circulation (Malaya, Aug. 10, 2005 issue). The application complied
with the April 13, 2005 ERC decision which directed distribution utilities (DUs)
to file their proposed TOU retail rates within the prescribed period. In the case of
Meralco, the deadline was set within three months from effectivity of the
decision, or until July 26, 2005. The Aug. 10 filing followed Meralco’s request
for a 15-day extension to submit the application.

In the April 13 ERC decision, the Commission directed the mandatory
implementation of the TOU pricing by National Power Corporation (NPC) in all
DUs in the country. In an earlier decision, the new pricing mechanism had been
authorized for implementation by NPC to its customers as early as the October
2004 billing cycle but only on an optional basis. The TOU electricity pricing
scheme will not boost or improve Meralco’s finances as cost of generation is a
complete pass-through for distribution utilities. It is a revenue neutral and will
not result in any additional income for the Parent Company.

DILG, Meralco Ink Accord Vs. Pilferage

The Parent Company finds a strong ally in its drive vs. pilferage of
electricity as it seals a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the Department
of Interior and Local Government (DILG) on August 10. The MOA attempts to
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eliminate pilferage of electricity and to facilitate the legalization of illegal service
connections. :

Meralco Chairman and CEO Manuel Lopez and DILG Secretary Angelo
Reyes signed the agreement, where the DILG will help in the information drive
against pilferage of electricity. It will also assist in the apprehension of persons
involved in electricity theft. The Parent Company, for its part, will conduct an
information dissemination campaign for Republic Act No. 7832 (Anti-Pilferage
of Electricity and Theft of Electric Power Transmission Lines/Materials Act of
1994).

A series of seminars, workshops, consultations, briefings or consultation
meetings between local government units, the Philippine National Police (PNP),
Bureau of Fire Protection (BFP) and barangay officials will comprise the
campaign. Meralco will also facilitate the legalization of illegal service
connections. :

Customer Refund

Following SC decision in 2003 . alleging that the Company had
overcharged customers over the period February 1994 to May 2003, Meralco was
ordered to refund customers amounting to £30.3 billion. The refund schedule for
Meralco was split into four phases, of which the first three have been completed,

- totaling £11.6 billion.

On July 2005, the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) approved the
refund proposals for Phase IV. Phase IV is divided into two phases. Phase IVA
covers small commercial and industrial customers, flat streetlights including
government hospitals and metered streetlights with contracted demand lower than
40 kilowatts (kW). The approved refund period is from July 2005 to December
2006 — a duration of 18 months. Phase IVB on the other hand covers medium,
large, very large and extra large commercial and industrial customers including.
government hospitals and metered streetlights with contracted demand of 40 kW
or higher. The approved refund period under Phase TVB will be from October
2005 to December 2010 — a duration of 63 months.

The Parent Company has formally communicated with Bureau of Internal
Revenue (BIR) officer-in-charge Atty. Jose Mario Bunag to facilitate the release
of the Revenue Memorandum Order (RMO) that will spell out the BIR’s
implementing guidelines on the withholding tax for customers under Phase IV
refund program. Once the Parent Company has incorporated the RMO guidelines
in the refund process, it can start releasing letters to its customers in August for
Phase IV-A and in September for Phase IV-B. Some pre-processing activities are
necessary, but should the actual implementation be delayed, the Company assures
that the refund is retroactive to July 2005 for those belonging to Phase TVA.
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On September 12, 2005, the Parent Company obtained a copy of BIR
Revenue Memorandum Order (RMO) No. 22-2005. The RMO prescribes the
procedures for the implementation of Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 8-2005
which imposes a creditable income tax on the refunds of Phase IV customers and
assigns the Parent Company as the withholding agent of the said tax. The RMO
also requires the submission of certain documentary requirements, such as the

customer’s Certificate of Registration (COR), for non-government customers of
- Meralco.

The Company will be writing Phase IV customers w1th1n October 2005 to
inform them of BIR’s requirements and apprise them of their refund options.
Refund amount on the first month of the refund implementation will cover
refunds starting July 2005. For Phase IVB active customers, the refund will be
retroactive to October 2005.

Distribution Wheeling Rate Guidelines (DWRG)

ERC released last January 10, 2005 the DWRG, which was approved by -
the Commission last December 20, 2004. Distribution utilities are given the
choice of when to enter, but once in, must stay with the Performance Based Rates
(PBR) Last January 14, 2005, the Company wrote ERC of its intention to join
Group A2, which will implement Performance Based Rates (PBR) by July 1,
2007. To comply with' DWRG guidelines, on May 31, 2005, the Parent
Company filed for an average rate adjustment of 14.76 centavos per kilowatthour
before the ERC, 1.2 centavos higher than the 13.58-centavo per kWh increase the
power firm applied for in October 2003. The 2003 application was recently
withdrawn by the Parent Company at the ERC. So far, five hearings have been
conducted, aside from a pre-hearing conference and a “Consumers’ Hour.

Magna Carta for Residential Electricity Customers

ERC approved Magna Carta for residential customers in June 17, 2004,
This took effect on July 19, 2004, Implementing Guidelines subsequently
released and took effect on November 26, 2004. In consonance with the
guidelines, refund of meter deposits of residential customers shall start in 2006
which is estimated at 1.3 billion, including accrued interest.

On the other hand, refund of service deposits is applicable only to those
who have established a 3-year good payment record starting the effectivity of the
Magna Carta or earliest in 2007. This is estimated at P2.9 billion including
accrued interest.

Credit Ratings Upgrade toe B- by Standard & Poors (S&P)

On February 8, 2005, S&P upgraded the Parent Company’s credit rating to
B- from CC. The upgrade followed the refinancing exercise completed by
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Meralco in December 2004 and reflected its improving credit — the successful
refinancing exercise alleviated its short-term liquidity concerns and lengthened its
debt maturity profile. In light of the Parent Company’s cash flow projections, a

consortium of onshore banks had agreed to term out the short term debt for as
long as 7 years.

The upgrade was further rationalized by S&P with reference to the
Company’s “dominant position as the largest clectricity distributor in the
Philippines” and there being “no alternative electricity suppliers in the Metro
Manila region.” Concurrent with the upgrade, Meralco also cured all historical
defaults and technical breaches relating to its debt covenants.

Enactment of Republic Act 9337 (EVAT Law)

On October 19, 2005 Supreme Court lifted Temporary Restraining Order
(TRO) against EVAT Law’s implementation it issued on July 1, 2005. EVAT on
power will take effect starting November 1, 2005 and will reflect on customers’
bill starting December 2005. According to Revised Revenue Regulations of the
BIR, the 70% cap on input VAT that may be claimed against output VAT will
apply only when the input VAT exceeds the output VAT, otherwise, all input
VAT may be credited against output VAT. The law initially imposes a 10% VAT
rate on the power industry, but at the same time removes the two percent national
franchise tax on distribution utilities. The Company emphasized that the VAT is
revenue neutral and that all VAT collections will accrue to the government and is
thercfore only a pass-through charge.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended September 30, 2005 compared to Three Months Ended September
30, 2004

Parent Company

I

MAJOR REVENUE STREAMS
A, GWH SALES AND BILLING KW DEMAND
The third quarter GWH sales for 2005 increased by 1.06% to 6,460 gWh

compared to the same period last year, outpacing the 0.75% growth registered in
the first half of the year. '

The commercial segment continued to lead the growth in gWh sales, increasingly
by 4.21% to 2,372 gWh in the 3 quarter. Commercial salés was driven by the
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Real Estate and Transport Services Sectors which expanded by 23.9% and 14.3%
respectively over the same quarter last year.

Sales of the Real Estate Sector, which comprise office buildings housing the
booming call center business heightened with the opening of new call centers and
other business process outsourcing establishments over the past months.

The Transport Services Sector’s growth was brought about by the continued
increase in the operations of the LRT1/LRT2 and MRT. Since January this year,
all coaches of the LRT1 (Taft route) have been fully air-conditioned, encouraging
the increase in ridership compared to the same quarter last year. The incessant
rise in oil prices was also contributory to the expansion as the public opted to use
mass transport systems. In response to this and the government’s call to conserve
fuel, the LRT/MRT employed additional train runs to accommodate the increase
in ridership. In addition, the full operation of the LRT2 (Aurora Bivd. Route)
played a key factor to this sector’s growth.

On the other hand, the sales of the industrial segment declined by 1.06% to 1,833
gWh. The contraction was attributed to the reduction in the number of small to
medium-sized industrial customers and the economic slump by the Wood
Products, Textile Industries, and the Chemical Products Manufacturing by 21.5%,
15.1%, and 11.8%, respectively. However, strong sales growths of the Basic
Metal, Transport Manufacturing and Electrical Machinery Industries, which rose
by 11.6%, 9.0%, and 6.8% respectively, mitigated the overall slowdown in the
industnal segment. The re-opening and the upgraded furnaces of the two major
smelting plants, Midland Steel and Capasco, the 13% increase in motor vehicle
sales (comparing Jan-Aug 2005 to Jan-Aug 2004), and the continued robust
demand in the Semicon Industry accounted for the growth of these three resilient
mdustries, respectively. ‘

The decline in industrial sales was also tempered by the significant rise of
11.83% in One Day Power Sales (ODPS) in this quarter where large self-
generating industrial customers opted to get power from the grid at lower prices.
The Cement, Electrical Machinery, and Paper Manufacturing Industries ied the
ODPS availments in the peried, accounting for 67.8% of the total.

Residential Sales was nearly flat, dipping of 0.43% in the 3™ quarter to 2,220
gWh, although this further reduced its first half deficit of (2.4%) to (1.73%) as of
the end of September 2005. Customers particularly those belonging to the DE
Segment (those having an average monthly consumption of between 1-150 kWh)
continued to register an increase of 7.6% in the period. On the other hand, sales
from the Broad C Segment (consuming between 151-800 kWh) and AB Segments
(above 800 kWh) declined. Lower humidity, coupled with higher electricity and
commodity prices, contributed to the reduction in residential sales, resuiting to a
migration of customers from the higher segments to lower consumption brackets.
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Like gWh sales, overall Billing KW Demand posted an increase in the quarter,
rising by 1.88% to 12,207 KW over the 3 quarter of 2004. The main industries
driving billing kW demand were the Retail Trade in the Commercial Segment and
Electrical Machinery in the Industrial Segment which posted 7.3% and 5.1%
growths, respectwely

COMPARISON OF KWH SALES
For the Quarters Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
{(In million kWh) ‘
Customer Class 2605 2004 % Change
Residential 2,220.19 2,229.74 (0.4}
Commercial 2,371.56 2,275.71 4.2
Industrial 1,832.51 1,852.04 1.n
Streetlights 35.53 34.46 3.1
Total 6.459.79 6,391.95 1.06
COMPARISON OF KWH SALES
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
(In million kWh)
Customer Class 005 2004 % Change
Residential 6,484.87 6,599.32 (1.7
Commercial 6,770.87 6,502.69 41
Industrial , 5,214.78 5,212.91 0.0
Streetlights 106.12 103.59 2.4
Total 18,576.64 18.418.51 0.9
AVERAGE RETAIL RATE

The average retail rate as of the month of September 2005 rose to P7.29/kWh
from £5.97/kWh in the same period last year. On a per customer class, the
average retail rates for the month of September were:

The implementation of NPC’s basic charge of R0.43/kWh in May 2005 as a result
of the ERC’s final approval of the NPC’s TOU rate application and the

P0.38/kWh .increase in NPC’s Generation Rate. Adjustment (GRAM), and.. -

Incremental Currency Rate Ad}ustment (ICERA) in the same month contributed
to this rise.

However, maximized NPC off-peak energy sourcing reduced average NPC TOU-
based rates by approximately 20.42/kWh in the 3™ quarter compared to the
previous quarter.
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Furthermore, the impact of the NPC charges was tempered by the higher dispatch
of Meralco IPPs, resulting to an average Purchased Power Cost (PPC) of
P5.18/kWh for Meralco IPPs and R5.85/kWh for NPC in the 3" quarter.

The reduction in generation cost slashed Meralco’s rate to residential customers
by as much as 23 centavos per kWh in September.

SYSTEM LOSS

A reduction by almost 1 percentage point in the September 2005 12-month
moving average to 10.32% from last year’s 11.31% for the same period was
attained as a result of the excellent performance in the 3™ quarter this year at
8.92% from last year’s 3" quarter system loss of 11. 32%. This translated to a
B751M reduction 1n the unrecoverable purchased power cost compared to last
year’s 3" quarter figure as well as a reduction of the year-to-date unrecoverable
purchased power cost to R1.65B from last year’s £2.28B.

This drastic improvement was the result of the sweeping changes implemented
among all organizations involved in system loss during the 2™ quarter, In
general, the system loss management program could be summed up as both
preventive (i.e., not just corrective) and holistic (i.e., looking at the whole value
chain). Part of the changes included the institution of the Hit Rate, not only as a
measure of performance but also as a measure to focus the efforts in positively
reducing system loss. The increase in the Hit Rate, from 3% during the previous
months to nearly 20% this 3™ quarter, clearly manifested the extent of the system
loss reduction efforts. In terms of implementation, nearly 600 elevated metering
centers were installed, involving almost 23,000 services in identified high loss
areas.

‘Moreover, in August, Meralco and the Department of Interior and ‘Local

Government (DILG) signed a memorandum of agreement aimed at strengthening
the campaign against pilferage of electricity. Chairman & CEO Manuel M. Lopez
and DILG Secretary Angelo Reyes signed the agreement.

SYSTEM RELIABILITY

In the 3rd quarter of 2005, system reliability, in terms of Interruption Frequency
Rate (IFR), and system availability, as measured by Cumulative Interruption Time
{CIT), continued to reach record levels, improving by 17.01% to 2.83 times and
9.99% to 2.69 hours, respectively, over the same penods last year.

The continued improvements in system reliability were part of the benefits still
being reaped from the completion of well-planned electric capital projects in the
past and the continuous implementation of a focused electric system maintenance
program. This had been supported by concerted efforts by different offices to
reduce the occurrence of pre-arranged or undetermined trippings, thermographic

1, 37-3237
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scanning of circuits for detection of impending troubles, and strict compliance to
standards and procedures during line construction and maintenance.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Parent Company)

L OPERATING REVENUES

With the 1.06% sales growth, total operating revenues for the third quarter of 2005
heightened by 22.1% to P44.62B from R36.54B for the same period last year.

COMPARISON QF REVENUES
For the Quarters Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
(In million Pesos)

Customer Class This Year * Last Year % Change
* Electric Revenue:

Residential 15,941 12,918 23.4

Commercial 16,819 13,901 21.0

Industnal 11,481 9,483 21.1

Streetlights 270 i68 60.7
Total Electric 44,511 36,470 22.0

Non-electric Revenue 110 65 69.2
Total Revenue 44.621 36.535 224

IL, OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operating expenses, on the other hand, rose by 25.7% from R34.19B to
P42.98B due to the significant increase in purchased power costs, which soared by
as much as 30.8% from B30.37B to R39.73B.

On the other hand, favorable decreases in other operating expenses are enumerated
as follows:

& 9.5% decrease in operating and maintenance costs from £2.52B to £2.28B.
The significant decrease was attributed to lower retirement expense, which
decreased by about 55.9% from P607.93M last year to P267.98M this year. .

£ 14.5% decrease in depreciation and amortization from P1.10B to R943.81M.
This is pnmanly due to the fully amortized Company’s reengineering costs;
and
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& 87.3% decrease in taxes other than income tax from 2196.53M to R24.89M.
Franchise taxes are no longer part of the company’s revenues and operating
€Xpenses. :

PROVISION FOR PROBABLE LOSSES
Continuously adhering to conservatism, the company has recorded provisions for

probable losses related to the unbundling rate case pending with the Supreme Court.
For the quarter, provisions amounted to 21,630 million.

' OTHER CHARGES

Other Charges during the quarter decreased by 42.8% from R1.15B last year to
P656.68M driven by the continued success on system loss reduction resulting to the

~3237

significant improvement in the unrecoverable purchased power, from an expense of

P539.86M to a positive amount of R210.75M

The booking of equity in net earnings of investee is no longer shown in the séparate
and unconsolidated financial statements in partial compliance with JAS 27.

NET INCOME AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Parent Company continued to provide 21.63B for probable losses in the event
of a final and executory adverse decision of the unbundling rate case pending in the

Supreme Court in the 3 quarter. This depleted our operating income for the
quarter from P1.64B before provisions to B7M, significantly affecting the bottom

line that resulted to a net loss of R316.72M after tax, a 138.1% decrease in the.

bottom-line figure from last year’s net income of R832M.

Without this provisioning, the company’s net income would have been a positive
R792M.

Earnings per common share (excluding depreciation on appraisal increase) for the
3" quarter decreased by 128.76% from P0.970 last year to (P0.279) per share due to
losses incurred this year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures for the quarter declined by 16.4% from R1.28 billion last year
to B1.07 billion this year. The level of spending was at the ratio of 97% is to 3% for
“electric capital projects and non-electric projects respectively.
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Financial Highlights - Consolidated
For the Quarters Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Operating Revenues. For the quarter ended September 30, 2005,
Meralco and Subsidiaries achieved consolidated operating revenues of 245,529 million,
an increase of 21.4% over the P37,518 million achieved in the same period in 2004,
This increase was due to the increase in Parent Company’s purchased power costs and the
1.06% volume sales growth for the quarter.

Operating expenses.  Consolidated operating expenses for the third quarter
ended September 30, 2005, increased to 43,714 million, or 25.0% over the same period
of last year due mainly to the significant increase in purchased power costs which soared
by as much as 30.8% from P39.37B to 239.73B.

3rd Quarter Ended September 30,
2005 2004 Change
(in millions)

Recoverable purchased power 39,733 30,365 30.9%
Operations and maintenance 2,365 2,574 ( 8.1%)
Depreciation and amortization 996 1,155 (13.8%)
Taxes other than income tax 27 199 (86.4%)
Cost of contracts and services 249 231 7.8%
Real estate sold 344 456 (24.6%)
Total 43,714 34,980 25.0%

Parent Company’s recoverable purchased power cost for the quarter ended
Septernber 30, 2005 was £39,733 million, or 30.9% higher compared to 230,365 million
in same period of last year, brought about by the increase in purchased power costs, as
mentioned earlier.

Operations  and  maintenance  expenses decreased by 8.1% to
P2.365 million for the third quarter this year, compared with P2,574 million in the same
period of 2004, due primarily to parent company’s conscious efforts to bring down costs.

Consolidated depreciation and amortization also decreased by 13.8% from
1,155 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 to 996 million in the same
period this year, mainly as a result of the fully amortized reengineering costs of the
Parent Company.

Taxes other than income tax decreased by 86.4% from R199 million for the third
quarter of 2004 to P27 million in the same period this year, due to a change in the
treatment of franchise taxes. Based on the ERC Decision dated March 20, 2003 on the
Company’s consolidated petitions, the franchise tax should be identified as a separate
item on the bill and computed as a percentage of the sum of all charges, except taxes and
the universal charge. Prior to unbundling of charges in June 2003, franchise taxes were
computed by multiplying gross receipts by the franchise tax rates.
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Cost of contracts and services, a subsidiary account, slightly increased by 7.8%
from P231 million for the third quarter last year compared to 2249 million of this year’s
third quarter, primarily due to increased projects contracted for the quarter.

Real estate sold, also a subsidiary account, decreased by 24.6% from P456
million in the third quarter of 2004 to P344 million in the same period of 2005, also due
mainly to the partial completion of some units of “Manansala™ and “Joya” residential

condominium. As of August 2005, “Joya” had a 78% take-up with 695 out of the 946
units sold.

Provision for probable losses. The Parent Company provided for probable losses
for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 amounting to 1,630 million brought about by
the Court of Appeals (CA) decision annulling and setting aside the ERC Decision and
Order on the approval of the Parent Company’s unbundled tariffs implemented in June
2003. The case was elevated to the Supreme Court and still pending as of this writing.

Operating Income After Provision for Probable Losses. As a result of the
foregoing, consolidated operating income decreased by 92.7% from R2,538 million in the -
third quarter of 2004, to a mere P185 million, brought about by the provision for
probable losses amounting to R1.63 billion. Said provision depleted Parent Company’s
operating income for the quarter from P1.64 billion before provisions to R7 million,
significantly affecting the bottom-line that resulted to a net loss of R317 million after tax.
operating income in the same period this year.

Other Income (Charges). For the third quarter ended this year, other income
{(charges) was P745 million, a decrease of approximately 41.1% over the R1,264 million
mcurred for the three months ended September 30, 2004, summarized hereunder:

3rd Quarter Ended September 30,
2005 2004 Change
{in million B)

Interest and other charges — net (910) (741) 22.8%
Unrecoverable purchased power 211 (540) (139.1%)
Equity in net earnings of investee
companies 13 126 - (89.7%)
Recovery of (provision for) probable
losses on disallowed receivables (59) 109 (45.9%)
Total - (745 T (L264) (41.1%)

Interest and other charges - net for the quarter ended September 30, 2005,
increased significantly by 22.8% compared to the three months ended September 30,
2004, from P741 million to 2910 million due to higher forex and financing costs.

Parent Company's unrecoverable purchased power above the 9.5% cap on
recoverable system loss significantly rebounded for the third quarter of this year, a

o
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decrease of 139.1%, from (P540) million last year compared to positive 211 million this
year, driven by the continued success on system loss reduction.

Consolidated equity in net earnings of investee companies declined from R126
million in the third quarter of 2004 to 13 million for the quarter ended September 30,
2005 due mainly to the decrease in equitized eamings from subsidiaries and affiliates.
Booking of equity in net earnings of investee companies is no longer shown in the
separate and unconsolidated financial statements in partial compliance with IAS 27.

Recovery of (Provision for) probable losses on disallowed receivables. For the
quarter ended September 30, 2005, provision for disallowed recoveries of P59 million
was 45.9% lower than last year’s B109 million.

Income from Ordinary Activities before Income Tax, Minority Interest and
Extraordinary Loss. As a result of the foregoing, the company posted a consolidated
income/(loss) from ordinary activities for the third quarter ended this year, totaling
(B560) million compared to B1,274 million for the same period of 2004, pnmanly due to
the significant increase in purchased power costs and the continued provision for
probable losses of the Parent Company’s unbundling rate case pending in the Supreme
court.

Consolidated Provision for Income Tax. Consolidated provision for income tax
for the three months ended September 30, 2005, was 292 million, compared to (R409)
million for same quarter of 2004, or a decrease of 171.4% primarily due to decreased
operating income for the quarter under review.

Consolidated Net Income Before Minority Interest. As a result of the foregoing, -
‘net income(loss) for the third quarter ended September 30, 2005, was (®268) million,
compared to a P865 million net income in same period of 2004.

Minority Interest increased by 48.5%, from P33 million in the third quarter of
2004 to P49 million in the same period this year.

Consolidated Net Income/(Loss). As a result of the foregoing, net loss for the
third quarter ended September 30, 2005, was (B317) million, compared to a 2832 million
net income in same period of 2004, or a 138.1% decrease. As discussed earlier, the
significant decrease is attributable to the increase in purchased power costs and the
provision for probable losses significantly affecting the bottom-line figure.

Capital expenditures. The Parent Company’s capital expendltures for the quarter
declined by 16.4% from 21.28 billion last year to P1.07 billion this year. The level of
spending remains at the ratio of 97% to 3% for electric capital projects and non-ciectric
capital projects respectively. On a consolidated basis, capital expenditures for the third
quarter of 2005 was P1.27 billion, 30.5% lower than the third quarter of 2004 of R1,827
billion. The Company limited capital expenditures due to budget constramts wherein
capital projects were prioritized according to importance.
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Cash dividends to preferred stockholders was not provided for the quarters under
review, thereby no payment was made primarily due to the financial crisis brought about
by the on-going customers’ refund ordered by the Supreme Court.

Basic Earnings Per Common Share on Net Income (Loss) excluding depreciation
on appraisal increase for the period under review increased by 128.8% from R0.970 for
the third quarter of 2004 to (R0.279) in the same period of 2005 due mainly to the net
loss posted for the period.

Financial Highlights - Consolidated

‘Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005 compared to Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2004

Consolidated Operating Revenues. For the nine months ended September 30,

2005, Meralco and Subsidiaries achieved consolidated operating revenues of 130,165

million, an increase of 20.9% over the R107,655 million achleved in the same period in

2004. A modest increase in energy sa]es was posted in the 3™ quarter of 2005, slightly

better than the level registered in the 1% half of the year. This despite the continued and

" enhanced energy conservation program of the government and dampening effect of

spiraling oil prices to the economy. In addition, Billing KW Demand, which has become

a major source of distribution revenue since the June 2003 rate unbundling, rose by 1.9%,
the highest in three quarters of this year.

Consolidated Operating expenses. Operating expenses for the first nine months
of this year, increased to P121,164 million, or 21.1% over the £100,064 million for the
same period in 2004,

Nine Months Ended Septeinber 30,

2005 2004 % Change
(amounts in millions)

Recoverable purchased power 109,509 80,4608 26.6
Operations and maintenance 6,925 7,500 (7.7}
Depreciation and amortization 2,996 3,670 (18.4)
Taxes other than income tax 175 500 (65.0)
Cost of contracts and services 635 686 ( 7.4
Real estate sold 924 1,240 (25.5)

Total 121,164 100.064 211

The increase in consolidated operating expenses was primarily due to an increase
in purchased power costs. Parent Company’s recoverable purchased power cost for the
first three quarters of 2005, were 109,509 million, or 26.6% increased over the P86,468
million for the same period in 2004. The increase in purchased power cost was due to the
26.8% increase in average cost purchased/ kWh purchased, from P4.222 in 2004 as
against £5.359 for the nine months ended September 30, 2005.




Consolidated operation and maintenance expenses decreased by 7.7% to 6,925
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, compared with £7,500 million in
the same period in 2004, due primarily to decrease in provision for pension fund and use
of company vehicle, among others.

Consolidated depreciation and amortization also decreased by 18.4% from
3,670 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, to 2,996 in same period
this year, mainly as a result of the fully amortized deferred charges to operation as of
December 2004.

The Parent Company’s account, Taxes other than income tax decreased by 65.0%
from R500 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004, to R175 million in the
nine months ended September 30, 2005, due to a change in the treatment of franchise
taxes. Based on the ERC Decision dated March 20, 2003 on the Company’s consolidated
petitions, the franchise tax should be identified as a separate item on the bill and

‘computed as a percentage of the sum of al charges, except taxes and the universal
charge. Prior to unbundling of charges which were implemented in June 2003, franchise
taxes were computed by multiplying gross receipts by the franchise tax rates.

In an Order dated March 8, 2004, the ERC directed the Parent Company to

modify the franchise tax component of its billings to customers to comply with Rule 7 of

the IRR of RA No. 9136. The said IRR provides that a distribution utility shall pay
 franchise taxes only on its distribution wheeling and captive market supply revenues,

Cost of contracts and services, a subsidiary account, decreased by 7.4% from
686 million in the first nine months of 2004 compared to 2635 million of the same
period this year primarily due to less contracts/projects consummated this year.

Real estate sold, also a subsidiary account, (Rockwell Land Corporation),
decreased by 25.5% from £1,240 miilion in nine months ended September 30, 2004 to
£924 million in the same period this year. As of August 2005, “Joya” had a 78% take-up
with 695 out of the 946 units sold, while “Manansala” sales slightly decreased in August
2005 due to booking cancellations during the month.

Provision for probable losses. The Parent Company continued to provide £4,690
million (nine month period this year) for probable losses in the event of a final and
executory adverse decision of the unbundling rate case pending in the Supreme Court.
This depleted our operating income for the period under review, from R9,001 miilion
before provisions, toR4,311 million, and ultimately. affecting the bottom-line figure.

Operating Income After Provision for Probable Losses. As a result of the
foregoing, consolidated operating income after provision for probable losses decreased
by 43.2% from £7,591 million in the first nine months of 2004, to 4,311 million in the
same period of 2005. :
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Other Income (Charges). During the first three quarters of 2005, other income
(charges) were (P4,451) million, an increase of slightly 7.3% over the (P4,149) million
in other income (charges) for the same period of last year.

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2005 2004 % Change

(amounts in millions)

Interest and other charges — net (2,659) (1,901) 39.9
Unrecoverable purchased power (1,657) (2,228) (25.6)
Equity in net eamnings of investee -
Companies 42 308 (86.4) .
Provision for probable
losses on disallowed receivables (177) (328) (46.0)
Total (4.451) (4,149} 7.3

Interest and other charges - net for the nine months ended September 30, 2005,
increased by 39.9% in comparison to the nine months ended September 30, 2004 from
21,901 million to P2,659 million due to higher cost of debt.

Parent Company’s unrecoverable purchased power above the 9.5% cap on
recoverable system loss totaled B1,657 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2005, a decrease of 25.6%, over the total of 2,228 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2004. A reduction by almost one percentage point in the September 2005
12-month moving average to 10.32% from last year’s 11.31% for the same period was

~ attained as a result of the excellent performance in the 3" quarter this year at 8.92% from
last year’s 3™ quarter system loss of 11.32%.

Consolidated equity in net earnings of investee companies likewise declined by
86.4%, from R308 million for the first nine months of 2004, to P42 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2005 mainly due to lower income of subsidiaries
particularly Miescor and CIS, Inc.

Provision for probable losses on disallowed receivables. Calendar year-to-date
ended September 30, 2005, the Parent Company reflected provision of 177 million as
compared to P328 million of last year, mainly for Quezon Power transmission line fees.

Income from Ordinary Activities before Income Tax, Minority Interest and
Extraordinary Loss. As aresult of the foregoing, the company posted a consolidated loss
from ordinary activities for the nine months ended September 30, 20085, totaling (R140)
million compared also to an income from ordinary activities of P3,442 million for the
same period of 2004, primarily due to provision for probable losses brought about by the




< s
s

O 8.,/9

9]
r

- - LS
HE

CA decision setting aside and annulling the ERC’s tariff increase to the Parent
Company implemented in June 2003.

Consolidated Provision for (Benefit from) Income Tax. Consolidated benefit from
income tax for the first three quarters of 2005, was (243) million, compared to 21,100
million provision for income tax for the same period last vear, or a decrease of 103.9%,
primarily due to the provision of probable losses.

Consolidated Net Income (Loss) Before Minority Interest. As a result of the
foregoing, net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, was (R97) million,
compared to a P2,342 million net income for the same period last year. The significant
decrease was mainly due to the provision for probable loss in the event of a final and
executory adverse decision on the unbundling rate case pending with the Supreme Court.

Minority Interest increased by 55.3 percent, from R94 million for the first nine
months of 2004 compared to P146 million for the same period this year.

Consolidated Net Income. As a result of the foregoing, net loss for the nine
months ended September 30, 2005, was (P243) million, compared to a 22,248 million
net income in the same period in 2004 a significant decrease brought about by, as
discussed earlier, the booking of provision for probable losses.

Capital expenditures of the Parent Company for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 was B3,107 million as compared to last year’s 3,872 million. On a
consolidated basis, year-to-date spending has accumulated to 4,186 million for 2005 as
against P6,545 million last year. The Parent Company limited capital expenditures due to
the ongoing customers’ refund and budget constraints, wherein capital projects were
prioritized according to importance.

Segment information on Consolidated Capex: 2005 2004
{ Amounts in Millions)

Power Distribution P3.107 ‘P3,872

Real Estate 34 41
Services 1,045 2,632

Total P4.186 £6.545

Cash dividends to preferred stockholders. No payment was made for the penod ,

under review primarily due to the financial crisis brought about by the on-going
customers’ refund ordered by the Supreme Court.

Basic Earnings Per Common Share on Net Income excluding depreciation on
appraisal increase for the nine months under review decreased by 103.7% from £2.677 in
2004 to P0.098 in 2005 due mainly to the net loss incurred for the first nine months of
2005.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table shows the Company’s Cash Flows on a consolidated basis
as of and for the quarters ended September 30, 2005 and 2004:

Third Quarter Calendar Yr. To Date
2005 2004 2005 2004
(Amounts in millions)

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents,

beginning P7.576 £4.019 4,918 5,320
Net cash provided by operating

activities 4,327 5,084 5,213 (613)
Net cash used in investing activities 230 (4,075) 2,371 5,025
Net cash provided by {used in)

financing activities (135) 16 (504) (3.788)

Cash and cash equivalents, end 11,998 5,944 11,998 5,944

As of September 30, 2005, consolidated cash and cash equivalents increased by
101.9 percent, from P5,944 million in 2004 compared to P11,998 million as of
September 30, 2005. Principal sources of cash for the quarter ended September 30,
2005 were net cash provided by operating activities amounting P4,327 million, P15
milton from issuance of preferred stock and increase in customers’ deposits
amounting to P46]1 million. On the other hand, principal sources of cash for the
quarter ended September 2004, were cash provided by operating activities amounting
P5,984 million, proceeds from issuance of preferred stock amounting 395 million, and
increase in customers’ deposits amounting to F280 million. '

For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, net cash provided by operating
activities amounted to £5,213 million compared to last year’s (P613) million. Other
sources of cash for the period under review, include proceeds from issuance of
preferred stock, P616 million and increase in customers’ deposits, 1,417 million. On
the other hand, as of September 30, 2004, sources of funds were issuance of preferred
shares P1,033 million, and also increase in customers’ deposits, 388 million.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for the third quarter of 2005 amounted
to P4,327 million, compared to £5,984 million of last year, or a decrease of P1,657
million or a decline of 27.7%, due mainly to the effect of provision for probable losses,
lower depreciation and decreases in accounts payable and other current liabilities by
P468 million. Net cash generated from operations for the quarter under review
decreased by 19.1% to P5,911 million, compared to 7,308 million last year, due
primarily to decline in operating income after provision of probable losses. Actual cash
payments to customers’ refund for the quarters ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
were P40 million and P134 million respectively.




Investing Activities

For the third quarter of 2005, the Company’s net cash used in investing activities
was £230 million, an increase of R4,305 million, or 5.6%, from (P4,075) million in same
period of 2004 mainly due to increase in other current liabilities, such as miscellaneous
operating teserves and accrued expenses, from (P711) million last year as against P400
million this year. Capital expenditures for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 were
21,270 million and 21,827 million in same period of 2004, a decrease of 30.5%.

Calendar year to date, the Company’s net cash used in investing activities was
P2,371 million this year, compared to 85,025 million last year, or a decrease of P2,654
million primarily due to adjustments made on appraisal increase in utility plant in
compliance with IAS impiemented late last year.

Financing Activities

The Company’s Net Cash Used in Financing Activities was (135) million for
the third quarter of 2005 compared to positive 216 million in same period of 2004. The
decline could be attributed to the minimal proceeds from issuance of preferred stock,
from P395 million last year compared to only P15 million this current year quarter.

Cash Flows from financing activities, for the nine months ended September 30,
2005 improved from net cash used in financing amounting to (3,788) million last
year to (B504) million this year, mainly due to decrease in repayments of both short-
term and long-term loans. Also, proceeds from issuance of preferred stock decreased
this year, from P1,033 million last year to P616 million this year, or a 40.4 % decrease.

Debt Financing

Consolidated long-term debt, net of current portion, was $21,485 million as of
September 30, 2005, compared to 12,153 million as of September 30, 2004. On the
other hand, for the period under review, there are no payments made for short-term
loans due to refinancing of Parent Company’s unsecured loans consummated last
November 2004.

The Company has no drawings from existing credit facilities during the period
under review. Consolidated short-term debt at the end of the third quarter of 2005
amounts to P388 million, compared to P5,277 million at the end
of September 30, 2004 due mainly to the Company’s refinancing of unsecured short-
term loans consummated late last year.

The estimated schedule of repayments of consolidated long-term debt of the Company
is as follows:
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Amount in Original Currency Total
Japanese ‘ Philippinie Peso
Year U.S. Dollar _Yen Euro Swiss Francs Peso Equivalent

(in millions)

2005 $7 ¥ 508 €0.0 CHF 0.4 47 708
2006 23 1,011 0.46 0.4 186 2,023
2007 41 1,011 0.5 0.4 549 3,397
2008 42 1,011 - 0.5 0.4 548 3,452
2009 thereafter 159 2,022 L5 0.8 2,189 12,229

$272% ¥5.5¢3 €2.9¢ CHE24  _3.519 21.809

Equity Financing

The company has issued nom-voting, non-convertible redeemable preferred
shares to certain customers who are located more than 30 meters from an existing line
or wire operated by the Company in order to finance the installation of additional
facilities to connect such customers to its facilities. The preferred shares earn dividends
at 10% per annum and after five years, are redeemable at the option of either the
Company or the holder. As of September 30, 2005, there were 260 million preferred
shares issued and outstanding in respect of which P2,600 million of capital had been
paid to the Company.

(ii}  Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an
obligation.

a. Covenants

The First Mortgage Bonds issued under an indenture as primary obligations and
those issued as collateral for all the other secured loans have a first mortgage lien on
substantially all of the Parent Company’s utility plant (86,560 million as of December
31, 2004, P84,848 million as of December 31, 2003) in favor of a local bank, as trustee,
for the benefit of all bondholders.

The indenture and loan agreements contain restrictions with respect to, among
others, encumbrances on assets; payments of dividends subject to certain conditions;
acquisitions of additional franchise areas; disposition of a significant portion of the
Parent Company’s assets; availment of additional long-term borrowings; and
maintenance of certain financial ratios. '

On November 12, 2004, the Parent Company signed an agreement with its
domestic and .foreign commercial banks for a seven-year dual tranche facility
denominated in US$ and Peso amounting to the equivalent of US$235 million to
refinance unsecured loans which were due in the next 24 months. The refinancing
loans bearing an amortizing feature and a final maturity in 2011 are currently secured.
As a condition for completing such refinancing, the Company has secured the
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respective waivers of noncompliance to certdin financial ratios required by its existing
creditors.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company has not met the minimum
required return on net fixed assets of 8% required by two secured creditors. On March
29 and April 4, 2005, the Company received a temporary waiver of non-compliance
and a suspension of this requirement for the year 2004. Consequently, the Company is
not in technical default as.of April 5, 2005.

b. Court of Appeals ruling reversing ERC’s May 2003 electricity tariff
unbundling and tariff increase decision

In January 2005, the Court of Appeals upheld an earlier July 2004 ruling that
reversed the ERC’s May 2003 decision for the Company to unbundle electricity tariffs
and £0.17 per kWh increase to electricity tariffs. The increase comprised a 20.0835 per
kWh increase for generation .and transmission, and P0.0865 per kWh for distribution,
The court said the ERC failed to require an audit of the Company’s books and accounts.
The court also remanded the case to ERC for further proceedings, including the conduct
of an audit by the Commission on Audit. The ERC and Meralco have already filed a
motion for reconsideration. If ERC’s May 2003 decision is not ultimately reinstated the
implications for Meralco would include reverting to the former bundled rate billing
arrangement as well as reversing the P0.17 per kWh increase that could give rise to
customer refunds. In addition, the recently 1mplemented GRAM and ICERA cost
recovery mechanisms would also revert to the previous PPA and CERA framework that
provided for automatic pass through of charges to certain costs (such as generation)
which would reduce the total potential refund obligation. Meralco is confident that the
ERC’s-May 2003 decision will be reinstated as unbundling of tariffs is a fundamental
component of the Philippine’s electricity sector restructuring and any reversal would be
non-productive for the entire electricity restructuring effort

¢. Realty Tax Assessment

The Parent Company is being assessed by certain local government units
(LGUs) for realty taxes on certain properties of the Company such as its electric poles,
wires, insulators, and transformers. One of these cases is now with the Court of
Appeals. The CA rendered its decision declaring that the electric poles, wires,
insulators and transformers are subject to realty tax under the Local Government Code.
An adverse decision on any of these cases may result to tax assessments by all LGUs
within the franchise areas of the Company.

d. Local Franchise Tax

The Parent Company was assessed by certain LGUs for local franchise tax
during the period when such LGUs were not qualified to assess. In the opinion of
management and its legal counsel, the Company has strong legal grounds to contest the
assessments. At any rate, even assuming that the said assessments are upheld by the
courts, the principle adopted by the ERC is that franchise tax payments are recoverable
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from the rates. The unbundled rates approved by the ERC allow the Company to

recover the current franchise tax payments. The ERC is in the process of validating the
same.

e. 14.76-Centavo/kWh Rate Adjustment Filed

The Parent Company filed for an average rate adjustment of 14.76 centavos per
kWh before the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) on May 31, 2005.

In its petition, the Company said its inability to attain a reasonable RORB and
generate the corresponding level of revenues have adversely affected its capability to
fund required capital projects, prejudicing the integrity of its electric system. Since
year 2000, the Company’s proposed yearly budget for capital projects have been cut by
an average of 40 percent due to financial constraints. So far, eight hearings have been
conducted, aside from a pre-hearing conference and a “Consumers’ Hour”.

(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company
with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting
period.

Not Applicable.

(iv)  Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of
~ such commitments, and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures
should be described; '

2005 Capital Expenditure Requirements

Electric Capital Projects: (in million pesos)

a. Systemn Requirements P 863
b. Customer Allocation 2,843
C. Miscellaneous Allocation 1,640 .
Non Electric Projects 43
Other Capitalized Items 361
Total Capex . P5,750

' To date, the company has met, and expected that it will continue to meet, its
capital expenditure requirements primarily from cash flow from operations, preferred
equity issues and working capital.

The company is required by the ERC to take necessary steps, including making
necessary capital expenditures, to build and maintain its network so as to meet
minimum performance and service requirements and in any event to make capital
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expenditures in each year at least equal to the amount of depreciation taken in the prior
years. Most expenditures on transmission and substation projects, - supervisory control
and distribution automation, and distribution line projects are non-discretionary. The
remaining capital expenditure is discretionary, which encompasses allocation projects,
telecommunications projects and other non-electrical capital expenditure. If the actual
peak demand is lower than the forecasted demand, a portion of the non-discretionary
capital expenditure may become discretionary.

The company has an approved capital expenditure budget of 5,750 million for
the 2005. The Company has to prioritize its projects to only those deemed urgent in this
year's (2005) project line up. Funding -of .capital expenditures will be sourced
substantially from internally generated cash flow, preferred equity issues and
borrowings from local and foreign financial institutions. The Parent Company _has to
contend with improvementis in its system through much needed capital expenditure
program and said program is of primordial importance since this ensures the level of
service expected by its customers. :

The $5,750 million approved capital expenditure budget is geared to support
projects on areas with large concentration of core customers, give priority to correction
of normal deficiencies in the system, stretch loading limits of our facilities and initiate
practical and cost-effective projects to correct system deficiencies.

Capital expenditures of the Parent Company for the third quarter decreased by
16.4% from P1,283 million in 2004 to P1,072 million in 2005. The level of spending
was at the ratio of 97% to 3% for electric capital projects and non-electric projects
respectively.

On a consolidated basis, capital expenditures for the third quarter this year also
decreased by 30.5% from 21,827 million in 2004 to 1,270 million for the quarter ended
September 30, 2005 mainly due to financial constraints brought about by the on-going
customers’ refund per Supreme Court decision.

In order to meet its future working capital and other capital requirements, the
Company intends to continue to rely primarily upon net cash provided by operating
activities and contend with meager resources due to financial problems brought about by
the ongoing refund to customers and other issues confronting the Parent Company.

(v) Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are
reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on
net sales or revenues or income from continuing operations should be
described.

a. Court of Appeals ruling reversing ERC’s May 2003 electricity tariff
unbundling and tariff increase decision
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In January 2005, the Court of Appeals upheld an earlier July 2004 ruling that
reversed the ERC’s May 2003 decision for the Company to unbundle electricity tariffs
and £0.17 per kWh increase to electricity tariffs. The increase comprised a R0.0835 per
kWh increase for generation and transmission, and R0.0865 per kWh for distribution.
The court said the ERC failed to require an audit of the Company’s books and accounts.
The court also remanded the case to ERC for further proceedings, including the conduct
of an audit by the Commission on Audit. The ERC has already filed a motion for
reconsideration and the Meralco plans to also file a similar motion in the short-term. If
ERC’s May 2003 decision is not ultimately reinstated, the implications for the Company
would include reverting to the former bundled rate billing arrangement as well as
reversing the P0.17 per kWh increase that could give rise to customer refunds. In
addition, the recently implemented GRAM and ICERA cost recovery mechanisms would
also revert to the previous PPA and CERA framework that provided for automatic pass
through of charges to certain costs (such as generation) which would reduce the total
potential refund obligation. Meralco is confident that the ERC’s May 2003 decision will
be reinstated as unbundling of tariffs is a fundamental component of the Philippine’s
electricity sector restructuring and any reversal would be non-productive for the entire
electricity restructuring effort.

b. Performance-Based Regulation (PBR)

Currently, the ERC is considering the introduction of a new framework of
performance-based regulation, or PBR, to regulate distribution utilities that would replace
the existing approach to rate setting based on RORB. The ERC recently promulgated
PBR for the transmission sector of the Philippine electric power industry. While the ERC
has yet to propose a PBR framework for the distribution sector of the electric power
industry, the implementation of PBR in this sector is expected to be modeled on the PBR
regime promulgated for the transmission sector.

If a PBR and rate setting framework similar to that for the transmission sector
were adopted, a formula that takes into account a number of variables, including
forecasted operation and maintenance expenses, while forecasted capital expenditures
would be considered in determining the utility’s annual depreciation in the rate formula.

The Company believes that such a PBR would pemmit the calculation and
adjustment of tariffs more closely in line with general increases in prices and actual costs,
though tariff adjustments will continue to be subject to ERC approvals.

On January 14, 2005, the ERC informed the Company of the approval of the
DWRG which commenced the era of performance based regulation (PBR) for Philippine
distribution utilities. ERC released last January 10, 2005 the DWRG, which was
approved by the Commission last December 20, 2004. Distribution Utilities are given the
choice of when to enter, but once in, must stay with the performance based rates (PBR).
Last January 14, 2005, the Parent Company wrote ERC of its intention to join Group A2.
The DWRG allow for a re-balancing of tariffs by the end of 2005 prior to the formal
introduction of a PBR tariff adjustment mechanism in July 2007.
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(vi)  Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the
registrant’s continuing operations;

As a result of (v)a above, the Parent Company provided for the potential
loss of £9.8 billion for the year 2004 and P4.7 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005, in its income statement. The company continues to
provide for probable losses until a final and executory adverse decision of the
unbundling rate case pending in the Supreme Court is made.

(vii) The causes for any material changes from period to period in one or more
line items of the registrant’s financial statements;

MATERIAL CHANGES ON THE LINE-BY-LINE ITEMS OF THE
COMPANY’S CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Noncurrent Assets

& Consolidated Utility Plant and Others at revalued amounts slightly increased from
P89,968 million as of September 30, 2004 to 295,578 million in the same period this
year or a 6.2% increase due to additional projects completed during the year.

& Construction in Progress is down by 33.4% from 6,076 million as of September 30,
2004 to R4,047 in September 30, 2005.

& Investments at equity also decreased from P3,034 million in September 2004 to
P2 .378 million in September 2005 due mainly to lower share in revaluation increment
of subsidiaries and associate, restated at beginning of the year, from P1,167 million
in 2003 to 989 million in 2004.

& Land and development costs, a subsidiary account, slightly increased, from P833
million as of September 30, 2004, to P872 million as of September 30, 2005 or a
4.7% increase. )

£ Consolidated other noncurrent assets increased from P23,822 million in September
30, 2004 to £25,724 million in September this year or up by 8.0%, mainly due to
increases in Parent Company’s Deferred Pass-Through Fuel Costs, from P8,389
million in September 2004 compared to R12,969 million in September 2005; and
Carrying charge , from R37 million in September 2004 to R467 million in September
2005, among others.

Current Assets
Consolidated
2005 2004 % Change

Cash and cash investments 11,998 5,944 101.9
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Receivables — net 29,710 23,620 25.8

Inventones 1,348 1,401 ( 3.8)

Other current assets 905 638 41.8
Total 43,961 31,603 39.1

¢ Consolidated Cash and cash equivalents significantly increased, from P5,944 million
as of September 30, 2004 to 211,998 million in September 30, 2005 or 101.9% and
is attributable to the lower loan repayment on long-term loans brought about by the
refinancing scheme of unsecured loans and the delayed payment of customers’ refund
-for Phase I'V.

& Receivables - net increased from P23,620 million in September 2004 compared to
P29,710 million in September 2005 and could be partly attributed to the Parent
Company’s increased electric revenues, from P37.5 billion last year’s 3 quarter as
against P45.5 billion this year.

3 Consolidated inventories as of September 30, 2005 slightly decreased from 21,401
million in September 2004 to 1,348 million this year, due to a slow down in capital
expenditures because of cash flow constraints.

& Other current assets increased from 638 million in September 2004 to P905 million
in September 2005 or 41.8% increase which is attributable to the increase in current
portion of prepaid income tax, from P298 million in last year to P686 million this
year as a result of refund, which the Company has effectively overpaid estimated at
£8,902 million.

Stockholders’ Equity

E Preferred stock increased from P2,077 million in September 2004 to 22,600 million
in September 2005 due to the increase in customers requiring the purchase of
preferred shares to help finance electric projects. Preferred stock issuances amounted
to P616 million as against the redemption of B311 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005.

& Common stock on the other hand, was unchanged and no adjustments made for the
quarter ended September 30, 2005. During the ESOP 12" Offering, 8.2 million
common shares were subscribed out of the remaining allocation of about 12 million
common shares to the Plan.

£ Appraisal increase in utility plant and others decreased abruptly by 23.3% from
P26,765 million in September 2004 to 20,535 million in September 2005 as a result
of the Parent Company’s adoption of New Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) / International Accounting Standards (IAS) which became
effective in 2004. The adoption of IAS12 resulted in the recognition of deferred tax
liability on revaluation increment, thus, the change decreased the beginning
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consolidated stockholders’ equity by 9,249 million for the year ended December 31,
2004.

Reflecting the net loss incurred in 2002 amounting to 227,863 million . as a result of
the recognition of an extraordinary loss due to the customer refund, the Company’s
unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) for 2002 was P(11,664) million. In 2003,
the balance in the appropriated retained eamnings of B12,600 million was transferred
to unappropriated retained earnings to beef up the deficit. In addition, the net income
earned in 2003 amounting to P1,267 million resulted to significant improvement in
the unappropriated retained earnings amounting to £2,951 million. Again, for the year
2004, a consolidated net loss amounting (2 2,610) million was incurred due primarily
to the provision for probable losses brought about by the Court of Appeals Decision
annulling and setting aside the ERC Decision and Order authorizing the unbundled
tariff increase for the Company. As a result, the balance of unappropriated retained
earnings as of December 31, 2004 is down by 72%, from B2,951 million in 2003 to
P827 million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, as a result of the
continued provision for probable losses, unappropriated retained earnings is down by
83%, from P5.441 million as of September 30, 2004 to P926 million as of
September 30, 2005.

Noncurrent Liabilities

£ Customers refund - noncurrent portion represents the balance of the customers
refund not yet due within one year. As of September 30, 2005 this amounted to
P15,142 million, lower than the September 30, 2004 balance of 218,689 million
_due to the full implementation of Phases 1 — III customers and transfer of the
amounts due within one year to the Customers refund - current account. The ERC
recently approved the refund proposals for Phase IV which is divided into two
phases. Phase IVA covers small commercial and industrial customers, flat
streetlights including government hospitals and metered streetlights with
contracted demand lower than 40 kw. Phase IVB on the other hand, covers
medium, large, very large and extra large commercial and industrial customers
including government government hospitals and metered streetlights with
contracted demand of 40 kw or higher.

£ Customers’ deposits — noncurrent balance of the Company as of September 30,
2005 is P17,816 million, 30.6% higher compared to the September 30, 2004
figure of P13,644 million.

As of September 30
2005 2004
(in million pesos)

Customers’, meter and service deposits 11,223 10,419
Interest on Meter and service deposit 6,593 3,225

Total 7,816 13,644
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§ Liability arising from deferred pass-through fuel costs increased from RS 389
million in September 30, 2004 to R12,969 million in September 2005 due to
additional costs incurred in 2004 amounting to US$82 million compared to
US$64 million in 2003.

& Deferred income tax liabilities increased by P5,296 million, from R557 million in
September 2004 to B5,853 million as of September 30, 2005 as a result of
increased deferred income tax assets particularly the tax effect provision for
probable losses brought about by the Court of Appeals decision on unbundling
tariff increase. '

£ Summary of “Provisions” account is accounted for as follows:

As of September 30
2005 2004
(in million pesos)
Provision for probable losses - 14,514 ' -
Customer/Meter deposit - interest : - 2,664
Provision for various tax assessments and
legal claims/others N 489 1,702
Total 13,373 4,366

£ Long-term debt - net of current portion increased to PR21,485 million in
September 2005 from P12,153 in September 2004, primarily due to the
Company’s refinancing of unsecured loans for a seven-year dual tranche facility
denominated in US$ and Peso amounting to the equivalent of US$235 million.

- (See Note 15 - Notes to financial statements)

£ Estimated lability for project development as of September 30, 2005 amounting
to P4,269 million is the liability of Subsidiary as agreed upon with contractors for
the construction of the “Manansala” & “Joya” condominium project.

& Other noncurrent liabilities amounted to P4,050 million in September 30, 2005
compared to 1,576 million as of September 2004 or an increase of P2.474
million due mainly to the accrual of interest on deferred pass-through fuel cost,
accrual of OMTL charges, and interest on customers’ deposits.

Current Liabilities

€ As of December 31, 2004, the Parent Company has no existing short-term loans
due mainly to the refinancing consummated late last year. Consolidated notes
payable balance amounting to P388 million as of September 30, 2005, is a
subsidiary account compared to 25,277 million balance as of September 2004.
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I

Accounts payable and other current liabilities increased from R22,995 million in
June 2004 to 226,836 million as of September 30, 2005 or 9.1%. The big chunk
goes to Parent Company’s trade accounts payable, from 213,006 miliion in
September 2004 to R14,737 million as of September 30, 2005, due to the higher
level of purchased power costs brought about by increased demand and higher
purchased power cost per kWh.

With the completion of Phases I to III of the ongoing customers’ refund, the
current portion of the remaining phases, which is Phases IVA & IVB, as of
September 30, 2005, amounts to 24,638 million compared to 23,269 million as of
September 30, 2004 or an increase of 41.9%.

Long-term debt - current portion amounted to 21,967 million as of September
2005 compared to 29,240 million as of September 30, 2004, due mainly to the
refinancing of unsecured long-term debt bearing an amortizing feature and a final
maturity in 2011 or for a seven-year period.

Any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations.

Seasonality

The following table sets forth the Compary’s quarterly sales in gWh.

2005 2004 2003
(in gWh)

Quarterly Sales ’
First Quarter 5,588 5,590 5,470
Second Quarter 6,529 6,437 . 6,116
Third Quarter 6,460 6,392 6,157
Fourth Quarter = 6.242 6,091
Totals 18,577 24,660 23,834

The company’s business evidences a degree of seasonality on both a quarterly and

half-yearly basis. The second and particularly the third quarters are typically periods of

greater electricity demand. The first, and to a lesser extent, the fourth quarters tend to be

periods of comparatively reduced demand from the Company’s customers because of '
cooler temperatures and the reduction of production by industrial customers. Because

there are usually significant reductions in demand during the first quarter, the revenues

for the first six months of a vear tend to be lower than for the second six months of a

year. The Company’s industrial customers generally increase production during the third

quarter and, accordingly, a higher proportion of the Company’s revenues are carned in

the second half of the year.




(b) Additional Requirements as to Certain Issues or Issuers
() Debt Issues

A statement that the registrant’s net worth exceeds P25 million, and if
unsecured bonds are to be issued, that the registrant has been in
business for three years, unless the Commission based upon a
consideration of all aspects of the matter determines that it would not
be inconsistent with the public interest to permit a variation of these
provisions.

Not Applicable.
(c) Interim Periods

If interim financial statements are included in the registration statement or report,
provide a comparable discussion that will enable the reader to assess material
changes in financial condition and results of operations since the end of the last
fiscal year and for the comparable interim period in the preceding year.

Not Applicable

The nature and amount of changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior
interim periods of the current financial year or changes in estimates of amounts
reported in prior financial years, if those changes have a material effect in the
current interim period.

The impact of the Supreme Court ruling with finality to rollback the distribution
rate by 16.7 centavos per kilowatt-hour and the booked refund to customers from
February 1994 to December 2002 amounting to P30.3 billion will greatly affect our cash
flows and the Parent Company has no recourse but to contend itself with the reenacted
budgeted capital expenditures for the year 2005 to approximately B5.75 billion. For
Phases Ito Il of the Refund Implementation, as of September 30, 2005, 36% or
P10.8 billion has been refunded either through application / credit to bills or outright cash
refund. Phase IV, the final phase of the refund, covers commercial and industrial
customers and other non-R/GS accounts. This phase covers 128,216 services which is
two percent of total services qualified for the refund and accounts for 62 % of the total
refundable amount of P18,650M. The proposed scheme for this phase was submitted to
the ERC on September 3, 2004. Under the proposal, Phase IV would be implemented in
two sub-phases, namely, Phase IVA and Phase [VB.

Recently, the ERC approved the Parent Company’s refund proposals for Phase
IV. The ERC also ordered that ail government accounts falling under Phase IVB shal] be
classified to Phase IVA. The Parent Company obtained a copy of BIR Revenue
Memorandum Order (RMO) No. 22-2005 last September 12, 2005. The Company will
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be writing Phase IV customers within October to inform them of BIR’s requirements and
apprise them of their refund options.

Issuances, repurchases, and repayments of debt and equity securities;

?

Issuances = None
Repurchases None

The estimated schedule of repayments of long-term debt of the Parent
Company based on existing payment terms is as follows:

(Please see “Notes to Financial Statements” No. 15 Long Term Debt)
Material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that have
not been reflected in the financial statements for the interim period:

1. Local Tax Adjustments

A recent rate-related filing of the Parent Company was the Application for
a Local Tax Adjustment Clause, dated December 16, 2004. Under the Local
Government Code, local government units started to implement new local taxes
and fees aside from the local franchise tax. The Parent Company is therefore
seeking to recover such costs through the adoption of a recovery mechanism for
local taxes.

2. System Loss Guidelines for Distribution Utilities

Another rule promulgated by the ERC in 2004 was the System Loss
Guidelines for Distribution Utilities which took effect November 2004. The
Guidelines segregate system losses of distribution utilities into three categories:
technical, non-technical and administrative losses. Separate caps will then be
established by the Commission for the segregated losses.

The ERC has directed distribution utilities to submit their applications on
their proposed system loss caps and other data requirements on or before
November 4, 2005.

The effect of changes in the composition of the issuer during the
interim period, including business combinations, acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments, restructuring,
and discontinuing operations; and,
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No changes has been made during the interim period.

Changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last
annual balance sheet date. '

(See notes to Financial Statements, No. 26 Contingencies)

Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from
the issuer’s continuing operations.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, the company operated

under normal business conditions, except for the net effect of the Supreme

| Court’s ruling with finality to rollback the Parent Company’s “distribution rate”

; by 16.7 centavos per kWh up to May 2003 and the recognition of customer

| refunds amounting to approximately P30.3B, which greatly affect the company’s
financials.

Discussion of the Company’s and its majority-owned subsidiaries
top five (5) key performance indicators. It shall include a
discussion of the manner by which the company calculates or
identifies the indicators presented on a comparable basis.

Subsidiaries and Unconsolidated Investee Companices

In the Parent Company financial statements, subsidiaries, associates, and
joint venture are accounted for under the equity method. In the consolidated
financial statements, associates and joint venture with ownership of 50% and
below are accounted for under the equity method

Listed hereunder are Meralco’s five principal operating subsidiaries and
unconsolidated investee companies as of September 30, 2005, together with
certain information regarding such companies. :

e-Meralco Ventures, Inc. aims to develop e-businesses that will provide
its stakeholders with high value products and services. Focuses on various
projects such as (a) fiber optic project and (b) E-procurement  Strategic
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alliances and partnerships were forged with various telecommunication
companies, international cable carriers and other service providers in the
marketing of data services

EMVT’s Financial Highlights: Current Yr.  Previous Yr.

YTD YTD Percent
Sep 05 Sep’04 Inc/Dec
{Amounts in Millions)

Gross revenue P2 72 P 59 22
Gross Profit 29 24 21
Net Income 21 ‘ 17 24
Total Assets 214 157 36
Total Liabilities 83 50 66
Tota] Stockholders’ Equity 131 107 22

On a year-to.-date basis, EMVI has accumulated net income of R21 million as of
September 30, 2005, which is 24% higher than the net income of P17 million as
of September 30, 2004. -

Gross revenues also increased by 22% due mainly to Fiber Optics project and the
recognition of revenues from Bayantel accounts as reconciliation .and 1nv01cmg
for some projects that were accounted for.

The increase in Total Assets pertain to equipment acquired for operational
purposes and the increase in receivable due to increase in revenue.

The increase in liabilities resulted from the increase in Accounts Payable and
Accrued Expenses.

The increase in net income is main reason behind the increase in Stockholders’
Equity amounting to P21 miilion.

Meralco Industrial Epgineering Services Corporation is an
engineering, construction and consulting firm with expertise in the fields of power
generation, transmission and distribution, water resources, transportation and
telecommunication system.

Financial Highlights: Current Y. Previous Yr.
YTD YTD Percent
Sep’05 Sep’04 Inc/Dec
{Amounts in Millions)
Gross revenue R 481 P 535 (10)
Gross Profit 71 83 (14)
Net Income/(Loss) 36 17 112

Total Assets . - 950 916 4
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Total Liabilities 735 762 {4)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 215 154 40

The 10% decrease in revenues was attributed to the slow down in the following
business lines such as engineering projects, telecommunications and water lines.

Gross profit also decreased as a result of lower revenues for the period under
review, net income increased due to higher equity share.

Total Assets slightly increased on account of increase in investments.

The decrease in liabilities resulted from the decrease in accounts payable and
notes payable.

Stockholders’ Equity increased by 40% due to income achieved during the
period under review.

Rockwell Land Corporation is a joint venture between Meralco, Benpres
Holdings Corporation and First Philippine Holdings Corporation. Rockwell is
engaged in real estate development, sale or lease of residential and commercial
lots and units and lease of mall facilities.

Financial Highlights: Current Yr. Previous Yr.
YTD YTD Percent
Sep’05 Sep’04 Inc/Dec
A (Amounts in Millions)
Gross revenue P1,828 - B2,014 (9)
Gross Profit , 411 ‘ 396 4
Net Income 213 151 41
Total Assets ' 12,868 10,367 24
Total Liabilities 6,607 4,407 50
Total Stockholders’ Equity 6,261 5,960 5

Revenues decreased due mainly to the almost old out Residential Towers and
Manansala Towers. Joya sales was still the highest revenue source, accounting
for 45% of its Total Revenues, followed by the Manansala Project. By the end of
August 2005, Joya had a 78% take-up with 695 out of the 946 units sold.
Manansala slightly decreased in August 2005 due to booking cancellations during
the month.

The improvement in gross profit and net income could be attributed to the lower
cost of sales.

Assets increased by 24% as a result of the increase in Receivables, and the Joya
Development Cost.
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Total Liabilities increased due the increased Deferred Sales, from P1,172 million
in September 2004 to 4,269 million in September 2005.

As a result of the 41% increase in net income for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005, Stockholders’ Equity slightly increased by amere 5%.

Corporate Information Solutions, Inc. is a leading provider of
information technology services and integrated business solutions, focusing on the
functional areas that are critical to customers’ business continuity, growth and

profitability.
Financial Highlights: : Current Yr. -~ Previous Yr.

' YTD YTD Percent

Sep’05 Sep’04 Inc/Dec
‘ (Amounts in Millions)

(Gross revenue B 306 P298 3
Gross Profit 85 47 82
Net Income/(Loss) 83 40 108
Total Assets 270 412 (34)
Total Liabilities 731 910 (20)
Total Stockholders’ Equity (461) (498) (N

Revenues slightly increased due mainly to the increased sales more particularly
from Payment Collection Systems (PCS) and Data Center segments, from P298
million for the nine months of 2004 to P306 million in the same period of this
year.

There was improvement in gross profit which could be attributed to the higher
sales, particularly from “Bayad Center” which was the main source of revenues
with 65% to 70% contribution to total amount.

Year-on-year decreases in liabilities include the following accounts: Short term
liabilities, and Accounts Payable.

Stockholders’ Equity SI] ghtly itmproved slightly by negative 7% compared to last
quarter figure.

First Private Power Corporation was established in October 1992 to
engage in power generation as an independent power producer. In 1993, FPPC
incorporated Bauang Private Power Corporation (BPPC) after winning a tender
sponsored by the National Power Corporation (NPC) to provide a generating plant
under a 15-year BOT Agreement to BPPC.

(See also Notes to Financial Statements Nos. 3, and 7)
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Financial Highlights: Current Yr. Previous Yr.
YTD YTD Percent
Sep’05 Sep’04 Inc/Dec
(Amounts in Millions)
Gross revenue P2.140 P2.197 (3)
Operating Income 1,446 1,283 13
Net Income . | 835 742 i3
Total Assets 4,776 4,681 2
Total Liabilities 1,899 2,416 (21)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 2,877 2,265 27

FPPC’s gross revenues decreased slightly by 3% due mainly to lower demand for
the pertod under review.

Due to lower operating expenses for the first three quarters of 2005, operating
income slightly improved by 13%, from 21,283 million for the first nine months
of 2004 to 21,446 million in the same period this year.

Total Assets increased by a minimal 2 percent due to increase in receivables,
and cash and cash equivalents by 93% and 21% respectively.

Total liabilities also decreased by 21% mainly due to decrease in long-term
liabilities — noncurrent and current portion. '

Stockholders’ Equity increased due mainly to lower cumulative translation
adjustment booked for the first nine months this year.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
AGING OF CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
As of September 30, 2005
(In Million Pesos)

_ Over
Total  1-30days 31-60days 61-90days 90 days

Type of Accounts Receivable

a) Trade Receivables -
Regular General Service

Private 12,249 10,959 271 115 %04

Government 472 289 48 29 106
General Power

Private 9,363 8,213 190 29 931

Government 2,347 1,670 284 95 298
Flat / Streetlights

Private 50 23 3 3 21

Government 457 182 _ 38 _37 00
Sub-total

Private 21,662 19,195 464 147 1,856

Government . 3,276 2,141 . 370 161 604
Others(Subsidiaries) 0 4,933 51 45 174
Gross Trade Receivables 30,141 26,269 885 353 2,634
Less: Allow. for Doubtful

Accounts 1,358 1,358
Net Trade Receivables 28,783 26,269 885 353 1,276
b) Non-Trade Receivables

Notes Receivable 82 0 0 0 82
Others 0 0 0 0 0
Total Non-Trade 32 0 0 0 82

NET RECEIVABLES (a+b) 28,824 26,269 885 353 1,317




2. Accounts Receivable Description
Type of Receivable
1) Trade Receivables
a) Regular General Service Mostly residential customers

b) General Power Combination of commercial
and industrial customers

c) Flat/ Streetlights Mostly streetlights and
hospitals

d)} Others Receivables of various
subsidiaries

3. Normal Operating Cycle: (Receivables)

secseptember 2005 mdd&a third qtr/ my doc ¢
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24 days

24 days

24 days

30 days

30 days
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED
EARNINGS OVER TOTAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
As of September 30, 2005 and 2004
{With comparative figures as of December 31, 2004)

(In Million Pesos, except ratio)

Audited
As of Dec
Sep 2005 - Sep 2004 2004
Preferred stock 2,600 2,077 2,295
Common stock 10,072 10,074 10,074
Capital in excess of par value 2,943 2,943 2,943
Deposits on subscriptions to ' : , :
Preferred stock , 0 92 87
Subscriptions receivable, common (70) (97) (72)
" TOTAL PAID-IN CAPITAL (A) 15,545 15,089 15327
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED
EARNINGS (B) 926 5,441 827
RATIO - (B/A) 6.0% 36.1% 5.4%

Note: Section 43 of the Corporation Code states that
“Stock corporations are prohibited from retaining
surplus profits in excess of one hundred (100%)
percent of their paid-in capital stock.”
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Parent Company Financial Statements -
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

Parent Company Financial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004




MANILA ELECTRIC COMPAN Y AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS
Consolidated &
Parent Co. Consolidated Audited
Sep 2005 Sep 2005 Dec 2004
(Amounts in Millions)
ASSETS :
Noncurrent Assets
Utility plant and others at revalued amounts
" (Notes 5 and 15) £91,473 B95,578 P§8,378
Construction in progress {Note 6) T 3,666 4,047 4,623
Investments - at equity (Note 7) 3,451 1,297 1,846
Investments - at cost {Note 8 ) 81 81 599
Investments in real properties (Notes 8 and 15) 3,425
Land held for future development i
(Notes 4 and 15) ' - 872 1,068
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 9 and 23) 25,079 25,724 27,853
Total Noncurent Assets 123,750 128,599 127,792
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 11,258 11,998 4,918
Receivables (Notes 9, 11, 15 and 20) - ' 24,530 29,710 28,468
Inventories (Note 12) ’ 1,224 1,348 1,064
Deferred income tax assets {(Note 23) 0 0 0
Other current assets {Notes 13 and 23) 596 905 . 687
Total Current Assets - 37,608 : 43,961 35,137
TOTAL ASSETS P161,358 172,560 P162,929
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES .
Stockholders’ Equity
- Preferred stock (Note 14) P£2,600 22,600 P2,295
Commen stock (Note 14) 10,072 10,072 10,074
Capital in excess of par value (Note 14) 2,943 2,943 2,944
Subscriptions receivable - common stock
(Note 14) 70) ' (70) (72)
Deposits on subscriptions to preferred stock 0 0 87
Appraisal increase in utility plant and others
(Note 5) 20,535 20,535 18,154
Share in revaluation increment of subsidiaries and
an associate (Notes 5 and 7) 971 971 811
Share in cumulative translation adjustment
(Note 7) (24) (24) (25)
Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit)
(Notes 7, 14 and 15) 926 926 827
Appropriated retained eamings (Note 14) 200 200 200
Total Stockholders” Equity 33,153 _ 38,153 35,295

(Forward)




Consolidated &

‘Parent Co. Consolidated Audited
Sep 2005 Sep 2005 Dec 2004
) {Amounts in Millions)

Minority Interest P— £2,348 B2.066
Noncurrent Liabilities
Customers’ refund - noncurrent portion (Note 1) 15,142 15,142 15,142
Long-term debt-net of current portion (Notes 5, 19,842 21,485 21,985

15, and 25)
Customers’ deposits (Notes 17 and 18) 17,816 17,816 16,400
Liability arising from deferred fuel costs(Note 9) 12,969 12,969 13,031
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 23) " 5,853 : 5,853 7,920
Provisions (Notes 18 and 19) 15,003 15,003 10,313
Estimated liability for project development ,

(Note 27) - 4,269 692
Other noncurrent liabilities (Note 9) 3,210 4,050 2,828

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 89,835 - 96,587 88,311

Current Liabilities
Notes payable (Note 16) 0 : 388 442
Accounts payable and other current liabilities

(Notes 4, 17, 18, and 27) 25,048 26,836 26,469
Customers’ refund — current portion (Note 1) 4,638 4,638 5,409
Long-term debt — current portion '

{Notes 5, 15, and25) 1,967 1,967 4,007
Long-term debt classified as current

{Notes 5, 15, and 25) - - -
Income tax payable 1,117 1,143 30

Total Current Liabilities 33,370 34,972 36,357

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND '

LIABILITIES 161,358 B172,560 £162,929

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Parent Company Consolidated
3 Months Eaded Sep 30 3-Months Ended Sep 30
2005 2004 2005 2004
{Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data)
REVENUES (Notes 1 and 21) P44.621 236,535 P45,529 237,518
OPERATING EXPENSES :
Recoverable purchased power (Notes 20 and 27) 39,733 30,365 39,733 30,365
Operations and maintenance (Notes 20, 22 and 24) 2,282 2,521 2,365 2,574
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 9 and 22) 944 1,104 996 1,155
Taxes other than income tax (Note 23) 25 197 27 199
Cost of contracts and services (Note 22) - - 249 23t
Cost of real estate — - 344 456
42,984 34,187 43,714 34,980
OPERATING INCOME Before Prov. For Prob Losses 1,637 2,348 1,815 2,538
Provision for Probable Losses 1,630 - 1,630 -
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) AFTER PROVISION 7 2,348 185 2,538
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest and other charges — net (Notes 9, 18, 22 and 25) (809) (659) 10 {(741)
Unrecoverable purchased power (Notes 20 and 27) 211 (540) 211 (540)
Equity in net earnings (losses) of investees (Note 7) 0 160 13 126
Recovery of {provision for) probable losses on disallowed
receivables (Notes 9 and 22) {59) (109) (59) (109
(657) (1,148) (745) (1,264)

INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

BEFORE INCOME TAX, MINORITY INTEREST

AND EXTRAORDINARY LOSS (650) 1,200 (560) 1,274
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX

(Notes I, 23 and 30)

Current (389) (755) (430} (812)
Deferred 722 387 722 403
333 (368) 292 {409)

INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND

EXTRAORDINARY LOSS (317) 832 (268) 865
MINORITY INTEREST - - (49) (33)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 317 832 (317) 832
EXTRAORDINARY LOSS [Notes 1(d) and 23} - - - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) (Note 28) (®317) FB832 (®317) #8312

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share (Note 28)
On income (loss) from ordinary activities

Including depreciation on appraisal increase (B0.315) £0.829 (B0.315) $0.829

Excluding depreciation on appraisal increase (0.279) 0.970 (0.279) 0.970
On net income (loss)

Including depreciation on appraisal increase (0.315) 0.829 (0.315) 0.829

Excluding depreciation on appraisal increase (0.279) 0.970 0.279) 0.970

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (Note 28)

On net income (loss)
Including depreciation on appraisal increase (P0.315) R0.827 (P0.315) P0.827
Excluding depreciation on appraisal increase {0.279 0.969 (0.279) 0.969

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Parent Company Consolidated
Nine Months Ended September 30
2005 - 2004 2005 2004
(Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data)
REVENUES (Notes | and 21) P127,685 104,942 P130,165 PI107,655
OPERATING EXPENSES
Recoverable purchased power (Notes 20 and 27) 109,509 86,468 109,509 86,468
Operations and maintenance (Notes 20, 22 and 24) 6,721 7,385 6,925 7,500
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 9 and 22) 2,840 3,513 2,996 3,670
Taxes other than income tax (Note 23) 168 493 175 500
Cost of contracts and services {Note 22) - - 635 686
Cost of real estate — - 924 1,240
119,238 97,859 121,164 100,064
OPERATING INCOME Before Prov’n for Prob Losses 8,447 7,083 9,001 7,591
Provision for Probable Losses 4,690 0 4,690 0
OPERATING INCOME AFTER PROVISION 3,757 1.083 4,311 1.591
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest and other charges — net (Notes 9, 18, 22 and 25) (2,321) (1,720} (2,659) (1,901
Unrecoverable purchased power (Notes 20 and 27) (1,657) (2,229) (1,657) (2,228)
Equity in net carnings {losses) of investees (Note 7) 0 442 42 308
Recovery of (provision for) probable losses on disallowed
teceivables (Notes 9and 22) = - . (177) (329) (177) (328)

(4,155) _ (3.836) __ (4,451) _ (4,149)

INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

BEFORE INCOME TAX, MINORITY INTEREST

AND EXTRAORDINARY LOSS (398) 3,247 (140) 3,442
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX

{Notes 1, and 23)

Current (1,812) (2,143) (1,924) (2,244)
Deferred 1,967 1,144 1,967 1,144
155 {999) 43 (1,100)

INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND

EXTRAORDINARY LOSS (243) 2,248 “n 2,342
MINORITY INTEREST — - (146) {(94)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (243) 2,248 (243) 2,248
EXTRAORDINARY LOSS [Notes 1(d) and 23] - - - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) (Note 28) (P243) P2,248 P243) P2,248

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share (Note 28)
On income {loss) from ordinary activities

Including depreciation on appraisal increase (R0.241) P2.239  (B0.241) R2.239

Excluding depreciation on appraisal increase 0.098 2.677 0.098 2677
On net income (10ss)

Including depreciation on appraisal increase {0.241) 2.239 (0.241) 2.239

Excluding depreciation on appraisal increase 0.098 2.677 0.098 2.677

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (Note 28)

On net income (loss)
Including depreciation on appraisal increase (P0.241) £2.235  (P0.241) P2.235
Excluding depreciation on'appraisal increase 0.098 2.673 0.098 2.673

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

PARENT COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Sep 2005 Sep 2004

{Amounts in Millions)

PREFERRED STOCK (Note 14}

Balance at beginning of year $£2,295 Bl1,407
Issuance of shares 666 1,033
Redemption of shares {361) (363)
Balance, end of month 2,600 2,077
COMMON STOCK (Note 14)

Balance at beginning of year 10,074 9,993
Subscriptions{cancelled subscriptions) ‘ 2} 81
Balan¢e end of month 10,072 10,074
CAPITAL IN EXCESS OF PAR VALUE

Balance at beginning of year 2,944 2,895 .
Increase(Decrease) in subscription on repurchase option {Note 14) {1 48
Balance at end of month 2,943 2,943

SUBSCRIPTIONS RECEIVABLE - COMMON STOCK (Note 14)

Balance at beginning of vear (72) (1)
Reclassified to (from) current receivables (87)
Cancelled subscriptions 2

Balance at end of month (70) (97)
DEPOSITS ON SUBSCRIPTIONS TO PREFERRED STOCK

Balance at beginning of year 87 101
Additional deposits on subscriptions 579 1,024
Issuance of shares - (666) - - (1,033)
Cancelled subscriptions -

Balance at end of month 0 . 92
APPRAISAL INCREASE IN UTILITY PLANT AND OTHERS (Note 5)

Balance at beginning of year 18,154 27,445
Additions/{adjustments) 1,723 (238)

Revaluation increment of disposed utility plant & others - -
Depreciation on appraisal increase transferred to

unappropriated retained eamings (342) (442)
Balance at end of month 20,535 26,765

SHARE IN REVALUATION INCREMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN

ASSOCIATE (Notes 5 and 7) .
Balance at beginning of year 811 1,455
Additions 160 240
Depreciation on share in revaluation increment transferred

to un-appropriated retained eamnings .

Balance at end of month . 971 1,695
SHARE IN CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT OF AN

ASSQCIATE (Note 7)
Balance at beginning of year (25) (35)
Translation adjustment during the vear 1 -
Balance at end of month (24) (35)

(Forward)




Sep 2005

Sep 2004

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
(Notes 7, 14 and 15)

(Amonnts in Mitlions)

Balance at beginning of year, as previously reported P827 R2951
Prior period adjustments arising from customers' refund (Note 1) - -
Change in accounting for provisions and intangible assets {(see Note 2) - -
Balance at beginning of year, as restated 827 2,951
Net income (243) 2,248
Depreciation on appraisal increase in utility plant and others 342 442
Depreciation on share in revaluation increment of subsidiaries and an associate - -
Revaluation increment of disposed utility plant and others
Cash dividend on preferred stock — 2% for the year 2003 - -
Transfers from (to) appropriated retained earnings - (200)
Balance, end of month 926 5,441
APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Note 14)
Balance at beginning of year - -
Transfers from (to) unappropriated retained earnings 200 200
Balance, end of month 200 200
P£38,153 B49,155

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Parent Company Consalidated

Three Months Ended September 30

2005 2004 2005 2004
(Amounts in Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax, minority interest and

extraordinary loss (B650) R1,200 (P560) ®1,274
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 944 1,104 996 1,155
Interest expense on loans 547 450 581 513
Other financial charges 32 56 32 56
Franchise tax expense 25 196 27 199
Interest expense on customers’ deposits 425 299 425 299
Interest and dividend income (202) (148  (20%) {152)
Provision for doubtful accounts 0 0 4 18
Equity in net (earnings) losses of investees 0 (160) (13) (126)
Minority interest - - 49 33
Other provisions . ) 528 819 570 1,398
Provision for (recovery of) probable losses on disaliowed .

receivables 59 109 59 109

Operating income before working capital changes 1,708 3,925 1,965 4,776
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: :
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables 1,783 1,049 1,625 1,155
Inventories (218) (101) (167) (30)
Other cutrent assets 38 (29) k)| 16
Estimated liability for project development .- - 253 {438)
Increase in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 1,220 1,794 1,433 1,901
Other non-current liabilities 807 . 1,017 834 1,027
Customer’s refund-current (63) (1,699) (63) (1,099
Net cash generated from operations 5,275 6,556 5911 7,308
Franchise tax paid (1,365) (979) (1,365) (979)
Interest paid (331) (299) (384) (363)
Income tax paid 0 0 0 Y
Interest and dividend received 202 148 205 152
Cash fiow from ordinary activities ‘ 3,781 5,426 4,367 6,118
Customers’ refund paid (40) (134) {40) (134)
Net cash-provided by operating activities 3,741 5,292 4,327 5,984

(Forward)




Parent Company Consclidated
Three Months Ended September 30
2005 2004 2005 2004

(Amounts in Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to utility plant and others (®1,072) ®1,283) (®1,270) (®1,827)
Decrease (increase) in: . .
Other receivables 269 5 273 6
Other non-current assets To287 (985) 310 (1,006)
Land and development costs - - - 49 -
Other current liabilities 350 (880) 400 (7t1)
Increase(decrease) in investments and advances : 0 61 a0 107
Increase(decrease) in other property and equipment 401 (562) 478 T (644)
Adjustments to utility plant ' - - - -
Net cash used in investing activities 235 (3,644) 230 (4,075

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of
Notes payable - - - {hH
Long-term debt : (301) (414) 649) - (529)

Proceeds from:
Notes payable - - - -
Long-terrn debt - - - -
Advance payment received from a customer - - - -
Increase in customers’ deposits . 461 280 461 280
Dividends paid on preferred stock - - - -
Proceeds from issuance of and subscriptions te:

Preferred stock 15 . 395 15 395

Common stock .= - - -
Redemption of preferred stock (am (162) (10) (162)
Increase (decrease) in minority interest - - 48 33
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 165 99 (135) 16
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 4,141 1,747 4,422 1,925
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ‘

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,117 3,675 7,576 4019
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR P11,258 B5 422 11,998 £5,944

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




_ . Uus SEC
File No.82-3237

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Parent Company Consolidated

Nine-Months Ended September 30

2005 2004 2005 2004
{Amounts in Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax, minority interest and .

extraordinary loss #398) 3,247 (140) P3,442
Adjustments for: .
Depreciation and amortization 2,840 3513 2,996 3,670
Interest expense on loans and financial charges 1,501 1,406 1,648 1,638
Other financial charges 132 214 132 214
Franchise tax expense 168 493 175 500
Interest expense on customers’ deposits 1,201 450 1,201 450
Interest and dividend income (503) (364) (322) (401)
Provision for doubtful accounts 0 0 7 27
Equity in net (earnings) losses of investees 0 (442) 42) (308)
Minority interest - - 146 94
Other provisions 868 1,479 (1,599) 1,819
Provision for (recovery of) probable losses on disallowed .
receivables 177 - 328 177 328
Operating income before working capital changes 5,986 10,324 4,379 11,473
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables 1,279 276 (1,406) (348)
Inventorics (375) {140) (284) (199)
Other current assets 10 15 (218) (170
Estimated liability for project development 0 0 3,577 (458)
Increase in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 1,921 5,657 1,480 5,521
Other non-current liabilities/refund-non-current 3,041 (638) 3,783 (8,033)
Customer’s refund - current (771) (3,650) (772) (3,650)
Net cash generated from operations 11,091 11,844 10,539 4,134
Franchise tax paid (3,936) {2,989) {3,936) (2,989)
Interest paid (1,343) (1,232) (1,570) (1,710)
Income tax paid 0 0 ¢ (4)
Interest and dividend received 503 364 322 401
Cash flow from ordinary activities 6,315 7,987 5,355 (164)
Customers’ refund paid (142) {449) (142) (449)
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,173 7,538 5,213 (613)

{Forward)




Parent Company

Us SEC
s No. §2-3237

Consolidated

Nine- Months Ended September 30

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2005

2004

2005

2004

{Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data)

Additions to utility plant and others (B3,107) (R3,872) (P4,186) (B6,545)
Decrease (increase) in: .

Other receivables 202 74 164 530

Other non-current assets 2,120 (18) 2,129 (1,013)

Land held for future development - - 196 140
Inc(dec) in estimated liability for project development - - - -
Increase(decrease)in investments and advances 181 (116} 3,492 3,433
Increase (dectease) in other property and equipment 956 294 576 112
Adjusiments of appraisal increase in ufility plant - - - 8,368
Net cash used in investing activities 352 (3,638) 2,371 ‘5,025
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of:

Notes payable 0 (490} (% {526)

Long-term debt (1,365) (4,236} (2,088) (4,236)
Proceeds from:

Notes payable 0 0 - -

Long-term debt 0 0 - -
Advance payment received from & customer - - - -
Increase in customers’ deposits 1,417 388 1,417 388
Dividends paid on preferred stock 0 0 - 0
Proceeds from issuance of and subscriptions to:

Preferred stock 616 1,033 616 1,033

Common stock (1) &2 1) 82
Redemption of preferred stock 311y (362) (311) (362)
Increase (decrease) in minority interest ~- - (118) (67
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 356 (3,585} (504) (3,788)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 6,881 315 7,080 624
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,377 5,107 4,918 5,320
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR P11,258 B5,422 11,998 P5,944

See accompanying Notes to Financial Starements.




MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. . Corporate Information

a.

General

Manila Electric Company (the Parent Company) is incorporated in the Philippines. The Parent

. Company is involved in the distribution and supply of electricity covering 11 cities and

municipalities in Metro Manila and in six provinces surrounding Metro Manila. lts -
subsidiaries, also incorporated in the Philippines, are mainly engaged in the business of
engineering, construction and consulting services, information systems and technology, real
estate, and other electricity-related services. The number of employees of the Parent Company
was 5,937 by the end of September 30,2005, 5,961 by the end of September 30, 2004 and
5,963 by the end of December 31, 2004. On a consolidated basis, the number of employees
was 6,551 as of September 30, 2005, 6,553 as of September 30, 2004 and 6,573 by the end
of 2004. The registered office address of the Parent Company is Lopez Building, Ortigas
Avenue, Pasig City, Metro Manila, Philippines.

- Regulation and Franchise Renewal

Prior to the enactment of Republic Act (RA) No. 9136, the “Electric Power Industry Reform
Act of 2001,” in 2001 (see Note 29), the Parent Company was subject to ratemaking
regulations and regulatory policies of the Energy Regulatory Board (ERB). On June 8, 2001,

'RA No. 9136 was signed into law. RA No, 9136 abolished the ERB and created in its place

the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC).

On June 9, 2003, President Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo signed into law RA No. 9209, “Manila
Eleetric Company Franchise™ which took effect on June 28, 2003. The law granted the Parent
Company a 25-year franchise to construct, operate and maintain an electric distribution system
and consolidate the Parent Company’s 50 franchises servicing 23 cities and 88 municipalities
in Metro Manila and in six surrounding provinces.

Unbundling Rate Case Filed with the Supreme Court (SC)

On April 14, 2000, the Parent Company filed with the ERB an application for a P0.30 per kWh
rate increase.

In accordance with Section 36 of RA No. 9136, the ERC required the National Power
Corporation (NPC) and all the distribution utilities to file their unbundled rate charges within
six months from the effectivity of RA No. 9136. On December 26, 2001, the Parent Company
filed with the ERC a petition for its unbundied rate charges. The filing was made in
accordance with the Uniform Filing Requirements (UFR) issued by the ERC on October 30,
2001.
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On June 17, 2002, the ERC issued an Order consolidating the Parent Company’s P0.30 per
kWh rate increase petition (ERC Case No. 2001-646) with its unbundling petition (ERC Case
No. 2001-900), in order to simplify and expedited the resolution of the rate cases. All records
and proceedings of the rate increase application were deemed consolidated with that of the
unbundling. The hearings on the consolidated petitions were terminated on December 19,
2002.

On March 20, 2003, the ERC promulgated its Decision on the consolidated petitions. The
Parent Company filed on April 9, 2003 a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) of the March 20,
2003 Decision. On May 30, 2003, the ERC issued an Order resolving the Parent Company’s
Motion. It also approved the Parent Company’s unbundled tariffs that will result in a total
increase of P0.17 per kWh over May 2003 levels, after giving effect to the reduction of rates
ordered by the SC in April 2003. This consists of P0.0835 per kWh increase reflecting higher
generation and transmission charges and a P0.0865 per kWh increase in Parent Company-
related charges (distribution, supply, and metering). The tariff increase was implemented in
June 2003.

Certain consumer groups appealed to the Court of Appeals (CA) the above ERC Decision of
the March 20, 2003 and Order dated May 30, 2003 authorizing the tariff increase. On July 22,
2004, the CA rendered its Decision annulling and setting aside the ERC Decision and Order
and remanding the case to ERC for further proceedings. It also ordered ERC to direct the
Commussion of Audit (COA) to audit the books, records and accounts of the Parent Company.
On August 17, 2004, the Parent Company filed a MR of the said CA decision. On January 24,
2005, the CA denied the Parent Company’s MR.

On February 9, 2005, the Parent Company filed with the Supreme Court a motion for a 30-day
extension of the period within which to file a petition for the review of the CA decision. The
ERC filed with the SC on February 11, 2005 a petition asking the SC to set aside the CA
Decision and Resolution and reinstating and affirming its Decision and Order on the Parent
Company’s consolidated petitions. The Lawyers Against Monopoly and Poverty (LAMP)
filed on January 31, 2005 a Manifestation with the ERC asking that the Parent Company be
directed to refrain from collecting and to recall, the bills issued for the new unbundled rates.
This was denied for lack of merit by ERC in an Order dated February 3, 2005.

In the opinion of the Parent Company’s external counsels, the Parent Company and the ERC
have raised valid and compelling arguments that could set aside the CA decision. The factual
and legal grounds are the following:

i. There appears to be no basis on the CA’s findings that the COA did not conduct an
audit of the Parent Company’s books, records and accounts in connection with its rate
application;

il ERC has stated in no uncertain terms that although ERC relies upon COA'’s
recommendations, the COA audit is not a pre-requisite to the ERC’s exercise of its
exclusive and original jurisdiction to fix the rates of power distribution utilities; and

iii. . Having established that a COA audit was indeed conducted, and that the COA’s
findings were in fact considered, the factual findings of the ERC which were based on
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substantial evidence should therefore be binding upon the CA pursuant to Section 10
of Rule 43 of the 1997 Rules of Civil Procedure.

Although the Parent Company filed a petition for review with the SC on March 11, 2005, the
Parent Company has provided for these losses amounting to 29,824 million (its tax effect of
£3,144 million is presented as part of “Provision for (benefit from) income tax” account in the
2004 statement of income). For the first quarter ended March 31, 2005, the Parent Company
provided for probable losses amounting to P1,411 million. Such amount represents
management’s best estimate of probable losses in the event of a final and executory adverse
decision on the case.

. Supreme Court (SC) Decision on the P0.167 Refund

On April 30, 2003, the Third Division of the SC denied the “Urgent Motion for
Consideration” filed by the Parent Company, rendering its decision dated November 15, 2002
final and executory. The loss arising from the SC decision amounted to B28,728 million,
which represents the amount of refund to its customers of 20.167 per kilowatt-hour for billing
cycles from February 1994 to December 31, 2002. The Company’s 2002 financial statements
have been restated to reflect the loss arising the SC decision. Refunds covering the periods
February 1994 to December 31, 2001, amounting to 223,817 million, net of tax effect for
1999 of B1,126 million (see Note 23), were accounted for as an extraordinary loss in the 2002
statement of income. Refunds covering the period January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002,
amounting to 3,785 million were reflected as a reversal of 2002 revenues. The related tax
effect of P1,133 million is reflected as a reduction in the provision for income tax (see Note
23). The Company’s revenues for the first five months of 2003 were adjusted to reflect a
rollback of its distribution rates totaling approximately 21,595 million.

The Parent Company proposed to the ERC that the refund will be carried out in four phases,
in such a way that would first satisfy the Parent Company’s obligations to its more numerous,
but smaller and, mainly residential, customers, who account for the Company’s lower-income
customners. In June 2003, the ERC ordered the implementation of Phase I, which involves
refunds to residential and general service customers who consumed 100 kilowatt-hours or less
of electricity in April 2003 (or in their last complete month’s bill for services whose contracts
with the Parent Company have been terminated). On July 11, 2003, the ERC ordered the
implementation of Phase II, which involves refunds to residential and general service
customers who consumed 101 to 300 kWh in April 2003 (or in their last complete month’s
bill for services whose contracts with the Parent Company have been terminated), from
- September 2003 to February 2004. For Phase III, which involves refunds to residential and
general service customers who consumed more than 300 kilowatt-hours of electricity per
month, the Parent Company implemented this starting January 2004 over a period of twelve
months.

For Phase TV, which will involve refunds to commercial and industrial customers and all other
customers not covered by Phases I — 111, the Parent Company has submitted its proposal to the
ERC last September 3, 2004. The Parent Company’s proposed scheme covers two sub-
phases. Phase IV-A will cover small commercial and industrial customers, flat streetlights and
government hospitals and metered streetlights with contracted demand of less than 400 kwh.
Phase IV-B will cover medium, large, very large and extra large commercial and industrial
customers and government hospitals and metered streetlights with contracted demand greater
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than or equal to 400 kWh. The Parent Company has proposed to commence Phase IV this
year through fixed credit to bills over a period of 36 and 63 months, for Phases IV-A and IV-
B, respectively. In addition, qualified customers under Phase IV-B will be given the option to
receive a financial instrument with a liquidity feature.

On January 5, 2005, the ERC issued an order to implement Phase IV-A starting January 2005
until June 2006 and ordered the Parent Company to submit specific details on the
implementation of Phase IV-B. However, the Parent Company was informed by the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR) that it will impose a withholding income tax on the refund to
customers under Phase IV and will appoint the Parent Company as its withholding agent. The
Parent Company, thus filed a Manifestation and Motion with the ERC last January 28, 20035,
requesting for an indefinite deferment of the implementation of Phase IV-A until BIR releases
the revenue regulation and to allow the Parent Company to prepare for compliance with the
BIR guidelines. The Parent Company is still evaluating its implementation proposal for Phase
IV-B and will submit this to ERC soon.

. As of September 30, 2003, the balance of the refund for each of the four phases follows:

Balance Cash Application

Phase Beginning Payments against Billings Balance
(Amounts in Millions)
1 B420 P22 B39 - P359
g 350 27 32 291
01 1,092 93 558 441
v 18,689 — — 18,689
P20,551 B142 B629 219,780

Based on the Parent Company’s proposed scheme, customer refunds estimated to be made the
following year amounting to 4,638 million is shown as part of current liabilities in the
September 30, 2005 balance sheet.

Certain consumer groups have asked the ERC to clarify whether or not the Parent Company
will be required to refund an additional £6,200 million to 6,800 million in interest on the
excess charges the Parent Company had collected. The Parent Company has obtained an
external legal opinion interpreting the SC Decision as not requiring the Parent Company to
pay interest. Furthermore, Phases I, II, IIT and IV-A of the refunds were approved by the ERC
without provisions for the payment of interest on the refund amount. The ERC in its Order
dated January 6, 2005 ruled that there was no legal basis for the payment of interest on the
refund.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

~The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial statements of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Company”) are as follows:

Basis of Preparation
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The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in the Philippines under the historical cost basis, except for utility
plant and others carried at revalued amounts.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The estimates and assumptions
used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of

relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results could
differ from such estimates.

Adoption of New Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)/I.ntematlonal Accounting
Standards (IAS) S

The Company adopted the following SFAS/IAS which became effective in 2004:

SFAS 12/IAS 12, “Income Taxes,” prescribes the accounting treatment for current and
deferred income taxes. The standard requires the use of the balance sheet liability method in
accounting for deferred income taxes. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. The adoption of IAS 12 resulted in the recognition of deferred tax liability on
revaluation increment. This resulted in an increase in net income by £323 million and R360
million in 2004, and 2003, respectively. The change also decreased the beginning
consolidated stockholders’ equity by £9,249 million, 28,914 million and P8,185 million in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, due to the recognition of deferred tax liabilities on the

following:
2004 2003
Amounts in Millions
Appraisal increase in utility plant & others PR,783 B8.365
Share in revaluation increment of ‘
Subsidiaries and an associate 466 549

SFAS 17/1AS 17, “Leases,” prescribes the accounting policies and disclosures that apply to
finance and operating leases. The standard requires the recognition of operating lease on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The effect of adopting SFAS 17/IAS 17 is not
material.

New and Revised Accounting Standards Effective in 2005

New accounting standards based on IAS and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
referred to as Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) or Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
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(PFRS), will become effective in 2005. The Company will adopt the following relevant new
accounting standards effective January 1, 2005:

PAS 19, “Employee Benefits,” requires the use of the projected unit credit method in
measuring retirement benefit expense and a change in the manner of computing benefit
expense relating to past service cost and actuarial gains and losses. It requires companies to
determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets
with sufficient regularity that the amounts recognized in the financial statements do not differ
materially from the amounts that would be determined at the balance sheet date. Based on
actuarial valuation dated December 31, 2004 computed under PAS 19, the unfunded liability
as of December 31, 2004 amounted to 4,617 million. Adoption of PAS 19 will result in an
estimated increase in total labilities by 24,617 million. The recognition of said liability may
be done on either a one-time retroactive basis or over a period of five years.

PAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,” will result in the elimination of
the capitalization of foreign exchange losses. The Company believes that the financial
statement impact of the adoption of this st<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>